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CORPORATE INFORMATION
N RER

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. Huang Yilin (Chairman)
(appointed Executive Director on 23 January 2015 and
Chairman on 30 January 2015)

Mr. Lin Chengdong

Mr. Chan Shi Yin, Keith (appointed on 23 January 2015)

Mr. Mo Tsz Yuk (appointed on 30 January 2015)

Mr. Chim Kim Lun, Ricky (resigned on 11 December 2014)

Mr. Cheung Kai Kwong (resigned on 20 January 2015)

Mr. Yeung Yiu Bong, Anthony (resigned on 20 January 2015)

Mr. Lu Jianling (resigned on 23 January 2015)

Mr. Wang Shi (appointed on 11 December 2014 and
resigned on 23 January 2015)

Mr. Sun Sizhi (appointed on 11 December 2014 and
resigned on 23 January 2015)

Non-executive Director

Mr. Tong Leung Sang (resigned on 4 February 2015)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Zhang Xianlin

Mr. Kwok Hong Yee, Jesse

Mr. Ho Chun Kit, Gregory (appointed on 9 February 2015)
Mr. Lum Pak Sum (resigned on 1 February 2015)

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Law Ho Ming (appointed on 23 January 2015)

Ms. Leung Lai Si, Rosena (resigned on 1 July 2014)

Mr. Cheng Mei Chau (appointed on 1 July 2014 and
resigned on 23 January 2015)
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
N RER

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

China Construction Bank Corporation
Agricultural Bank of China

Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited
China CITIC Bank International Limited

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited

China Minsheng Banking Corp. Ltd.
Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Ltd

AUDITORS

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited
Certified Public Accountants

REGISTERED OFFICE

Clarendon House
2 Church Street
Hamilton HM11
Bermuda

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS
IN HONG KONG

Unit 4312, 43/F., COSCO Tower
183 Queen’s Road Central
Hong Kong

REGISTRARS (IN BERMUDA)

Codan Services Limited
Clarendon House

2 Church Street
Hamilton HM 11
Bermuda

REGISTRARS (IN HONG KONG)

Tricor Secretaries Limited
Level 22, Hopewell Centre
183 Queen’s Road East
Hong Kong

WEBSITE
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR

MANAGEMENT
EENGREEEEBE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Huang Yilin (“Mr. Huang”), aged 46, was appointed as an
executive director of the Company on 23 January 2015 and as the
chairman of the Board on 30 January 2015. Mr. Huang graduated
from The Institute of Finance and Economics of Radio and
Television (BEARF4EEFT) in 1992 and is engaged in management
related works since graduation. During the past years, Mr. Huang
was the general manager of Shantou Sanye Plastic Company
Limited (JLZET = E ¥ & A R 2 7)), Shenzhen China Investment
Company Limited (FYIITH B & B R A7), Shenzhen Rihuisheng
Group Company Limited (& JIl /1 H & 2% & B B B 2 7)) and
Shenzhen Hongxun Investment Company Limited (YT EIRE
BBR/AF)) respectively and has extensive theoretical knowledge and
practical experience in corporate modern management.

Mr. Lin Chengdong (“Mr. Lin”), aged 53, was appointed as an
executive director of the Company on 21 March 2014. Mr. Lin is
an engineer, he has over 30 years of working experience in import
and export trading, property investment, sales planning and project
management.

Mr. Lin was a director of JIBEE N R BR A E (now known
EREZEERM AR AT (stock code: 000534), whose shares
listed on Shenzhen Stock Exchange for the period from August
2006 to September 2009.

Mr. Chan Shi Yin, Keith (“Mr. Chan”), aged 54, was appointed
as an executive director of the Company on 23 January 2015 and
as the member of each of nomination committee and remuneration
committee of the Company on 30 January 2015. Mr. Chan has
30 years of experience in finance, investment and management
and worked in different sectors such as insurance, bullion and
foreign exchange investment, project mergers and acquisitions,
corporate consulting services and fund investment. Mr. Chan was
the regional manager of American International Assurance Company
(Bermuda) Limited (B & iR (B F:E) BR A A from 1984
to 1992 and senior vice president of Emperor Financial Services
Group (RE£F%EE) from 1992 to 1994. Since then, he founded
Top Gun Investment Limited, his self-financing financial investment
company, in 1994 and was the president until 2013. Top Gun
provides corporate planning and consulting services to enterprises
in listing, project investments (especially in real estate and new
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR

MANAGEMENT
EERGREEEBEE

energy industry), corporate finance and solicitation of business.
From 2013 to date, Mr. Chan founded TIEN Credit Limited and is a
director. This company provides different financial credit services to
institutional clients and corporate shareholders, especially to listed
corporate shareholders. Mr. Chan is also the chairman of the board
and executive director of Hong Kong TIEN Group and the president
and executive director of China New Energy Group Holdings Limited
since 2013, responsible for fund management, including new energy
industry fund and securities investment fund. Moreover, Mr. Chan
also sets up fund management company and industrial merger and
acquisition fund in China.

Mr. Mo Tsz Yuk (“Mr. Mo”), aged 51, was appointed as an
executive director of the Company on 30 January 2015. Mr. Mo
has about 30 years of working experience in banking, corporate
and social public welfare services. He has in-depth knowledge
and exposure in banking, finance and corporate management,
with established extensive and diversified social resources. Mr. Mo
graduated from Zhongnan University of Economics and Law (FA
BT & % K 2. He joined The China State Bank (B8 R R 4R
77) from 1992 to 1997 and was deputy general manager of China
Business Department. From 1998 to 2004, Mr. Mo was general
manager of the fund department of Silver Stream International Co.,
Ltd. (3RZEBEAE R A R]). He was general manager of Teng Long
Group (Hong Kong) Ltd. (BEEEBEEFEABMR A F]) from 2004 to
2007, and was deputy general manager of Henghao Group (E2%
&) from 2007 to 2008. From 2008 to date, Mr. Mo is the chairman
of Human Health Foundation (2 A$BfEFE A © ) and is deputy
general manager of GuangDong Gu Feng Financial Leasing Ltd. (&
R L & fAE AR A A) since 2013 and general manager of North
Power International Co., Ltd. (¥7 /1Z£BIBX B BR A 7)) since 2014.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR

MANAGEMENT
EENGREEEEBE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Mr. Zhang Xianlin (“Mr. Zhang”), aged 61, was appointed as
an independent non-executive director of the Company on 16
December 2008. Currently, Mr. Zhang is the executive director of
China-No1.com. Mr. Zhang graduated from Huazhong University
of Science and Technology with a Master Degree in Business
Administration and a Doctor Degree in Management. He is a
Chinese certified public accountant and senior accountant. During
the period from 1974 to 2007, he served in the senior management
positions in China National Aviation Corporation (Group) Limited
and the Civil Aviation Administration of China. Besides, Mr. Zhang
was a general manager in China National Aviation Company
Limited, a director in Hong Kong Dragon Airlines Limited, the
Chairman of the Board of Supervisors in Air Macau Company
Limited and the Chairman of the Board of Supervisors in Air China
Limited (stock code: 753), a company listed on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong.

Mr. Zhang was also a non-executive director of Cathy Pacific
Airways Limited (stock code: 293), a company listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong, during the period from August 1997 to
May 2005. Mr. Zhang has over 35 years of extensive experience in
enterprise finance and investment management.

Mr. Kwok Hong Yee, Jesse (“Mr. Kwok”), aged 62, was
appointed as an independent non-executive director of the
Company on 8 November 2011. Mr. Kwok is a solicitor and notary
public and is the sole proprietor of Messrs. Jesse H.Y. Kwok & Co.
with substantial previous working experiences acting as solicitor
of the Supreme Court of Hong Kong. He obtained his degrees of
Bachelor of Laws (LLB) and Master of Laws (LLM) in Civil Laws from
the Peking University in the People’s Republic of China. Mr. Kwok
was appointed as a Temporary Magistrate between December
1994 and March 1995, and a Temporary Adjudicator of the Small
Claims Tribunal in July 1998. He is also a Panel Arbitrator. He is
also a member of the Law Society of Hong Kong, the Law Society
of United Kingdom, Singapore Academy of Law and is the Counsel
Member of the Hong Kong Society of Notaries.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR

MANAGEMENT
EERGREEEBEE

Mr. Kwok was an independent non-executive director of China
Infrastructure Investment Limited (stock code: 600), a company
listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, during the
period from August 2005 to August 2012.

Mr. Ho Chun Kit, Gregory (“Mr. Ho”), aged 37, was appointed
as an independent non-executive director of the Company,
chairman and member of audit committee, and member of each
of the nomination committee and remuneration committee of the
Company on 9 February 2015. Mr. Ho holds a bachelor degree of
accounting from the Monash University of Australia and is a member
of the Certified Public Accountants of Australia. He has worked
for several international accounting and business advisory firms
for more than 10 years in providing accounting, auditing, financial,
corporate advisory and corporate restructuring services to listed
companies. He subsequently sets up his own corporate advisory
firm.

Mr. Ho is also an executive director of China Oil Gangran Energy
Group Holdings Limited (stock code: 8132) since May 2013 and an
independent non-executive director of Sunrise (China) Technology
Group Limited (stock code: 8226) since April 2014. Mr. Ho has also
been an executive director of Seamless Green China (Holdings)
Limited (stock code: 8150) for the period from January 2012 to
April 2014. All these companies are listed on the Growth Enterprise
Market of the Stock Exchange.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR

MANAGEMENT
EENGREEEEBE

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Chao Zhengxiang (“Mr. Chao”), aged 62, joined the Group
in 1997. Currently, he is the director and the general manager of
Siping Ju Neng Medicine Industry Co., Ltd. (lUFEEEEAR A
B]). Mr. Chao graduated from Chinese Language and Literature
Department of Siping Normal College. He is a senior economist
and had been recognized as Top Model Worker (43545 )15 &)
of Siping City. He has over 40 years of extensive experience in

corporate operation and management.

Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Chao was the secretary to the
party branch of Siping City Pharmaceutical Factory (P i &) &
%), the deputy director of Siping City Light Chemical Bureau (P4
SEmE(L ), the secretary to the party branch and the director
of Siping City No. 2 Chemical Factory (FUFH 5 —{L T), the
secretary to the party committee and the director of Siping City
Pharmaceutical Factory (K82 %4/), the director of Siping City
Kangle Pharmaceutical Factory (P9 22U 22) and the director
of Siping City Huatai Pharmaceutical Factory (71 i 2 2= S B4 [5,)

Mr. Toni Nurdianto Prabowo (“Mr. Toni Nurdianto”), aged 49,
appointed as Project Manager of PT. Dampar Golden International
(the subsidiary involving in iron sand trading business in Indonesia)
on 14 February 2011 and Director on 18 March 2011. Mr. Toni
Nurdianto holds a Bachelor Degree in Mechanical Engineering from
Sepuluh November Institute of Technology Surabaya, Indonesia,
certified as Project Management Professional from Project
Management Institute, and has over 20 years of experiences in
various industries in Indonesia.

Asia Resources Holdings Limited Annual Report 2015

SREEE

RBHELEE(TREE]D - 625% - N1997F
MAKREE - RAEMNFEEEEFRARE
ERBICIE - REEZZENIYFRIE 2Pt
PYR ARREEMENTERESLSHER
o RAELELCEEERREBBIOTFLEEL
‘%ﬁo

RIERMAREER - BT HREER
FEXHERS OFmEEIREIBE
M¥EmE _(ETREEECHKBE - M
FHRHEREFELZELRME WP HEYE
HEBEBEL I FHERREBIRE

Toni Nurdianto Prabowo % 4% ( [ Toni
Nurdianto 5 % ]) - 49 5% © R 2011 F 2
A 14 B ¥ % 1 /& PT. Dampar Golden
International (R ENE Rt F &P B 5 575 2 Kt
BAR)ZEBKELN2011F3A18HE
Z{EBESE - Toni Nurdiantot £ A ENE
Sepuluh November Institute of Technology
Surabayaté i T 12 B2+ E (7 » B3 Project
Management Institute Z JH B B HE A+
BIRRE - WRHEZETEEB20FLKL



BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR

MANAGEMENT
EERGREEEBEE

Before joining the Group, he was a Project Manager and Manager
of Facilities Operation & Maintenance of INCO Indonesia, Nickel
Mine Company that listed in Indonesia Stock Exchange for the
period from June 2003 to February 2011. He has been Project
Management Development Team Leader for PT. Dok & Perkapalan
Kodja Bahari, the Stated Owned Enterprise of Republic Indonesia
for the period from May 2000 to March 2003, and was a staff for
Secretary of The State Minister of State Owned Enterprises of
Republic of Indonesia for the period from August 1998 to May 2000.

Ms. Mamik Hartini (“Ms. Hartini”), aged 38, graduated from Satya
Widya Tourism High School, in Surabaya, East Java, Indonesia, was
appointed as Office Manager of PT. Dampar Golden International
(the subsidiary involving in iron sand trading business in Indonesia)
on 15 February 2011.

Before joining the Group, Ms. Hartini has been the Sales &
Marketing Manager of PT. Intil and Development Tbk for the period
from March 2007 to February 2011; and as Administration Assistant
of Magnussen Company for the period from May 2006 to February
2007. She was Assistant Sales Manager of a 4 stars hotel at
Somerset Surabaya Hotel & Serviced Residence, an International
Hotel Chain of The Ascott International for more than seven years
up to May 2006.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TRERRE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
PRACTICES

The Company recognizes the importance of maintaining a high
standard of corporate governance with an aim to protect the
interest of shareholders.

The Company has adopted the Corporate Governance Code
contained in Appendix 14 (the “Code”) of the Listing Rules. During
the year ended 31 March 2015, the Company complied with all
applicable provisions of the Code except for the deviation as stated
below:

Code Provision A.1.3

Under Code provision A.1.3, notice of at least 14 days should be
given of a regular Board meeting to give all directors an opportunity
to attend. For all other Board meetings, reasonable notice should be
given. Due to the practical reasons, 14 days’ advanced notifications
have not been given to all meetings of the Board. Reasons have
been given in the notifications in respect of those meetings of
the Board where it is not practical to give 14 days’ advanced
notification. The Board will use its best endeavours to give 14 days’
advanced notifications of Board meeting to the extent practicable.

Code Provision A.2.1

Under Code provision A.2.1, the roles of chairman and chief
executive officer (“CEQ”) should be separate and should not be
performed by the same individual. The division of responsibilities
between the chairman and CEO of the Company should be clearly
established and set out in writing. During the year, the roles of the
chairman and the CEO of the Company were not separated and
were performed by Mr. Chim Kim Lun, Ricky until his resignation
on 11 December 2014. The position of CEO was then taken up
by Mr. Wang Shi on the same date up to his resignation on 23
January 2015. Subsequently, on 30 January 2015, the position of
the chairman of the Company has been taken up by Mr. Huang Yilin,
who also performs the role of CEO.

10 Asia Resources Holdings Limited Annual Report 2015
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TERERB®RE

Code Provision A.6.7

Under Code provision A.6.7, independent non-executive directors
and other non-executive directors, as equal board members,
should give the board and any committees on which they serve
the benefit of their skills, expertise and varied backgrounds and
qualifications through regular attendance and active participation.
They should also attend general meetings and develop a balanced
understanding of the views of shareholders. Due to other business
engagement, certain independent non-executive directors were
unable to attend the general meetings of the Company.

The Directors meet regularly to consider major matters affecting the
operations of the Group. As such, the Directors consider that this
structure will not impair the balance of power and authority between
the Directors and the management of Group and believes that this
structure will enable the Group to make and implement decisions
promptly and efficiently.

THE BOARD

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the
Company and oversees the Group’s business strategic decisions
and performances.

As at the date of this report, the Board comprises four Executive
Directors, Mr. Huang Yilin (Chairman), Mr. Lin Chengdong, Mr. Chan
Shi Yin, Keith and Mr. Mo Tsz Yuk; and three Independent Non-
executive Directors, Mr. Zhang Xianlin, Mr. Kwok Hong Yee, Jesse
and Mr. Ho Chun Kit, Gregory.

The Independent Non-executive Directors of the Company are
persons with academic and professional qualifications in the
fields of accounting and appropriate expertise. They provide
strong support towards the effective discharge of the duties and
responsibilities of the Board. Each Independent Non-executive
Director gives an annual confirmation of his independence to
the Company and the Company considers these directors to be
independent under Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TRERRE

Details of Directors’ attendance records at the Board meetings and &ZEREE2015FE3A31BILEEEES
general meetings of the Company during the year ended 31 March @z M AARIRE A @ FLekF50 1
2015 are set out below:

Meetings Attended/Held

HERSBITERERE

DIRECTORS AGM SGM Board
= BEBFAE BREREIAG By
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Huang Yilin HRMITE (20155

(appointed on 23 January 2015) 123 EZT) 0/0 0/0 4/4
Mr. Lin Chengdong MREER LA 0/1 2/3 11/18
Mr. Chan Shi Yin, Keith PR 55 B 5 A (7R20154F

(appointed on 23 January 2015) 1H23BERT) 0/0 0/0 4/4
Mr. Mo Tsz Yuk BT &R A (20155

(appointed on 30 January 2015) 1A30BERE) 0/0 0/0 3/3
Mr. Chim Kim Lun, Ricky ERlesfE (20145

(resigned on 11 December 2014) 12 811 HEHE) 1/1 3/3 11/11
Mr. Cheung Kai Kwong SREIOE 5 A (FR20154F

(resigned on 20 January 2015) 1 A20HBHT) 1/1 3/3 12/12
Mr. Yeung Yiu Bong, Anthony SR A (720154

(resigned on 20 January 2015) 1 A20H & E) 1/1 2/3 11/12
Mr. Lu Jianling EfRE A (20155

(resigned on 23 January 2015) 18238 &T) 1/1 2/3 12/13
Mr. Wang Shi (appointed on FREA(R20145

11 December 2014 and resigned 12 A 11 BEZFLH

on 23 January 2015) 201541 H23HEHE) 0/0 0/0 1/1
Mr. Sun Sizhi (appointed on FREBELE(HR2014F

11 December 2014 and resigned 12 811 BEZEILH

on 23 January 2015) 201541 H23H &) 0/0 0/0 1/1
Non-executive Director FHTES
Mr. Tong Leung Sang B

(resigned on 4 February 2015) (R2015F2 H4B BHE) 1/1 3/3 14/15

12 Asia Resources Holdings Limited Annual Report 2015
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Meetings Attended/Held
HERE T BITEERE
DIRECTORS AGM SGM Board
== BRREFAE RREBIRE g
Independent Non-executive BIFHTES
Directors
Mr. Zhang Xianlin REME A 1/1 2/3 14/18
Mr. Kwok Hong Yee, Jesse FEHRLEE 1/1 0/3 16/18
Mr. Ho Chun Kit, Gregory A A (120154
(appointed on 9 February 2015) 2HOBREZT) 0/0 0/0 2/2
Mr. Lum Pak Sum MrERR L
(resigned on 1 February 2015) (201552 A1 BEHE) 1/1 3/3 14/15
Apart from regular board meetings of the year, the Board of BRAFEZESeTHeRIN  EF2ER

Directors will meet on other occasions when a board level
decision on a particular matter is required. The Directors receive
details of agenda items for decision and minutes of committee
meetings in advance of each board meeting. The Board of
Directors has reserved for its decision or consideration matters
covering corporate strategy, annual and interim results, Directors’
appointment, succession planning, risk management, major
acquisitions, disposals and capital transactions, and other
significant operational and financial matters. Major corporate
matters that are specifically delegated by the Board of Directors
to the management include the preparation of annual and interim
accounts for board approval before public reporting, execution
of business strategies and initiatives adopted by the Board of
Directors, implementation of adequate systems of internal controls
and risk management procedures, and compliance with relevant
statutory requirements, rules and regulations.

AR ERREHESEEEEMIORTE ZEAM
BRATETEH EENBREFSEHA
R WBRAHEEFERAEZEREREFBR
ZESeIARE EFeRBHERELHE
REE - 2FRTPHEE  EFLE - #E
2 ERERE BEXKRE HEMEARS
ZEEUAREMERLERPBEEE ZRE
LREZE EFQRERATERECTIE
CEZEEEEREEFRTHERA AR AH
BEMHEESTSIE TEFTERAZE
BRBEEHTR - B 2 NEEERE
RERRF  ARETHEBRERE - A
KRB
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER

Under Code provision A.2.1, the roles of chairman and CEO should
be separate and should not be performed by the same individual.
The division of responsibilities between the chairman and CEO of the
Company should be clearly established and set out in writing. During
the year, the roles of the chairman and the CEO of the Company were
not separated and were performed by Mr. Chim Kim Lun, Ricky until
his resignation on 11 December 2014. The position of CEO was then
taken up by Mr. Wang Shi on the same date up to his resignation on
23 January 2015. Subsequently, on 30 January 2015, the position of
the chairman of the Company has been taken up by Mr. Huang Yilin,
who also performs the role of CEO.

The Directors meet regularly to consider major matters affecting the
operations of the Group. As such, the Directors consider that this
structure will not impair the balance of power and authority between
the Directors and the management of Group and believes that this
structure will enable the Group to make and implement decisions
promptly and efficiently.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF
DIRECTORS

Non-executive Directors of the Company including Independent
Non-executive Directors, are appointed for terms of three years. In
addition, all Directors are subject to retirement by rotation and re-
election at the annual general meeting pursuant to the Bye-laws of
the Company.

According to the Company’s Bye-laws, any Director appointed
by the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office until the first
general meeting of Members after his appointment and be subject
to re-election at such meeting; and any Director appointed by the
Board as an addition to the existing Board shall hold office only until
the next following annual general meeting of the Company and shall
then be eligible for re-election.

Asia Resources Holdings Limited Annual Report 2015
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CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT OF THE DIRECTORS

The Directors are continually encouraged to update themselves with

legal and regulatory developments, and the business and market

changes to facilitate the discharge of their responsibilities.

All Directors are requested to provide the Company with their

respective training records pursuant to the Code.

EECHESRERE

ARAFHBERBES THREN LD REE
BRAREBEMISEE e EREET
HEE-

B

RIEHTR - 2 REFANAR ARG
& B2 IR -

During the year, the Directors have confirmed their participation in ~ FR » EEEHER > U NAKRSEBHETH
appropriate continuous professional development activities by ways &t B{THEMS MBS HEETLHRE
of attending seminars or self-reading set out below: -

DIRECTORS Attending seminars Self-reading

Bz HEHHE BTHE

Executive Directors HES

Mr. Huang Yilin (appointed on 23 January 2015) BRI (1201561 A23HER(T) / 4

Mr. Lin Chengdong MHRLE = /

Mr. Chan Shi Yin, Keith (appointed on 23 January 2015) BB R4 (R201551 A3 REZRH) / /

Mr. Mo Tsz Yuk (appointed on 30 January 2015) RFEEE (201561 AS0REE) / /

Mr. Chim Kim Lun, Ricky (resigned on 11 December 2014)  E&I&%4 (2014512 A11HEHT) / /

Mr. Cheung Kai Kwong (resigned on 20 January 2015) FEOLEA (201551 B20BET) / /

Mr. Yeung Yiu Bong, Anthony (resigned on 20 January 2015) 121835 4 (R2015%1 A20REHT) / /

Mr. Lu Jianling (resigned on 23 January 2015) ERBERA(1201561 A23BET) / /

Mr. Wang Shi (appointed on 11 December 2014 and TREE(R2014E12A 11 BEZAT

resigned on 23 January 2015) TH201561 A23ABHE) / /
Mr. Sun Sizhi (appointed on 11 December 2014 and BREERA(R014E12 AN BER
resigned on 23 January 2015) TR2015%1 A23AFHT) / /

Non-executive Director ¥unEE

Mr. Tong Leung Sang (resigned on 4 February 2015) SR (R015%E2 A4REHT) / /

Independent Non-executive Directors BUFHTES

Mr. Zhang Xianlin REMEE / /

Mr. Kwok Hong Yee, Jesse PEZRE / /

Mr. Ho Chun Kit, Gregory (appointed on 9 February 2015) {5 t (1201562 OB EZ () / /

Mr. Lum Pak Sum (resigned on 1 February 2015) HEREE(R2015F2F1BE) / /

DHNERERBRAT 2015FFR
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee of the Company comprises three
Independent Non-executive Directors and one Executive Director,
and is currently chaired by Mr. Kwok Hong Yee, Jesse.

Its primary objectives include reviewing the structure, size and
composition of the Board, identifying individuals suitably qualified
to become Board members, assessing the independence
of Independent Non-executive Directors and making
recommendations to the Board on relevant matters relating to the
appointment or re- appointment of Directors.

The Nomination Committee held 5 meetings during the year ended
31 March 2015.

REEES
ARAREZZECHIBBIUIFNTESER
—BRITEFHEK - REHRFERTEEE
ES
REZBEZIBFREEERIESTER
B RRNAEK WERBREERAKE
BEEeRBZALT  FHEBUFATESZ
BYMEAEERENZTTEZTZREER
MEEFSRHEERER

15F3A31BILFE RBREEE
E%ﬁS & °

8

The attendance of each member of the Nomination Committee at RIELEE SR ERAEE @3 HELREDN
the meetings during the year is set out below: T
Meetings
COMMITTEE MEMBERS Attended/Held
ZEEMEB BRLE B
Mr. Kwok Hong Yee, Jesse (Chairman) SEXR(LE) 5/5
Mr. Zhang Xianlin REMILLE 5/5
Mr. Chan Shi Yin, Keith (appointed member of FREFE 4 (7201591 A 0B EEZ T A
Nomination Committee on 30 January 2015) RBEZEZEeKE) 1/1
Mr. Ho Chun Kit, Gregory B4 (R2015F2 A9B EZRT)
(appointed on 9 February 2015) 0/0
Mr. Chim Kim Lun, Ricky ERlaE & E(R20145F12 A11BEHT)
(resigned on 11 December 2014) 11
Mr. Wang Shi (appointed on TAREA(R2014F12 A 11 AEZEI
11 December 2014 and 201551 A23HEHE)
resigned on 23 January 2015) 0/0
Mr. Lum Pak Sum MR E (7A201552 A1 BEHT)
(resigned on 1 February 2015) 4/4
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DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as
set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules. Having made specific
enquiry of all directors, Directors confirmed that they had complied
with the required standard set out in the Model Code throughout the
year ended 31 March 2015.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS

Under Code provision B.1.1, the Company should establish
a remuneration committee (the “Remuneration Committee”)
with specific written terms of reference which deal clearly
with its authority and duties. The role and function of the
Remuneration Committee include the determination of the specific
remuneration packages of all Directors and senior management
of the Company, including benefits in kind, pension rights and
compensation payments, such as any compensation payable
for loss or termination of their office or appointment, and make
recommendations to the board of the remuneration of non-
executive Directors.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee of the Company currently comprises
three Independent Non-executive Directors and one Executive
Director, and is currently chaired by Mr. Zhang Xianlin.

The Remuneration Committee held 6 meetings during the year
ended 31 March 2015.

ESETZESRS

ARRARERM _ETAR R E$R10FTE 2 T8
TABSETESFRXH 2 BEFA([1REST
A]]) KM EBEEFLABSHE  EF
BRBEEREE2015F3A31H L ERAFE
BB TR ESTRIFTES Z R EIRLE -

EE 25 M

BEBETAMGEXEBA K - ARRIEKILE
BRENAXRERE ZHME R g ([ HM
ZE8g)]) FRAREGERSZEHAER
REBE FHEZEScACKBMERREE
EEREERAATSRERABZHES
BiE  BREDEN - RIKSENREE
T (BRABARNKIEBBRIZTRNZE
8) UYHIFRTEZTZHFMAE=TS(EL
25 e

FHWEESS
ARAZHWEBGRHEEIL BTN
TERR—LRITEF R BRBMEL
AEE -
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The attendance of each member of the Remuneration Committee at
the meetings during the year is set out below:

EFMEE N ERAFEGE L FLHEN
T

Meetings

COMMITTEE MEMBERS Attended/Held
ZREHA BHUE BT
Mr. Zhang Xianlin (Chairman) REMEE(EE) 6/6
Mr. Kwok Hong Yee, Jesse BEXE 6/6
Mr. Ho Chun Kit, Gregory S 4 (R2015E2 AOREEF)

(appointed on 9 February 2015) 0/0
Mr. Chan Shi Yin, Keith BREFE 4 (R2015F1 A0RBER T A

(appointed member of Remuneration Committee  HMEE @K E)

on 30 January 2015) 1/1
Mr. Chim Kim Lun, Ricky ERl&E LA (R20145E12 811 BEHE)

(resigned on 11 December 2014) 2/2
Mr. Wang Shi (appointed on 11 December 2014  E A4 (H20145F12 411 BEZEL

and resigned on 23 January 2015) M2015%F1 A23 A BHE) 0/0
Mr. Lum Pak Sum (resigned on 1 February 2015)  # a7k 5% 4 (7201552 81 HEHE) 5/5

The major roles and functions of the Remuneration Committee
include:

1. To make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
policy and structure for all remuneration of Directors and
senior management;

2. To review the remuneration package and recommend
salaries, bonuses, including the incentive awards for
Executive Directors and senior management; and

3. To ensure no Director or any of his associates is involved in
deciding his own remuneration.

The Remuneration Committee has considered and reviewed the
existing terms of the appointment letters of the Directors with
reference to the factors including salaries paid by comparable
companies, time commitment and responsibilities of the Directors,
employment conditions elsewhere in the Company and desirability
of performance-based remuneration. The Remuneration Committee
considers that the existing terms of the appointment letters of the
Executive and Non-executive Directors, including Independent
Non-executive Directors are fair and reasonable. Details of the
remuneration policy of the Directors are set out on page 38 of this
report.

Asia Resources Holdings Limited Annual Report 2015
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee of the Company comprises three Independent
Non-executive Directors. During the year, Mr. Lum Pak Sum was
the chairman until his resignation on 1 February 2015, and was
subsequently chaired by Mr. Ho Chun Kit, Gregory with effect from
9 February 2015.

The Audit Committee shall meet at least twice a year. The minutes
of the Audit Committee meetings were kept by the Company
Secretary. The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to review
and supervise the financial reporting process and internal control
system of the Group. The Audit Committee held 2 meetings during
the year ended 31 March 2015.

During the year, the Audit Committee has reviewed with
management the accounting standards and practices adopted by
the Group, and discussed auditing, internal control and financial
reporting matters including the Group’s audited financial statements
of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2014 and the unaudited
financial statements for the six months ended 30 September 2014
respectively, In June 2015, the Audit Committee reviewed the
Group’s audited financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2015 prior to recommending them to the Board for approval.

The attendance of each member of the Audit Committee at the
meetings during the year is set out below:

BEREES

RRABZEREZEGRIESEZBLIENTE
BE-FREFAEMBRLE BEER
2015F2 A1HEHE - & - B2015F2AH9
B mAEETERTER-

ERZECEFTARLRIT2NEE - B
ZEe e THARARMERT BERZ
BerIBRELAEMREBANER 2K
R R ARPEIEHE - BEXEZ8E€RE
Z2015F3A31HILFEARIT2NGH ©

FN - BEZZESCHEREFRNAEEIK
M et ERIRER - WHEZ - NIRRT
IO BERRERE (DB EAEBEEE2014
FIANHIEFE L EEZYBRERER
20149 H30R LA A 2 REEZ I B
RIETTR - N2015F68 - ERELE S
EHNAEBEEHE2015F3A3IBLEFEZE
BB HRERE  FRAESRHESEHE
ZER o

BEERZBENBRAFE R FE LN

Meetings
COMMITTEE MEMBERS Attended/Held
ZEEHE BEHE BT
Mr. Ho Chun Kit, Gregory (Chairman) A& (£ E)

(appointed on 9 February 2015) (FA2015F2 BOHEZ ) 0/0
Mr. Zhang Xianlin REMEE 2/2
Mr. Kwok Hong Yee, Jesse FEFEILE 2/2
Mr. Lum Pak Sum (resigned on 1 February 2015)  #EFR4E 4 (2015452 A1 B BHE) 2/2

NERERERAT 2015FF 5k
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AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

During the year ended 31 March 2015 under review, the
remuneration paid to the Company’s auditors, Messrs. HLB
Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited, is set out as follows:

Services rendered

¥ BB BN <=

RETEIEE 7 E E2015FE3A31HIEFEER -
ENAARZEMBESAMELHBREA
RlZBEHHNT -

Fees paid/payable

Frig AR 75 gt/ ENER
HK$’000

FET

Audit services ZEURTS 980
Non-audit services (Note) IEZERBRTE (HaE) 560

Note: The Audit Committee is of the view that the auditors independence was not
affected by the provision of these non-audit related services during the year
ended 31 March 2015.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility to prepare financial
statements for each financial year which give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Group. In preparing the accounts
for the year ended 31 March 2015, the Directors have adopted
suitable accounting policies which are pertinent to its operations
and relevant to the financial statements, made judgements and
estimates that are prudent and reasonable, and have prepared the
accounts on the going concern basis.

INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK
MANAGEMENT

The Board is responsible for overseeing the Company’s system of
internal control.

To facilitate the effectiveness and efficiency of operations and
to ensure compliance with relevant laws and regulations, the
Group emphasizes on the importance of a sound internal control
system which is also indispensable for mitigating the Group’s risk
exposures. The Group’s system of internal control is designed to
provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against material
misstatement or loss and to manage and eliminate risks of failure in
operational systems and fulfillment of the business objectives.
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The internal control system is reviewed on an ongoing basis by
the Board in order to make it practical and effective in providing
reasonable assurance in relation to protection of material assets
and identification of business risks. The Board is satisfied that,
based on information furnished to it and on its own observations,
the present internal controls of the Group are satisfactory.

The Group is committed to the identification, monitoring and
management of risks associated with its business activities and has
implemented a practical and effective control system which includes
a defined management structure with limits of authority, a sound
cash management system and periodic review of the Group’s
performance by the Audit Committee and the Board.

The Board has conducted review of the effectiveness of the system
of internal control and is of the view that the system of internal
control adopted for the year ended 31 March 2015 is sound and is
effective to safeguard the interests of the shareholders’ investment
and the Company’s assets.

COMPANY SECRETARY’S TRAINING

During the year ended 31 March 2015, Ms. Leung Lai Si, Rosena
and Mr. Cheng Mei Chau were the company secretary of the
Company (“Company Secretary”). Mr. Law Ho Ming has been
the Company Secretary since 23 January 2015. All of them have
received no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training to
refresh their skills and knowledge.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Convening a Special General Meeting

Shareholders holding not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital
of the Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings
can send a written request to the Board or the Secretary of the
Company to request a Special General Meeting (“SGM”).

The written request should be deposited at the principal place
of business of the Company at Unit 4312, 43/F., COSCO Tower,
183 Queen’s Road Central, Hong Kong, for the attention of the
Company Secretary.
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The written request must state the resolution(s), accompanied by a
statement of the matters referred in the proposed resolution(s) and
signed by the shareholders concerned.

The request will be verified with the Company’s share registrar and
upon its confirmation that the request is proper and in order, the
Company will convene a SGM within twenty-one (21) days of the
deposit of the request. The actual SGM shall be held within two (2)
months after the deposit of the written request.

Making Proposals at Shareholders’ Meeting

Shareholder can send a written request to the Board or the
Secretary of the Company to make proposal(s) at a shareholders’
meeting.

The written request must state the resolution(s), accompanied by a
statement of the matters referred in the proposed resolution(s) and
signed by the shareholder concerned.

The written request should be deposited with the Company at its
principal place of business at Unit 4312, 43/F., COSCO Tower, 183
Queen’s Road Central, Hong Kong, at least fourteen (14) clear days
before the date of the shareholders’ meeting.

The request will be verified with the Company’s share registrar and
upon its confirmation that the request is proper and in order, the
Company Secretary will ask the Board to include the proposed
resolution(s) in the agenda for the shareholders’ meeting.

Procedures for nomination of Directors for election

The procedures for shareholders to propose a person for
election as a Director are available on the Company’s website at
http://www.asiaresources899.com.
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AMENDMENT TO CONSTITUTIONAL
DOCUMENT

During the year ended 31 March 2015, there were no significant
changes to the Company’s constitutional document.

COMMUNICATION WITH
SHAREHOLDERS

The Company discloses relevant information to shareholders
through the Company’s annual report and financial statements,
the interim report, as well as the Annual General Meeting (“AGM”).
The AGM allows the directors to meet and communicate with
shareholders.

To further promote effective communication, the corporate website
is maintained to disseminate Company announcements and other
relevant financial and non-financial information electronically on a
timely basis.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT, MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION

AND ANALYSIS
TEREHEEEBNWR DN

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board of Asia Resources Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”), | present
herewith to the shareholders of the Group the annual report and
audited consolidated results of the Group for the year ended 31
March 2015.

RESULTS OF THE YEAR

The year ended 31 March 2015 was a challenging year for the
Group owing to the continuous decline in the selling prices of
intravenous fluid products and further narrowing of profit margin
of the pharmaceutical business. In light of this adverse market
environment, the current board of directors of the Company has
tried its utmost efforts to conduct an overall review of the Group’s
performance and investments.

The current management believed that a drastic overhaul of the
Group’s operations is necessary to safeguard the maximum interest
of the shareholders. As such, in order to improve the overall
operation of the Group in the coming future, during the year, the
Group expanded its property investment business and trimmed
those unsatisfactory business units, including but not limited to the
disposal of the iron mining business in Mongolia on 31 March 2015
and the subsequent disposal of the pharmaceutical business in
Siping, PRC on 12 June 2015.

For the year ended 31 March 2015, the consolidated revenue,
net, contributed from continuing operations (i.e. securities,
children playground and coffee shop) of the Group amounted to
approximately HK$(3,560,000) (2014: HK$18,189,000).

Whilst the Group endeavored improving the financial performance
of the continuing business including the securities, coffee shop and
children playground; however, in vain, because of volatility in stock
market, a net loss was recorded on the securities trading business.
As a result, the Group’s continuing operations reported a gross
loss of approximately HK$3,783,000 for the year (2014 gross profit:
HK$11,002,000).

Apart thereof, the Group recorded a net loss on the discontinued
business of pharmaceutical operation of approximately

HK$35,248,000 for the year ended 31 March 2015.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT, MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION

AND ANALYSIS
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Thus, overall speaking, the Group recorded a loss attributable
to the owners of the Company amounted to approximately
HK$157,152,000 for the year ended 31 March 2015 (loss for the
year 2014: HK$207,068,000). The decrease in loss was mainly due
to the decrease in provision for impairment on intangible asset (the
exclusive right owned by PT. Dampar Golden International (“PT.
Dampar”), an indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Group)
for the year ended 31 March 2015 as compared to the provision for
impairment made in the corresponding year ended 31 March 2014.

Basic and diluted loss per share from continuing and discontinued
operations for the year ended 31 March 2015 was HK$0.084 (2014:
basic and diluted loss per share, from continuing and discontinued
operations of HK$1.04).

BUSINESS REVIEW

The year ended 31 March 2015 was a challenging year for the
Group, the Group continued to consolidate its existing business and
strived to further expand its business in properties investment and
trading of securities and gold.

The Pharmaceutical Operation was further affected by intensified
competition in intravenous fluids market. As a result, selling price
and sales volume both dropped dramatically and the profit margin
of the business had also been reduced notwithstanding cost control
disciplines having been implemented. This segment therefore
recorded an increase in loss.

For the iron sand trading business in Indonesia, the export of iron
sand from Indonesia has been brought to a halt as the purity level
of the iron sand did not meet the minimum requirement under the
Indonesia mining regulation, the Ministerial Regulation No. 1/2014
promulgated by the Indonesian Government which came into effect
on 12 January 2014.

With regards to the Mongolia Iron Mine (“Mongolia Mine”) business,
the latest Mongolian Government’s environmental law is still an
issue, therefore the operating activities of the Mongolia Mine
continued to be suspended during the year. The Mongolia Mine
was subsequently disposed on 31 March 2015 (details refer to
the announcement dated 25 March 2015). A gain on disposal of
approximately HK$2,186,000 was recorded.

Since obtaining ownership of two properties in Hangzhou, PRC on
22 January 2013, the management of the Company has decided
to run a patisserie coffee shop and build an indoor recreation
playground in the vicinity of the properties to enhance their value.
The playground and the coffee shop were officially opened for
business on 23 April 2014 and 15 August 2014 respectively.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT, MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION

AND ANALYSIS
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Since completion of the acquisition of Dalian Properties on 13
June 2014, Dalian property operation continues engaging in the
development of urban land for residential purpose in the real estate
sector and as planned to develop 55 buildings on the said Land
with 21 buildings in the first phase (“Phase 1”) and 34 buildings
in the second phase (“Phase II”). The Phase | has completed
approximately 97% and the Phase Il is expected to commence the
construction work in October 2015.

Apart from consolidating the existing operations, the Group
has further invested in securities and gold trading businesses in
Hong Kong with an aim to generate positive contribution to the
Group. The management will continue strengthening its properties
investment segment and to explore opportunities for business
diversification in order to improve its earning base.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND
ANALYSIS

Pharmaceutical Operation Business (Discontinued
Operations)

Over the last few years, the Group’s intravenous fluids business for
the manufacturing and sales of pharmaceutical products has been
affected by intensified competition in the intravenous fluid market.
Under these circumstances, selling price and sales volume both
dropped dramatically and the profit margin of the business had
also been reduced notwithstanding cost control disciplines having
been implemented. In view of the adverse market conditions, as
announced on 10 July 2014 that management would temporarily
from time to time suspend the production of the pharmaceutical
operation as and whenever there are excess stock levels with a
view to saving running costs. In June 2014, the Company has
suspended the production temporarily pending stock clearance and
improvement in market sales.

As reported in an announcement of the Company dated 10 October
2014, the Company resumed full operation of the Siping production
plant since October 2014 as it considered the recovering marketing
conditions and implemented new cost control policies such as
reducing staff and raw material cost.

However, notwithstanding such measures, the performance of
the pharmaceutical segment continued to decline as the revenue
generated from the pharmaceutical segment decreased from
approximately HK$96.3 million for the year ended 31 March 2014 to
approximately HK$54.7 million for the year ended 31 March 2015
and the loss increased from approximately HK$19.0 million for the
year ended 31 March 2014 to approximately HK$35.2 million for the
year ended 31 March 2015 despite the Company has suspended its
pharmaceutical operations in Siping in February 2015.
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Further to the financial deterioration of the pharmaceutical segment
of the Group, as announced on 25 March 2015, on 25 February
2015 over 150 employees of Siping Ju Neng Medicine filed two
claims against Siping Ju Neng Medicine in the Arbitration Court
of the Siping City Labour Human Resources Disputes Arbitration
Commission*™ (MFEMEBASFHHZMHEE®) respectively
(“Arbitration Claims”) for wages and benefit compensation in the
sum totalling approximately RMB26.4 million. As at 31 March
2015, the outcome of the Arbitration Claims is uncertain. Based
on the information from the Company’s PRC legal adviser, save for
Siping Ju Neng Medicine, the Company and its subsidiaries shall
not be liable to any possible liabilities and obligations related to the
Arbitration Claims. Subsequently, the pharmaceutical business was
disposed on 12 June 2015.

Iron Ore Mine Business

For the year ended 31 March 2015, the segment result of Indonesia
iron sand trading business recorded a loss of approximately
HK$6,409,000 (2014 profit: approximately HK$5,442,000).

The export of the iron sand trading business in Indonesia, has been
brought to a halt as the purity level of the iron sand did not meet the
minimum requirement under the Indonesia mining regulation, the
Ministerial Regulation No. 1/2014 promulgated by the Indonesian
Government which came into effect on 12 January 2014. PT.
Dampar, the indirect non wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group,
continues to maintain a skeleton crew to maintain the functions of
the 8 production lines. As and when the factory for the production
of Direct Reduction Iron (“DRI”) being built by PT. Asia Resources
Sejahtera (“ARS”), another indirect non wholly-owned subsidiary in
Indonesia, is ready to commence production, PT. Dampar shall re-
commence its iron sand production to supply ARS. As disclosed in
the announcement dated 10 October 2014, ARS’s application for
relevant licenses to build and operate the DRI factory, to increase
the iron content (“%Fe”) of the iron sand from 54%Fe to more than
75%Fe, is being delayed due to the recent Indonesian election and
change of Government. As at 31 March 2015 the relevant building
permit has yet to be granted as further environmental studies
are required under the relevant Indonesia mining law. Meanwhile
the team in Indonesia continues to make preparation for the
construction of the factory and improving the process method by
testing with different raw material mix.
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Whereas, for the business of Mongolia Mine, due to the
environmental issues disclosed previously, the iron mining activities
in Mongolia continued to be suspended in order to minimize
expenses being incurred.

On 25 March 2015, the Group has entered into a conditional sale
and purchase agreement with the purchaser, Mr. Tan Shaliang,
an independent third party, in respect of the sale share of Infinite
Nature Limited (which has a subsidiary company, Tian Sheng
Resources Development Limited, an investment holding company,
and one indirect wholly owned subsidiary, Khuderbold LLC,
a company engages in iron mining business in Mongolia) at a
consideration of HK$1,000,000. The disposal of the Mongolia Mine
business was subsequently completed on 31 March 2015 (details of
which were disclosed in the announcement dated 25 March 2015).

A gain on disposal of approximately HK$2,186,000 was recorded
for the year ended 31 March 2015.
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Property Business

Hangzhou Properties

Since obtaining ownership of two properties in Hangzhou, PRC on
22 January 2014, the management of the Company has decided
to run a patisserie coffee shop and build an indoor recreation
playground in the vicinity of the properties to enhance their value.
The official opening of the playground and the coffee shop for
business were on 23 April 2014 and 15 August 2014 respectively.

Since the opening, the businesses recorded operational loss of
approximately HK$2,900,000 for the year ended 31 March 2015,
mainly due to lack of retail customers and also currently the building
management are lethargic with their leasing programme of other
empty units in order to increase customer circulation of the mall
contributed to the operational loss. The management of the self-run
operations are looking at alternatives to reduce the operational loss.
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Dalian Properties

On 11 March 2014, the Group has entered into a conditional sale
and purchase agreement to acquire the entire issued share capital
in Utmost Creation Holdings Limited (“Utmost”). The main asset
of Utmost is the entire equity interest in a China subsidiary, Dalian
Chuanghe Landmark Co. Ltd.** (K:EAIFME AR A A]) (“Dalian
Chuanghe”), the major asset of Dalian Chuanghe currently consists
of the land use rights of two parcels of adjoining land located in
Beibu District, Jinshitan, Jinzhou New District, Dalian City, the
PRC* (R&E&M¥EeAMILEE), with a total area of
approximately 111,642 square metres. The acquisition was
completed on 13 June 2014,
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Since completion of the acquisition, Dalian Chuanghe continues
engaging in the development of urban land for residential purpose
in the real estate sector and as planned to develop 55 buildings on
the said Land with 21 buildings in the first phase (“Phase I”) and 34
buildings in the second phase (“Phase II”).

Currently, Phase | is still under development. The name of the
property under development is “Xin Tian Jia Yuan** ({0 H{E%0)”,
located at Ziteng West Street, Dalian Economic and Technological
Development Zone** (KRB ITFIZER). In April 2014, the pre-
sale permit for Phase | with a saleable area of 42,541.50 square
metres had been obtained. As at 31 March 2015, Dalian Chuanghe
had completed as to approximately 97% of the construction
of Phase I. Originally Phase | was expected to be completed in
October 2014, however, as the current market environment is still
not promising, it is unable to meet its expected schedule. Moreover,
the sales market is unstable, in order to reduce construction
costs, and the progress of the project has been slowed down. As
such, completion of Phase | project is expected to be temporarily
further extended to October 2015. Dalian Chuanghe will adjust the
construction progress at a later stage according to market changes.
Up to 31 March 2015, Dalian Chuanghe achieved contracted sales
of approximately RMB45.8 million (of which pre-sale deposits of
approximately RMB29.0 million were received), and contracted
gross saleable area of approximately 6,862 square metres.
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Regarding Phase I, which was planned to construct with a total
of 34 buildings with estimated saleable area of 69,000 square
metres, the expected commencement date and completion date
of construction have also been further postponed to October 2015
and October 2017 respectively.

Accordingly, the Dalian operation segment recorded a loss of
approximately HK$8,503,000 for the year ended 31 March 2015.
The loss was mainly comprised of operation and administrative
expenses.

Securities and Other Trading Business

During the year, further opportunities have arisen to allow the
Group to conduct trades in gold bullion. The Board believes these
opportunities as minor diversification from the Group’s investments
in the stock market, and that trading in gold bullion added additional
contribution of approximately HK$2,240,000 to the Group. The
Board believes the investment in the stock market as well as the
trading in gold bullion to be relatively short-term investments.

For the security trading business, due to the volatility in
stock market during the year, a gross loss of approximately
HK$3,840,000 was recorded for the year ended 31 March 2015
(2014 gross profit: approximately HK$1,161,000). Dividend income
of approximately HK$410,000 was also received during the year.

Others

During the year under review, the Group paid interest for convertible
notes of approximately HK$26,096,000 (2014: HK$2,926,000) and
incurred non-cash finance costs of approximately HK$36,779,000
(2014: HK$3,666,000) as a result of the imputed interests on the
convertible notes issued.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

Shareholders’ equity increased to approximately HK$1,080,938,000
as at 31 March 2015 from approximately HK$821,320,000 as at 31
March 2014. As at 31 March 2015, the short term interest bearing
debts to shareholders’ equity was approximately 5.6% (as at 31
March 2014: approximately 7.7%).
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CONVERTIBLE NOTES
(1) 2013 Convertible Notes

Reference is made to the announcements of the Company
dated 15 August 2013, 24 October 2013, 15 November
2013 and 10 October 2014 and the circular dated 16
September 2013 relating to the placing of convertible notes
in an aggregate principal amount of HK$535,500,000 under
specific mandate (the “2013 CN Placing”). The 2013 CN
Placing was completed in two tranches on 24 October 2013
and 15 November 2013 respectively (the “2013 Convertible
Notes”).

Reference is also made to the announcement of the
Company dated 10 October 2014, the maximum net
proceeds from the 2013 CN Placing of approximately
HK$532,400,000 was applied as intended and utilized as to
HK$450,000,000 for the acquisition of real estate investment
as detailed in the Company’s circular dated 26 May 2014;
approximately HK$63,000,000 as refundable deposit for
a real estate investment as detailed in the Company’s
announcement dated 24 June 2014; and the remaining
amount has been utilised as working capital of the Group.

Holders of the HK$535,500,000 convertible notes due
2015 - Tranche 1 convertible notes with the principal amount
of HK$185,500,000 had been fully converted during the
financial year ended 31 March 2014.

During the year under review, the holders of the
HK$535,500,000 convertible notes due 2015 — Tranche 2
5% per annum coupon rate convertible notes with the
principal amount of HK$350,000,000 (the “Tranche 2 — 2013
Convertible Notes”) had fully converted the outstanding
aggregate total of the principal amount of HK$77,450,000
into 221,285,715 ordinary shares with par value of HK$0.25
at a conversion price of HK$0.35.
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Placing of 2014 Convertible Notes

On 11 July 2014, the Company and Kingston Securities
Limited entered into the placing agreement in relation to the
placing of the convertible notes up to an aggregate principal
amount of HK$608,000,000 (the “2014 CN Placing”),
comprising the first tranche of convertible notes with the
principal amount of HK$190,000,000 (“Tranche 1 — 2014
Convertible Notes”), the second tranche of convertible notes
with the principal amount of HK$190,000,000 (“Tranche 2 —
2014 Convertible Notes”) and the third tranche of convertible
notes with the principal amount of HK$228,000,000
(“Tranche 3 — 2014 Convertible Notes”) (collectively, the
“2014 Convertible Notes”) on a best effort basis to not
fewer than six independent placees. The conversion price
is HK$0.38 per conversion share (subject to adjustment
in accordance with the terms and conditions of the 2014
Convertible Notes).

Each of the 2014 Convertible Notes shall bear interest at a
rate of 12% per annum from the date of issue payable semi-
annually in arrears.

As disclosed in the 2014 CN Placing circular dated 8
September 2014, (i) the Directors considered that the
issue of the Convertible Notes would provide the Company
with immediate funding without immediate dilution of the
shareholding of the then existing Shareholders and, if
the conversion rights attached to the Convertible Notes
are exercised, the capital base of the Company would
be enlarged; (ii) the closing price per Share as quoted on
the Stock Exchange on the date of the 2014 CN Placing
Agreement was HK$0.36; (iii) the net proceeds raised per
Conversion Share was approximately HK$0.374; and (iv)
the maximum net proceed from the 2014 CN Placing was
approximately HK$599,000,000 which was intended to be
used as to approximately HK$450,000,000 for potential
future investments, including real estate projects; and the
remaining amount of approximately HK$149,000,000 for the
general working capital of the Group (including the possible
use for payment of the interest under the 2014 Convertible
Notes) and/or investment in any potential business
opportunities, including investments in securities and areas
related to the real estate sector, if any, arising from time to
time.
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The 2014 CN Placing was completed in three tranches on
15 October 2014, 22 October 2014 and 29 October 2014
respectively at a conversion price of HK$0.38.

During the year under review, (i) holders of Tranche 1 —
2014 Convertible Notes had converted an aggregate total of
the principal amount of HK$130,602,200 into 343,690,000
ordinary shares; (i) holders of Tranche 2 — 2014 Convertible
Notes had converted an aggregate total of the principal
amount of HK$133,000,000 into 350,000,000 ordinary
shares; and (iii) holders of Tranche 3 — 2014 Convertible
Notes had converted an aggregate total of the principal
amount of HK$106,400,000 into 280,000,000 ordinary
shares.

As at 31 March 2015, the principal amount of Tranche
1, Tranche 2 and Tranche 3 of 2014 Convertible Notes
outstanding were HK$59,397,800, HK$57,000,000 and
HK$121,600,000 respectively.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL
RESOURCES

As at 31 March 2015, the Group had total assets of approximately
HK$1,663,281,000 (2014: HK$1,007,677,000) which was
financed by current liabilities of approximately HK$298,297,000
(2014: HK$85,689,000), non-current liability of approximately
HK$275,613,000 (2014: HK$4,837,000), non-controlling interests
of approximately HK$8,433,000 (2014: HK$95,831,000) and
shareholders’ equity of approximately HK$1,080,938,000 (2014:
HK$821,320,000).

The Group’s current ratio as at 31 March 2015 was approximately
4.10 (2014: 6.18) and gearing ratio,
borrowings divided by the shareholders’ equity was approximately
5.6% (2014: 7.7%). The total outstanding borrowings of the Group
as at 31 March 2015 were denominated in Renminbi, about 100%

representing the total

(2014: 95.2%) borrowings was interest-bearing with variable rates
while interest of the remaining balances was calculated on fixed
interest rates.
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As at 31 March 2015, assets classified as held for sale including
certain buildings with aggregate carrying amount of approximately
HK$22,765,000, plant and machinery amounting to approximately
HK$12,940,000, land use rights amount of approximately
HK$3,911,000 had been pledged to secure banking facilities
granted to the Group.

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND
DISPOSALS DURING THE YEAR

Acquisition

Yantian Properties

On 24 June 2014, the Group entered into an agreement with ISH
Yanbao Logistics (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd.** (434 = FEGR Y57 GRII)
AR AT as vendor, to purchase the property at a consideration
of approximately RMB100 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$126 million).

The property to be acquired represents 46 units of Kingma
Information Logistic Park which is situated at Depot No. 2, 3rd Road
and Shenyan Road Intersect, Inner Logistic Park, Yantian Bonded
Area, Yantian District, Shenzhen City, the PRC** (1 B3 3I| 71 &2 (@
I B AR % 0 ] 1) = 5% % B R B8 B A2 M AR — iR 3E355) wiith a total
saleable area of approximately 8,699 square metres (“Property”).

As at 31 March 2015, the Group had totally paid refundable deposit
of RMB90 million (equivalent to approximately HK$113.4 million)
in accordance with the terms of payment stated in the sales and
purchase agreement. The remaining balance of the consideration of
RMB10 million (equivalent to approximately HK$12.6 million) shall
be paid within 30 days from the date of completion.
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Originally, it was expected that the purchaser, a subsidiary of the
Company, will obtain physical possession of the Property on or
before 30 March 2015 (or another date that is mutually agreed by
the vendor and the purchaser) on which the relevant occupation
permits will be issued; and completion of the acquisition is expected
to be on or before 31 October 2015 (or another date that is mutually
agreed by the vendor and the purchaser) on which the building
ownership certificates will be issued in our favour. However, on
15 April 2015, both the vendor and the purchaser had agreed to
extend the date to obtain physical possession of the Property to
a date falling on or before 31 March 2016; and completion of the
acquisition be extended to be a date falling on or before 30 June
2016.

Acquisition of 15% equity interest of Shenzhen Zhaosheng
Anye Investment Development Company Limited** (RIIBE R
¥R ERREAMRAT) (“Shenzhen Zhaosheng Anye”)

On 9 February 2015, the Group entered into a share transfer
agreement with Shenzhen Kingma Holding Company Limited**
OFYI€ B EE B R AR, relating to the acquisition of 15%
equity interest of Shenzhen Zhaosheng Anye, which intends to
develop the San Lian Project and the Xi Chong Project (details of
which were disclosed in the announcement dated 9 February 2015)
at a consideration of approximately RMB130 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$162.5 million). The acquisition was subsequently
completed on 6 May 2015.
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Acquisition of 100% equity interest of Guangzhou Shi An Ye
Investment Development Company Limited** (M T ZEIRE 2
BABR 2 F) (“Guangzhou Shi An Ye”)

On 17 March 2015, the Group entered into a share transfer
agreement with Shenzhen Shi Zhong Zhan Chuang Zhan
Investment Development Limited** (FYITHEAIEREGRE A7),
relating to the acquisition of 100% equity interest of a PRC
company at a consideration of approximately RMB10 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$12.5 million). The said Guangzhou
Shi An Ye has entered into the property purchase contract on 11
February 2015 with the property developer, being an independent
third party, pursuant to which Guangzhou Shi An Ye agreed to
purchase and the property developer agreed to sell the properties,
which comprised of 10 villas, with a total gross floor area of
approximately 1,739 square metres in a residential complex
located in Zengcheng of Guangzhou City, the PRC. Pursuant
to the terms of the property purchase contract, completion of
the sale and purchase of the properties shall take place on or
before 31 December 2015 (details of which were disclosed in
the announcement dated 17 March 2015). The acquisition was
subsequently completed on 4 May 2015.

Disposal

Disposal of Mongolia iron mining business

On 25 March 2015, the Group has entered into a conditional sale
and purchase agreement with the purchaser Mr. Tan Shaliang,
an independent third party In respect of the sale share of Infinite
Nature Limited (which has a subsidiary company, Tian Sheng
Resources Development Limited, an investment holding company,
and one indirect wholly owned subsidiary, Khuderbold LLC,
a company engages in iron mining business in Mongolia) at a
consideration of HK$1,000,000 (details of which were disclosed
in the announcement dated 25 March 2015). The disposal of the
Mongolia iron mining business was subsequently completed on 31
March 2015.

Save as disclosed above, during the year under review, there
was no other material acquisitions or disposals of subsidiaries or
associates of the Company.
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SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Details of significant subsequent events are set out in note 49 to the
consolidated financial statements.

EXPOSURE TO FLUCTUATION IN
EXCHANGE RATES

Most of the Group’s assets, liabilities and business transactions are
denominated in Hong Kong Dollars, Renminbi, Indonesian Rupiah
and US Dollars which have been relatively stable during the year
ended 31 March 2015. The Group was not exposed to material
exchange risk and had not employed any financial instruments for
hedging purposes.

EMPLOYEE AND REMUNERATION
POLICY

The Group has a total of approximately 352 employees in Hong
Kong, Indonesia, Mongolia and the PRC as at 31 March 2015.
The total cost (staff salary and director emolument) for the year
ended 31 March 2015 amounted to approximately HK$47,514,000.
Remuneration packages are generally structured according to
market situations and individual performance. Apart from the
mandatory provident fund and statutory retirement benefits, the
Group also provides medical benefits and sponsors employees in
different training and continuous education programs.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity to thank
our shareholders and business associates for their ongoing support
and extend our appreciation to our management team and staff
members for their contributions to our achievements in the year.

By order of the Board

Huang Yilin
Chairman

Hong Kong, 26 June 2015

wok

The English translations of the Chinese names or words in this section, where
indicated, are included for identification purpose only, and should not be regarded
as the English translation of such Chinese names or words.
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The directors of the Company present their annual report and
the audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 March 2015.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The
principal activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 45
to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2015 are
set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on pages 54 to 55.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movement in the share capital of the Company during
the year ended 31 March 2015 are set out in note 34 to the
consolidated financial statements.

SHARE OPTIONS

Details of share options are set out in note 37 to the consolidated
financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE
COMPANY

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), the
contributed surplus of the Company is available for distribution
to shareholders. However, a company cannot declare or pay a
dividend, or make a distribution out of contributed surplus, if:

(i) it is, or would after the payment be, unable to pay its
liabilities as they become due; or

(if) the realisable value of its assets would thereby be less than

the aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share capital and

share premium accounts.
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The Company has deficit at 31 March 2015 which comprises
contributed surplus of approximately HK$180,030,000 less
accumulated losses of approximately HK$1,530,312,000.
Accordingly, the Company has no reserves available for distribution
to shareholders as at 31 March 2015.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

During the year ended 31 March 2015, the Group spent an
aggregate amount of approximately HK$4,957,000 on the
acquisition of property, plant and equipment for expansion and
improvement of the facilities of its pharmaceutical and mining
business and aggregate amount of approximately HK$20,970,000
on disposal of property, plant and equipment.

Details of these and other movements in property, plant and
equipment of the Group during the year ended 31 March 2015 are
set out in note 18 to the consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE
CONTRACTS

The Directors of the Company during the year ended 31 March
2015 and up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Huang Yilin (appointed on 23 January 2015)

Mr. Lin Chengdong

Mr. Chan Shi Yin, Keith (appointed on 23 January 2015)

Mr. Mo Tsz Yuk (appointed on 30 January 2015)

Mr. Chim Kim Lun, Ricky (resigned on 11 December 2014)

Mr. Cheung Kai Kwong (resigned on 20 January 2015)

Mr. Yeung Yiu Bong, Anthony (resigned on 20 January 2015)

Mr. Lu Jianling (resigned on 23 January 2015)

Mr. Wang Shi (appointed on 11 December 2014 and
resigned on 23 January 2015)

Mr. Sun Sizhi (appointed on 11 December 2014 and
resigned on 23 January 2015)
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Non-executive Director
Mr. Tong Leung Sang (resigned on 4 February 2015)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Zhang Xianlin

Mr. Kwok Hong Yee, Jesse

Mr. Ho Chun Kit, Gregory (appointed on 9 February 2015)
Mr. Lum Pak Sum (resigned on 1 February 2015)

In accordance with Clause 87(1) of the Company’s Bye-laws, Mr.
Lin Chengdong, Mr. Kwok Hong Yee, Jesse and Mr. Zhang Xianlin
will retire at the Annual General Meeting, and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election as Directors at the Annual General
Meeting.

The term of office of each of the Independent and Non-executive
Directors is for a term of three years subject to retirement by
rotation and re-election at the Annual General Meeting as required
by the Company’s Bye-laws.

None of the Directors being proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming Annual General Meeting has any unexpired service
contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not
determinable by the Group within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

Directors’ Interests in Shares

As at 31 March 2015, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and chief executives in the shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company or any associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (“SFQ”), as recorded in the register maintained by the
Company under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified
to the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies (the “Model Code”)
as set out in the Listing Rules were as follows:

Long Positions in Shares of the Company

EERFETHRAERES
2 R
EERBRD 2B

MR2015F3H31H  EEREFETHAER
AARKEMER B (TEREHFRPE
1EGI([#EH R HE GG ) EXVER) 2 i
HEROEESFPHEEELERARAIR
BRENPEEDEIS2HEEFE 2 E et
AN KBITRE MRS LM ARIES
ETBHFR H2EESFRI([BAESFR ) B
SRR REBREZHMER B ([HZ
Frl) s RoRB T ¢

REQXTRBZHFR

Number of ordinary shares held

BEZEERYA
Total interests
as percentage
Number of of the issued
Personal Family Corporate  share options share capital
Name of director interest interests interests held Total interests (Note 1)
HEBTREZ
BEZBRE BERAM
BEsp AR RiEER DEER #B B (Hrzt1)
Huang Yilin BRAM 57,800,000 = = = 57,800,000 2.08%
Lin Chengdong WHE = = = 8,200,000 8,200,000 0.30%
Chan Shi Yin, Keith RHE 1,200,000 = 26,310,000 = 27,510,000 0.99%
(Note 2)
(Hi2)
Zhang Xianlin REM - - - 1,340,000 1,340,000 0.05%
Kwok Hong Yee, Jesse  HEH - - - 1,200,000 1,200,000 0.04%
Notes: Mt
1. The percentages calculated are based on the total number of issued shares of 1. ZEBALLIBREBEARAGN2015F3A31H 2
the Company of 2,779,390,000 Shares as at 31 March 2015. BTN #281(2,779,390,000 X 1 51 & -
2. The corporate interests in an aggregate principal amount of HK$9,997,800 - 2. NEERFELEEZ2ERELRNBREER

12% coupon Convertible Notes due 2016 (at a conversion price of HK$0.38)
(equivalent to 26,310,000 conversion shares) are registered in the name of
TIEN Credit Limited, a company wholly-owned by Mr. Chan Shi Yin, Keith, a
Director.
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2015, none of the
Directors or the chief executives or their associates had any
interests of short positions in any shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company, subsidiaries or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded
in the register required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO
or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The share option scheme adopted by the Company on 14 January
2002 (the “2002 Share Option Scheme”) had been terminated on
9 August 2011 and a new share option scheme (the “2011 Share
Option Scheme”) was adopted by the Company on 9 August 2011.

2002 Share Option Scheme

As at 31 March 2015, the number of shares in respect of which
share options remained outstanding under 2002 Share Option
Scheme was 3,500,000.
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During the year under review, the details and movements in the REIEEE R @ BE2002E AT 2D %
share options granted under 2002 Share Option Scheme are as BRI  BE RN T
follows:

Number of share options
EREHR
Reclassification
Adjusted  OQutstanding  of categories Granted  Exercised Lapsed  Cancelled  Outstanding
exercise price at 1 April during during during during during  at 31 March
Date of grant  Exercisable period per share 2014 the year the year the year the year the year 2015
20145 0155
ghiaz 4818 ERERIE 3A31A
REEE RS ffE BAAE  ENAR  REREE  RERGE  RERRY  REREH  BARE
(Note 1)
(W)
HKS
AT
Category 1: Directors
8- %%
Chim Kim Lun, Ricky 12 July 2011 12 July 2011 - 11 July 2021 1775 1,400,000 (1,400,000) - - - - -
(Note 2)
Ed&MA) 01 01FTR12AZ
TR128 2021%7R11A
Cheung Kai Kwong 12 July 2011 12 July 2011 - 11 July 2021 1775 400,000 (400,000) - - - - -
(Note 2)
RRkbE)  anE N1ETA12BE
7A128 021ETA1A
Yeung YiuBong, 12 July 2011 12 July 2011 - 11 July 2021 1775 400,000 (400,000) S o S o S
Anthony (Note 2)
REAWT)  anE 0115771282
TR 2021%7R11A
TongLeung Sang 12 July 2011 12 July 2011 - 11 July 2021 1.775 140,000 - - - - - 140,000
(Note 3)
ARENHY)  01E NFTR12AZ
TR 2021%7A11A
Zhang Xianlin 12 July 201112 July 2011 - 11 July 2021 1775 140,000 - - - - - 140,000
REM N11F 011475126%
71R128 21ETA1A
Lum Pak Sum 12 July 201112 July 2011 - 11 July 2021 1775 140,000 - - - - - 140,000
(Note 4)
WERMH)  aNE  01157R108E
T8 2021%7R11A
Totalfor Directors 2,620,000 (2,200,000) = = = = 420,000

ESuit
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Number of share options
BREHA
Reclassification
Adjusted  OQutstanding  of categories Granted  Exercised Lapsed  Cancelled  Outstanding
exercise price at1 April during during during during during  at 31 March
Date of grant  Exercisable period per share 2014 the year the year the year the year the year 2015
o145 2015%
Shizse 4B1B ERERIE 3831R
REEE RS ik BAEE  ENAR  REAEE  RERGR  RERRY  WEREH  BAAR
(Note 1)
(1)
HKS
A
Category 2:
)
Employees 12.July 201112 July 2011 - 11 July 2021 1775 880,000 2,200,000 - - - - 3,080,000
(Note 2)
5 M1 N157A120E (Hit2)
7R128 021E7A11A
Total for Employees 880,000 2,200,000 S S S - 3,080,000
[ER s
Category 3:
Bh=:
Other affiiates ~ 12.July 201112 July 2011 - 11 July 2021 1775 80,000 - - - 80,000 - -
EHBBAT  01E  011E7A1AZ
7R128 2021%7A11A
Total for Other 80,000 S S - 80,000) - -
ffiliates
EfBBA LA
Total for all 3,580,000 = = = (80,000) - 3,500,000
categories
BRI
DHNERERBRAT 2015FFR
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Notes: (1) The closing price of the Company’s shares quoted on the Stock

Exchange on the date of grant was HK$0.071 (adjusted to HK$1.775
upon capital reorganization became effective on 3 June 2013).

(2) Each of Mr. Chim Kim Lun, Ricky, Mr. Cheung Kai Kwong and Mr. Yeung
Yiu Bong, Anthony resigned as a director of Asia Resources Holdings
Limited on 11 December 2014, 20 January 2015 and 20 January 2015
respectively, but they remained as directors of certain subsidiaries of the
group during the year. Therefore, their respective outstanding options
have been reclassified under “Employees” category;

(8) Mr. Tong Leung Sang resigned on 4 February 2015;

(4) Mr. Lum Pak Sum resigned on 1 February 2015.

2011 Share Option Scheme

On 26 August 2014, 15,500,000 share options were granted to
directors and employees under 2011 Share Option Scheme at an
exercisable price of HK$0.352 per share.

On 25 September 2014, an ordinary resolution was duly passed
by the shareholders at a special general meeting of the Company,
approving, inter alia, to refresh the scheme mandate limit under the
2011 Share Option Scheme of the Company adopted on 9 August
2011. The refreshed scheme limit as at 25 September 2014 was
176,286,285.

On 3 October 2014, 59,000,000 share options were granted to

directors and employees under 2011 Share Option Scheme at an
exercisable price of HK$0.52 per share.

Asia Resources Holdings Limited Annual Report 2015
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During the year ended 31 March 2015, the details and movements ~ #; £2015€3 831 B IFFE + RIE20114E
in the share options granted under 2011 Share Option Scheme are g g k=2 D 1% 4~ BERRRE > 2415 R B0

as follows: -
Number of share options
BhEHA
Reclassification
Outstandin% Granted ofcategories Exercised Lapsed  Cancelled Outstandinﬁ
Exercise price at1 Apri during uring during during during ~ at 31 Marc
Date of grant Exercisable period per share 2014 the year the year the year the year the year 2015
0145 015
. . AA18 @wra . . ‘3,;@1 B
RHAE s ﬁﬂﬁﬁ% BAOE  RERRE 08 REATE  REAZN  REREE  BAOE
An
Category 1: Directors
Bl 2%
ChimKim Lun, Ricky 26 August 2014 26 August 2014 - 25 August 2024 0.352 - 6000000 (6,000,000) - - - -
(Note 1)
Edle (i) 14EGANA  N014EBA2BRZNUESALA
3 October 2014 3 October 2014 - 2 October 2024 0520 - 9,000,000 (9,000,000) - - - -
M14E0A3E  2014F10A3AZ2024E10828
Cheung Kai Kwong 26 August 2014 26 August 2014 - 25 August 2024 0.352 - 2,500,000 - (2,500,000) - - -
(Note 1)
bl 1EGANA  N14EBA2BRZAULESA2A
3 October 2014 3 October 2014 - 2 October 2024 0.520 - 8,000,000  (8,000,000) - - - -
M14E0A3E  2014F10A3AZ2024E10A28
Yeung Yiu Bong, Anthony 26 August 2014 26 August 2014 - 25 August 2024 0.352 - 2500000 (1400,0000 (1,100,000 - - -
(Note 1)
HER W) UEGAANA  N14EBA2BAZLESA2A
3Qctober 2014 3 October 2014 - 2 October 2024 0.520 - 8000000 (8,000,000) - - - -
N14E10A3A  014E10A3AE202E10A2R
Lu Jianiing (Note 2) 26 August 2014 26 August 2014 - 25 August 2024 0.3%2 - 200,000 - - - - 200,000
ERE(M0) UEGANA  A14EBA2BAZLESA2A
3Qctober 2014 3 October 2014 - 2 October 2024 0.520 - 8,000,000 - - - - 8,000,000
N14E10A3A  014E10A3AE202E10A2R
Lin Chengdong 26 August 2014 26 August 2014 - 25 August 2024 0.352 - 200,000 - - - - 200,000
iEE 1EGAANA  N14EBA2BAZLESA2A
3Qctober 2014 3 October 2014 - 2 October 2024 0520 - 8,000,000 - - - - 8,000,000
N14E10A3A  014E10A3AE202E10A2R
Tong Leung Sang (Note 3) 26 August 2014 26 August 2014 - 25 August 2024 0.352 S 200,000 S S S S 200,000
okl 1EGAANA  A14EBA2BAZLESA2A
30ctober 2014 3 October 2014 - 2 October 2024 0520 - 1,000,000 - - - - 1,000,000
N14E10A38  014E10A3AE202E10A2R
Zhang Kianiin 26 August 2014 26 August 2014 - 25 August 2024 0.362 S 200,000 S S S S 200,000
REM 014E8A2H 2014583260 F2024E8A25H
3Qctober 2014 3 October 2014 - 2 October 2024 0520 - 1,000,000 - - - - 1,000,000
014E10A38  014E10A3AE202E10A2R
Lum Pak Sum (Note 4) 26 August 2014 26 August 2014 - 25 August 2024 0.352 - 200,000 - - - - 200,000
WERWH) 1EGAANA  A14EBA2BAZNLESA2A
3Qctober 2014 3 October 2014 - 2 October 2024 0520 - 1,000,000 - - - - 1,000,000
N14E10A38  2014E10A3AE202E10A2R
Kwok Hong Yee, Jesse 26 August 2014 26 August 2014 - 25 August 2024 0.362 = 200,000 = = = = 200,000
JER N14E8A28 201458260 F2024E8R25H
3Qctober 2014 3 October 2014 - 2 October 2024 0.520 - 1,000,000 - - - - 1,000,000
M14EI0A3E  014F10A3AE2024E10A28
Total for Directors - 57200000 (32.400,0000 (3,600,000 - - 21,200,000

E34
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Number of share options
EheHA

Reclassification
Outstandin% Granted ofcategories Exercised Lapsed  Cancelled Outstandinﬁ
Exercise price at1 Apri during uring during during during ~ at 31 Marc
Date of grant Exercisable period per share }}420%415:"-1 the year the year the year the year the year 5*20%%1?5
. SO W e
RHRS i '@Bﬁn% HATE  RERRY R REAGE  RERRN  WNEREE  HAOR
g
Category 2
Bz
Employees 26 August 2014 26 August 2014 - 25 August 2024 0.352 - 3300000 7400000  (2,100,000) - - 8,600,000
(Note 1)
& 14ESABA  014FBA%AZANNUEBABA (hit1)
3 October 2014 3 Qctober 2014 - 2 October 2024 0.520 - 14000000 25,000,000 - - - 39,000,000
(Note 1)
DUEIASA  2014FI0A3RZ20UEI0RA (1)
Totalfor Employees - 17300000 32400000 (2,100,000) - - 47,600,000
84
Totalfor all categories 74,500,000 - (5,700,000 - - 68,800,000
HEEREH
Notes: HtaE -
1. Each of Mr. Chim Kim Lun, Ricky, Mr. Cheung Kai Kwong and Mr. Yeung Yiu 1. ERlELE REOLEERBRBHLED AR

Bong, Anthony resigned as a director of Asia Resources Holdings Limited on
11 December 2014, 20 January 2015 and 20 January 2015 respectively, but
they remained as directors of certain subsidiaries of the group during the year.
Therefore, their respective outstanding options have been reclassified under
“Employees” category;

2. Mr. Lu Jianling resigned on 23 January 2015;
3. Mr. Tong Leung Sang resigned on 4 February 2015;
4. Mr. Lum Pak Sum resigned on 1 February 2015.

The closing price of the Company’s shares quoted on the Stock
Exchange on the respective dates of grant of 26 August 2014 and 3
October 2014 were HK$0.345 and HK$0.520 respectively.

Subsequent to the end of the reporting year, a total of 117,000,000
share options were further granted to the directors and employees
under the 2011 Share Option Scheme at an exercisable price of
HK$0.395 per share. The closing price of the Company’s shares
quoted on the Stock Exchange on the date of grant was HK$0.395.
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE
SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed above in respect of the Directors’ interests in
securities and note 37 to the consolidated financial statements, at
no time during the year ended 31 March 2015, was the Company
or any of its subsidiaries, a party to any arrangement to enable
the Directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in, or debt securities (including debentures) of,
the Company or any other body corporate.

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 March 2015, so far as was known to the Directors and the
chief executive of the Company, the following persons (other than
any director and chief executive of the Company) who had interests
or short positions in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under
the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or as
recorded in the register to be kept by the Company under Section
336 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange:

%%ﬁl&ﬁﬁ%ﬁ%Z%

BENREENES 2 EEREATBRE
BEES7ATIREE SN - NA RIS ETRIMER
AIRE E2015%3 31 B 1FF & AL (A i i
MELEIVERNTH  BEARRZES
A EERE A KR Bl (E T Efth ) AR BE 2 R D
HEBEH(BIEES)MER -

FTERRZEBEAR

M2015F3A31H ' MEBEER ARG ZEE
TEABRA  LWTAL(RRAREMNES
FEZEITBAERIIN RARRRGN LIEH
R EE RS SOAR - MAREESRH
EIRPIEXVELE2 R E 35 88 2 & SUIE H #
B RN AR R AREE S &K EE &)
FEIHRATEZELMA L BTHER
Al KB

Approximate
percentage of
the issued share

Number of capital of
issued ordinary the Company
Name of shareholder Capacity shares held (Note 1)
BARAT
2RITREZ
BEZBET BABSH
BREREHE E27) EBRHEAE (Hst1)
Huang Yong Beneficial interest 617,180,000 22.21%
A EnlEAA
Chen Chujia Beneficial interest 280,000,000 10.07%
BRI EnlEAA
Asia Property Finance Beneficial interest 282,920,000 10.18%
Investment Limited (Note 2)
Asia Property Finance EREA
Investment Limited (4752)
Zhan Sheng Qiang (Note 2) Interest in a controlled corporation 282,920,000 10.18%
R (Mat2) REFEGER 2 s
Notes: BiEE
1, The percentages are calculated based on the total number of issued shares of 1. ZEAAWDREBEARARNR20156F3/31HZ
the Company of 2,779,390,000 Shares as at 31 March 2015. BT D #8202,779,390,0000& D5 & -
2. Asia Property Finance Investment Limited is solely owned by Zhan Sheng 2. Asia Property Finance Investment Limited /5
Qiang. BRESRERER -

MNERERERAT  2015FF3|
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Save as disclosed above, the Company had not been notified and is
not aware of any other person who had an interest or short position
in the shares or underlying shares of the Company as recorded
in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to
Section 336 of the SFO as at 31 March 2015.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN
CONTRACTS

There were no contracts of significance to which the Company, its
holding company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which
a Director of the Company had a material interest, whether directly
or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during
the year ended 31 March 2015.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable donations accounting to
HK$33,000 (2014: HK$60,000).

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The aggregate sales during the year ended 31 March 2015,
attributable to the Group’s five largest customers comprised
approximately 18.28% of the Group’s total sales (including
discontinued operations).

The aggregate purchases during the year ended 31 March 2015,
attributable to the Group’s five largest suppliers comprised
approximately 35.26% of the Group’s total purchases (including
discontinued operations) while the purchases attributable to the
Group’s largest supplier was approximately 19.29% of the Group’s
total purchases (including discontinued operations).

At no time during the year ended 31 March 2015, did a director,
an associate of a director or a shareholder of the Company, which
to the knowledge of the directors owned more than 5% of the
Company’s issued share capital, have an interest in any of the five
largest suppliers or customers of the Group.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
THE COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 March 2015, neither the Company nor
any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company’s listed securities.

Asia Resources Holdings Limited Annual Report 2015
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REMUNERATION POLICY

The remuneration policy of the employees of the Group is set up on
the basis of their merit, qualifications and competence. Apart from
the mandatory provident fund and statutory retirement benefits, the
Group also provides medical benefits and sponsored employees in
different training and continuous education program.

The remuneration of the Directors of the Company are decided,
having regard to the Company’s operating results, individual
performance and comparable market statistics.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an incentive
to Directors and eligible employees, details of which are set out in
note 37 to the consolidated financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Bye-laws, or the laws of Bermuda, which would oblige the
Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
shareholders.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

The Company has maintained a sufficient public float throughout
the year ended 31 March 2015.

AUDITORS

The consolidated financial statements for the years ended 31
March 2014 and 2015 were audited by HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng
Limited, which retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
appointment at the 2015 AGM.

A resolution to re-appoint HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited and
to authorise the Directors to fix their remuneration will be proposed
at the 2015 AGM.

On behalf of the Board

Huang Yilin
Chairman

Hong Kong, 26 June 2015
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
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B st F oA R F
Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited

HLB

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
ASIA RESOURCES HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Asia
Resources Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 54 to 191,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position
and company statement of financial position as at 31 March 2015,
and the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section 90 of the
Bermuda Companies Act, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. We conducted our audit
in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to
whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditors
consider internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and the Company
as at 31 March 2015 and of its loss and cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Shek Lui
Practicing Certificate Number: P05895

Hong Kong, 26 June 2015
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

GeBRskAMEEmEBESR

For the year ended 31 March 2015 # % 2015 % 3 A 31 HiFFE

2015 2014
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Hiat FET FHT
(Restated)
(B E7)
Continuing operations BEKEER
Revenue, net WA - FRE 7 (3,560) 18,189
Cost of sales SHE KA (223) (7,187)
Gross (loss)/profit FU8),F (3,783) 11,002
Other revenue H b A 8 4,286 2,918
Other gains H b Wz 9 - 30,931
Gain on bargain purchase EEWE RS 38 93,087 -
Distribution and selling expenses D NMHEER (386) (11,301)
Administrative expenses THHAX (99,955) (101,295)
Provision for impairment loss | A ERERBEEE
on intangible assets (168,342) (275,644)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HE M B A FURES 39 2,186 =
Finance costs Bh & Bk X 10 (36,779) (6,592)
Loss before income tax BRPTS T ATE R 11 (209,686) (349,981)
Income tax At 14 (368) (114)
Loss for the year from TEERFERLCEEK
continuing operations ZEE (210,054) (350,095)
Loss for the year from REECRIEEK
discontinued operations ZEE 15 (35,248) (18,966)
Loss for the year REEEIE (245,302) (869,061)
Other comprehensive income, Hih 2@ - BRELE
net of tax
Exchange differences on translating — #E /GINEREELE 2
foreign operations b =5 4,378 (719)
Other comprehensive income for REFEMEEMEA
the year, net of tax GRS 4,378 (719)
Total comprehensive loss for REERHEIEAE
the year (240,924) (369,780)
Loss attributable to: FEMR 1R
Owners of the Company ZAN/NCIEZ Z DN (157,152) (207,068)
Non-controlling interest FEVE AR 2 (88,150) (161,993)
(245,302) (369,061)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

GeBEskAEMEEERESR

For the year ended 31 March 2015 # % 2015 F 3 A 31 HiFFE

2015 2014
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Hiat FET FHTT
(Restated)
[G==]l))
Total comprehensive loss Eih2mEEE
attributable to: MR
Owners of the Company ZIN/NEIETZ =N (153,526) (209,048)
Non-controlling interest FEEAR (87,398) (160,732)
(240,924) (369,780)
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Loss per share attributable to AATEE AENL
owners of the Company FREE
From continuing and REFEALER
discontinued operations BRIEEK 17
- Basic and diluted —EARREE (0.084) (1.04)
From continuing operations REFEREEL 17
— Basic and diluted —BEAREE (0.066) (0.95)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
e BRI R

As at 31 March 2015 1 2015 4 3 H 31 H

2015 2014
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
HtaF FET FH&IT
Non-current assets FREEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BENEE 18 47,859 117,608
Prepaid lease payments FEHEERE 20 - 3,880
Intangible assets B EE 21 32,727 221,785
Deposit for acquisition of I B e 2 e
equity interest 25 132,013 =
Deposit for acquisition of U B — R FfT B A 7]
a subsidiary IS 25 10,155 135,000
Deposit for acquisition of B EMHE 2 LE
investment properties 25 192,832 -
Deposit for acquisition of WEBTETEEZIRS
fixed assets 25 24,922 -
440,508 478,273
Current assets REEE
Inventories FE 22 3,777 20,010
Properties under development EREPYE 23 733,257 =
Trade and bills receivables B o REBES R
A ES 24 45,347 31,793
Prepayments, deposits and FERHIE - Ze Kk
other receivables H b i U AR X 25 14,508 59,260
Amount due from a FEM — B IEE AR AR R
non-controlling shareholder 218 30 - 596
Tax recoverable AT EI IR - 581
Financial assets at fair value LEREAFEAR
through profit or loss 2B EE 26 5,820 16,327
Bank balances and cash RITHEBRNIRE 27 337,495 400,837
1,140,204 529,404
Assets classified as held for sale PEABENEZEE 16 82,569 =
1,222,773 529,404
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade payables B S e IRFK 28 59,946 13,660
Other payables and accruals H MRS
FE=tE 29 171,337 8,048
Tax payable PR IE 482 114
Amount due to a non-controlling R — 2 FE AR AR R
shareholder 28 30 389 407
Bank borrowings RITEE 32 - 60,438
Short-term interest bearing RHEEEE
borrowings 38 - 3,022
232,154 85,689
Liabilities directly associated with HAYBAERELREZ
assets classified as held for sale BEEERERBzAE 16 66,143 -
298,297 85,689
Net current assets REBEEFE 924,476 443,715
Total assets less current liabilities EE&ERTAESHEE 1,364,984 921,988
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
mE MR R R

As at 31 March 2015 R 2015 4 3 H 31 H

2015 2014
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
k=3 FET TFET

Capital and reserves EARE e
Share capital R& 2R 34 694,848 394,679
Reserves i 386,090 426,641

Total equity attributable to RQAEE AEMN

owners of the company DA 1,080,938 821,320
Non-controlling interest FEEERR R 8,433 95,831
1,089,371 917,151

Non-current liabilities kRnBAE
Convertible notes A = 35 229,289 4,837
Deferred tax liabilities EERIEEE 36 46,324 =
275,613 4,837
1,364,984 921,988

The consolidated financial statements on pages 54 to 191 were  ZE54F 101 B v i RECDHEEZSR

2N =|
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 26 201546 326 H #it /& 54 F 20 BB AT A
June 2015 and are signed on its behalf by: TREEESEE
Mr. Huang Yilin Mr. Mo Tsz Yuk
BRMALE v o e
Director Director
EF EE

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these FEMi 2 AZEHRAMBEHRER 2 —3BH -
consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

RERaBER

For the year ended 31 March 2015 # % 2015 % 3 A 31 HiFFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

ARTREAER
PRC Attributable
Convertible - Share-based statutory tonon-
Share Share Capital notes  payment Special reserve  Translation Accumulated controlling
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve reserve funds reserve losses  Subtotal interest Total
T8k WRe L FER
ke RHEE BARE  RERE  XREBE  BERE EE0RE  ENRE  ZHER Nt EEEE &5t
HK$'000 HK§'000 HK§'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK§'000 HK$'000 HK$000
Th Thn Thn Th Th ThL T T T Th Thn ThL
(note ) (note i) (note i)
(W) (i) (Watii)
At1 Apri 2013 013545 1R 193,937 738,312 = = 7,601 92,926 2,062 29,820 (803,636) 261,022 266,563 517,585
Loss for the year TEEEE - - - - - - - - (07088 (07068 (161993  (369,061)
Other comprehensive income(expenses)  AEEEM2E
forthe year WA/ (i) - - - - - - - (1,980) - (1,980) 1,261 19
Total comprehensive expenses KERRAR R
forthe year = = = = = = - (1980) (207068 (209048 (160732  (369,780)
Capital reorganisation et (198,350) - 198350 - - - - - - - - -
Conversion of convertible notes nto shares T ARZH & AMRS 301399 311,46 - (458050) - - - - - 24450 - 445%
Recognifon of equity componentof AT ARE 52 EXBA
convertiole notes - - - 506,288 - - - - - 506,288 - 506,288
Issue of shares ik 7693 10,770 - - - - - - - 18,463 - 18,463
Lapse of share options BREXN - - - - (1,680) - - - 1,680 - - -
At 31 March 2014 and 1 April 2014 H014E3ASIAR
1454517 304679 1,060,328 198,350 148238 5921 92,926 2,062 27,840 (1,000,024) 821,320 95,831 917,151
Loss for the year TEEEE - - - - - - - - (57159 (157152 (8B150)  (45,309)
Other comprehensive income FERENEE
forthe year WA/(s2it) - - - - - - - 3,626 - 362 752 4378
Total comprehensive incomeexpenses) - AEE2EAA/(%i2)
forthe year &8 - - - - - - - 36% (57150 (15356 T8 (40924)
Conversion of converttle notes into shares FTARZEEAARN 28744 125833 - () - - - - - 34T -
Recognifon of equity componentof AT ARE 2 EABH
convertiole notes - - - 18,091 - - - - - 18,091 - 18,091
Lapse of share opfions ERERH = = = - (116) - - - 116 - - -
Eauity setfled share-oased transactions ~ [ EREE MR AL
35 = = - = 21,590 - - - - 21,590 - 27,590
Issue of ordinary shares upon exercise of 7 BRRERE LR
share options 1,425 2,076 - - (1,495) - - - - 2,006 - 2,006
At 31 March 2015 R015%3831A 694,848 1,188,237 198,350 7,209 31,000 92,026 2,062 31,466 (1,166,060 1,080,938 8433 1,089,371
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
RERRBER

For the year ended 31 March 2015 # % 2015 F 3 A 31 HiFFE

Notes:

(i)

(i

(i)

Pursuant to a special resolution passed at a special general meeting held
on 31 May 2013, the Company effected the capital reorganisation (“Capital
Reorganisation”) which became effective on 3 June 2013 and involved (i)
the consolidation of every twenty-five issued and unissued shares with a par
value of HK$0.05 each into one consolidated share; (ii) the reduction of issued
share capital whereby the par value of each issued consolidated shares will
be reduced from HK$1.25 to HK$0.25 by cancelling the paid-up capital to
the extent of HK$1.00 on each of the consolidated shares to a reduced share
of HK$0.25 each; (iii) transfer of the credit arising from the capital reduction
to the capital reserve account of the Company; (iv) the sub-division of each
unissued consolidated share into five reduced shares of HK$0.25 each.

The special reserve of the Group represents the excess of the nominal amount
of the shares of the subsidiaries at the date of the group reorganisation over
the nominal amount of the shares issued by the Company as consideration for
the acquisition of the subsidiaries.

As stipulated by the relevant laws and regulations for foreign investment in
the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”), the Company’s PRC subsidiaries
are required to maintain two statutory reserves, being a statutory surplus
reserve and an enterprise expansion fund (collectively referred to as the
“PRC statutory reserve funds”), which are non-distributable. The statutory
surplus reserve fund may be used to make up prior year losses incurred
and, with approval from relevant government authority, to increase capital.
The enterprise expansion fund, subject to approval by relevant government
authority, may also be used to increase capital.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these
consolidated financial statements.

Kt

(i

(i)

BIER2013F5 A1 BRITZREFRIAE £
BBZEARER  ARRETRAZMA (TR
ANEMH|) W R2013F6 A3H AR F ()&
—+AKREREEA0.0SBITZEEITRAE
TRR1D & Ot B — IR A OHIR1D ¢ () HIRLE 31T
N Blt BREBOAHBROZEEKER
FHTREHRG ZEHBRA1.008 TEFR
{8 A0.2575 70 Z & 5 A% 45 T B3 1.25 7 JT Hl
ME0.257 7T+ (iii) 18 B IR A B RE &£ 2 i AR
BEARBZEREER  (VVEBRRBITAMK
D17 40 5 AR B AR T E A0.25 74 7T 2 48 HIl R AR

% o

AEBZEHFEENEEEAE BB R
ZBRMEEBHARRERKBHE AR ZMK
BEMETZBNEBELIEE

BhEARKMBE(THE])IIEREEBEE
FERZBE  ARRZFENEARARTL
MIBEERE T A D IRZEEBEBRAESD
REEHRES( B [FEREATRE]) °
AEBBARSUREREL-—FEELEZB
1B WA BT BP P L 2 fB 0L T 1E R
MEARZMA - (bEFRE D AR BEAT AP
BEZBERTIRERIEINERZA -

BEFH 2 ME RZ SR A MR 2 —&F 0
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
RERERER

For the year ended 31 March 2015 # % 2015 % 3 A 31 HiFFE

2015 2014
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
HtaE FExT T
(Restatedg
(&7
Cash flows from operating activities KEZELXB 2HERE
Loss for the year AN S B8
— Continuing operations —FELEER (209,686) (349,981)
- Discontinued operations —E2RIEFETR (35,248) (18,966)
(244,934) (368,947)
Adjustments for: T 7)EIE 2 FEE
Interest income on bank deposits RITTERA B YA (1,364) (1,323
Dividend income R EA (410) (651)
Finance cost A& AR 40,801 11,567
Depreciation of property, plant and ME - BE HITE
equipment 18,277 17,763
Amortisation of intangible assets BB EH 20,716 78,905
Equity settled share base LA 2 45 DARR D
transaction REW X5 27,590 =
Amortisation of prepaid lease TEAH & SRR
payments 119 119
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries EMB AR 2 K (2,186) -
Gain arising from bargain purchase FEBUE WS (93,087) -
Fair value change on financial assets  &iEziH A FEAE Y
at fair value through profit or loss P EEZ AN FEES 703 653
Fair value changes on convertible AR 2
notes NTEEE) - (7,919
Loss on disposal of property, plant  HEWE « BB & &E
and equipment 518 4,101 56
Reversal of impairment loss recognised 2 5 E W BR 2 iR 2 (B
in respect of trade receivables =gzt 4E] 24 (3,756) (3,706)
Reversal of impairment loss H o fE W AR R 2
recognised in respect of other B EEE RO
receivables - (23,012
Provision for impairment loss on E%FEHQEEWZ
trade receivables VEREN SEtat 24 2,199 2,635
Provision for impairment loss on ﬂﬂﬁ?ﬂ@l@ﬂﬁ B
intangible asset 168,342 275,644
Proceeds from disposal of financial HEKEBHARZ
assets through profit or loss WS EEMSRIE 9,804 -
Purchase of financial assets through BB E&IERm AR Y
profit or loss MiaE - (5,298)
Operating cash flows before EEECEBFI 2
movements in working capital BEFENE 53,085 (23,514)
Decrease/(increase) in inventories FERL () 13,878 (2,496)
Increase in property development L E =S| (143,733) —
(Increase)/decrease in trade and Z 2 IR R B E TR
bills receivables (%) (30,068) 4,698
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments, TE{ZIE - %5 RHME
deposits and other receivables WEERCR D,/ (38 0) 41,877 (24,504)
Increase in trade and I ENERRENER
bills payables 0 50,381 2,983
Increase in other payables Eﬁﬁr’éﬁﬁﬁtﬁ\ FEFTE
and accruals 0 158,633 83
Decrease/(Increase) in amount due fﬂﬂléﬁ A% ﬁﬁ ]
from non-controlling shareholders (1 596 (780)
Increase in tax payable Fiﬁﬁél@iﬁﬂﬂ 368 -
Cash generated from/(used in) EEEREL(FTA)
operations Re 38,847 (43,530)
The PRC enterprise income tax paid B oh B 2 FrER - -
Net cash generated from/(used in) e EgEL(FTA)
operating activities & )55 38,847 (43,530)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

RERERER

For the year ended 31 March 2015 # % 2015 F 3 A 31 HiFFE

2015 2014
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
KtaE FExT FHT
(Restated;
(&7
Investing activities RETE
Deposit for acquisition of subsidiaries U BT B A & 2 24 (10,089) (135,000)
Deposit for acquisition of equity W HE RS 2
interest (131,164) -
Deposit for acquisition of investment W EEIRE M 2154
properties (191,592) -
Deposit for acquisition of fixed WEBETEEZIRS
assets (24,762) -
Net cash out flow from acquisition of K 5 YEET B A F 2
subsidiaries ﬁ%mﬁ@%ﬁ (812,574) -
Interest received B ,364 1,328
Purchase of property, plant and Eﬁéﬁ%% B KR A
equipment (4,957) (16,736)
Dividend income AR S A 410 651
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWE - KE &
plant and equipment FAEET1S K1 173 /
Proceeds from disposal of HEMEBARTERUE
subsidiaries 39 989 =
Net cash used in investing activities & EEFTHAIRE & F58 (672,202) (149,755)
Financing activities MEEE
Interest paid SENEESS (30,118) (7,901)
New bank borrowings raised %ﬁiﬁfﬁfﬂiat% 60,929 60,438
Repayment of bank borrowings BEBITEE (60,438) (569,472)
Repayment of short-term interest BRE T EEE
bearing borrowings (3,022) (19,233)
Net proceeds from issue of BT MR BB FUR
convertible notes et 599,748 526,479
Net proceeds from issue of shares BTG TS RORE R - 18,463
Issue of ordinary shares upon Eﬁﬁi%ﬁﬁ{é%’fﬂ T B A
exercise of share options 2,006 -
Net cash generated from RMEEEELE 2R FRE
financing activities 569,105 518,774
Net decrease in cash and cash Ra RRaSEWHRD
equivalents it (64,250) 325,489
Cash and cash equivalents at REY 2 RE KR
beginning of the year ZEY 400,837 73,471
Effect of foreign exchange rate 4N [ 2% 4 ) 22 2
changes 3,320 1,877
Cash and cash equivalents at end RERZIRERIRE
of the year ZEY 339,907 400,837
Analysis of balances of cash and RekBEEEDZ
cash equivalents EER DT
Bank balances and cash IRITEEBRRIRD 337,495 400,837
Bank balances and cash included in st A D18 AR {EHEEE
assets classified as held for sale ZIRITEBRRIR S 2,412 -
339,907 400,837

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these
consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBE|RHE

For the year ended 31 March 2015 # % 2015 % 3 A 31 HiFFE

1.

GENERAL

Asia Resources Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted company
with limited liability. Its shares are listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).
The addresses of the registered office and principal place
of business of the Company are disclosed in the corporate
information of its annual report.

The Company acts as an investment holding company, while
its subsidiaries (hereinafter the Company and its subsidiaries
are collectively referred to as the “Group”) are principally
engaged in the manufacture and sales of pharmaceutical
products and property development in the People’s Republic
of China (the “PRC”), engaged in iron ore exploration,
exploitation and trading operation in Mongolia and Indonesia,
and engaged in securities investment in Hong Kong.

On 24 October 2014, Mr. Huang Yong becomes the
substantial shareholder of the Company.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (HK$), which is the same as the functional
currency of the Company.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”)

In the current year, the Group has applied, for the first time
the following new standards, amendments and interpretations
(“New HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”) that are relevant to its
operations and effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 April 2014. A summary of the new HKFRSs is set out below:

HKAS 32 (Amendments) Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities

HKAS 36 Recoverable Amount Disclosures for
Non-Financial Assets

Novation of Derivatives and
Continuation of Hedge Accounting

Investment Entities

HKAS 39 (Amendments)

HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and
HKAS 27 (Amendments)

HK(IFRIC) - Int 21 Levies

Asia Resources Holdings Limited Annual Report 2015
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2015 # % 2015 F 3 A 31 HiFFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

The application of these new HKFRSs has not had any
material impact on the amounts reported for the current
period and prior years but may affect the accounting for
future transactions or arrangements. The impact of the
application of the new HKFRSs is discussed below.

Impact of the application of HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12
and HKAS 27

The amendments allow a limited scope exception
to consolidation for investment entities. Under the
amendments, if an entity meets the definition of an
investment entity, it is required to measure its interests in
subsidiaries at FVTPL. For subsidiaries that provide services
that relate to the investment entity’s investment activities, the
exception does not apply.

To qualify as an investment entity, certain criteria have to be
met. Specifically, an entity is an investment entity when it:

o obtains funds from one or more investors for
the purpose of providing them with investment
management services;

o commits to its investor(s) that its business purpose
is to invest funds solely for returns from capital
appreciation, investment income, or both; and

° measures and evaluates performance of substantially
all of its investments on a fair value basis.

Consequential amendments to HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27
have been made to introduce new disclosure requirements
for investment entities.

M REEITEBUNE
HER ([ EFBUH®R
HEA ) ZER (&

ERZEME BB M B RE LG A
HEMBEFE 2R 2RI BAER
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SR ZZERAMT

FERERMBREERNF105
ERVBHRELENE12KREE
B ERETR 2 HE

ERTAMREREBEAIRRENEER
RAEARK - REEF - HEBTEK
BER TR HARKESERYF
EARZ A EERKE QR 2%
@ IRHREBER ZREXKIAH

R zMWBARMmE @ A E A G
1B/ e

BEAREREARNEER  BRARN
A5 TG - BBBms - £ATIB
N BRRREER

o B Rk ZHREEERE
& UmEFRERETER
7%

. REREERREEHE AR
BES  MERTREANEE
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. BAVFEELEFERTEERB
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBE|RHE

For the year ended 31 March 2015 # % 2015 % 3 A 31 HiFFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

Impact of the application of HKAS 32

The amendments to HKAS 32 clarify the requirements
relating to the offset of financial assets and financial
liabilities. Specifically, the amendments clarify the meaning
of ‘currently has a legally enforceable right of set-off’ and
‘simultaneous realisation and settlement’. The amendments
require retrospective application.

Impact of the application of HKAS 36

The amendments to HKAS 36 remove the requirement to
disclose the recoverable amount of a CGU to which goodwill
or other intangible assets with indefinite useful lives had
been allocated when there has been no impairment or
reversal of impairment of the related CGU. Furthermore, the
amendments introduce additional disclosure requirements
applicable to when the recoverable amount of an asset
or a CGU is measured at fair value less costs of disposal.
These new disclosures include the fair value hierarchy, key
assumptions and valuation techniques used which are in
line with the disclosure required by HKFRS 13 Fair Value
Measurements. The amendments require retrospective
application.

Impact of the application of HKAS 39

The amendments to HKAS 39 provide relief from the
requirement to discontinue hedge accounting when a
derivative designated as a hedging instrument is novated
under certain circumstances. The amendments also clarify
that any change to the fair value of the derivative designated
as a hedging instrument arising from the novation should
be included in the assessment and measurement of hedge
effectiveness. The amendments require retrospective
application.

Asia Resources Holdings Limited Annual Report 2015
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2015 # % 2015 F 3 A 31 HiFFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

Impact of the application of HK (IFRIC) - Int 21

HK (IFRIC) — Int 21 Levies addresses the issue of when to
recognise a liability to pay a levy. The Interpretation defines
a levy, and specifies that the obligating event that gives rise
to the liability is the activity that triggers the payment of the
levy, as identified by legislation. The Interpretation provides
guidance on how different levy arrangements should be
accounted for, in particular, it clarifies that neither economic
compulsion nor the going concern basis of financial
statements preparation implies that an entity has a present
obligation to pay a levy that will be triggered by operating
in a future period. HK (IFRIC) — Int 21 requires retrospective
application.

Except for the above, the application of these new HKFRSs
had no material impact on the Group’s consolidated financial
performance and positions for the current and prior years.
Accordingly, no prior period adjustments had been required.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBRRME
For the year ended 31 March 2015 # % 2015 % 3 A 31 HiFFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

The Group has not early applied the following
new and revised standards, amendments and
interpretations that have been issued but are not
yet effective:

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments'

HKFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts?

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers®

HKFRS 11 (Amendments) Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests in Joint
Operations®

HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and Investment Entities: Applying the Consolidated
HKAS 28 (Amendments) Exception®

HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 (Amendments)  Clarification of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and
Amortisation®
HKAS 16 and HKAS 41 (Amendments)  Agriculture: Bearer Plants®

HKAS 19 (Amendments)
HKAS 27 (Amendments)
HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28

Defined Benefit Plans: Employee Contributions*
Equity Method in Separate Financial Statements®
Sale or Gontribution of Assets between an Investor and
its Associate or Joint Venture®
Disclosure Initiative®
Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle®
Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle*
Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle®

HKAS 1 (Amendments)
HKFRSs (Amendments)

HKFRSs (Amendments)

HKFRSs (Amendments)

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018,
with earlier application permitted.

2 Effective for first annual HKFRS financial statements beginning on or
after 1 January 2016, with earlier application permitted.

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017,

with earlier application permitted.

b Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014, with
earlier application permitted.

5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016,
with earlier application permitted.

© Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014, with
limited exceptions. Earlier application is permitted.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2015 # % 2015 F 3 A 31 HiFFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduced new requirements
for the classification and measurement of financial assets.
HKFRS 9 was amended in 2010 to include requirements for
the classification and measurement of financial liabilities and
for derecognition.

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 are described below:

All recognised financial assets that are within the scope
of HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement to be subsequently measured at amortised
cost or fair value. Specifically, debt investments that are
held within a business model whose objective is to collect
the contractual cash flows, and that have contractual cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal outstanding are generally measured at amortised
cost at the end of subsequent reporting periods. All other
debt investments and equity investments are measured
at their fair values at the end of subsequent accounting
periods. In addition, under HKFRS 9, entities may make an
irrevocable election to present subsequent changes in the
fair value of an equity investment (that is not held for trading)
in other comprehensive income, with only dividend income
generally recognised in profit or loss.

With regard to the measurement of financial liabilities
designated as at fair value through profit or loss, HKFRS 9
requires that the amount of change in the fair value of the
financial liability that is attributable to changes in the credit
risk of that liability is presented in other comprehensive
income, unless the recognition of the effects of changes
in the liability’s credit risk in other comprehensive income
would create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or
loss. Changes in fair value of financial liabilities attributable
to changes in the financial liabilities’ credit risk are not
subsequently reclassified to profit or loss. Previously, under
HKAS 39, the entire amount of the change in the fair value of
the financial liability designated as fair value through profit or
loss was presented in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBE|RHE

For the year ended 31 March 2015 # % 2015 % 3 A 31 HiFFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

HKFRS 9 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2018, with earlier application permitted.

The Directors anticipate that HKFRS 9 that will be adopted in
the Group’s consolidated financial statements for the annual
period beginning 1 January 2018 and that the application
of new standard may have a significant impact on amounts
reported in respect of Group’s financial assets. However, it is
not practical to provide a reasonable estimate of that effect
until a detailed review has been completed.

HKFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts

HKFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts, describes
regulatory deferral account balances as amounts of expense
or income that would not be recognised as assets or
liabilities in accordance with other standards, but that qualify
to be deferred in accordance with IFRS/HKFRS 14 because
the amount is included, or is expected to be included, by the
rate regulator in establishing the price(s) that an entity can
charge to customers for rate regulated goods or services.

The amendments to HKFRS 14 apply prospectively for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016. The
Directors do not anticipate that the application of these
amendments to HKFRS 14 will have a material impact on the
Group’s consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2015 # % 2015 F 3 A 31 HiFFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

In July 2014, HKFRS 15 was issued which establishes a
single comprehensive model for entities to use in accounting
for revenue arising from contracts with customers. HKFRS
15 will supersede the current revenue recognition guidance
including HKAS 18 Revenue, HKAS 11 Construction
Contracts and the related Interpretations when it becomes
effective.

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity should
recognise revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods
or services to customers in an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled
in exchange for those goods or services. Specifically,
the Standard introduces a 5-step approach to revenue
recognition:

e Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

e Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the
contract

e Step 3: Determine the transaction price

e Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the
performance obligations in the contract

e Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity

satisfies a performance obligation

Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when (or as)
a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when ‘control’ of
the goods or services underlying the particular performance
obligation is transferred to the customer. Far more
prescriptive guidance has been added in HKFRS 15 to deal
with specific scenarios. Furthermore, extensive disclosures
are required by HKFRS 15.

The Directors anticipate that the application of HKFRS 15
in the future may have a material impact on the amounts
reported and disclosures made in the Group’s consolidated
financial statements. However, it is not practicable to provide
a reasonable estimate of the effect of HKFRS 15 until the
Group performs a detailed review.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MR R MY R

For the year ended 31 March 2015 # % 2015 % 3 A 31 HiFFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

Amendments to HKFRS 11 Accounting for
Acquisitions of Interests in Joint Operations

The amendments to HKFRS 11 provide guidance on how
to account for the acquisition of a joint operation that
constitutes a business as defined in HKFRS 3 Business
Combinations. Specifically, the amendments state that the
relevant principles on accounting for business combinations
in HKFRS 3 and other standards (e.g. HKAS 36 Impairment
of Assets regarding impairment testing of a cash generating
unit to which goodwill on acquisition of a joint operation has
been allocated) should be applied. The same requirements
should be applied to the formation of a joint operation if
and only if an existing business is contributed to the joint
operation by one of the parties that participate in the joint
operation.

A joint operator is also required to disclose the relevant
information required by HKFRS 3 and other standards for
business combinations.

The amendments to HKFRS 11 apply prospectively for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016. The
Directors do not anticipate that the application of these
amendments to HKFRS 11 will have a material impact on the
Group’s consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2015 # % 2015 F 3 A 31 HiFFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 Clarification of
Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and Amortisation

The amendments to HKAS 16 prohibit entities from using a
revenue-based depreciation method for items of property,
plant and equipment. The amendments to HKAS 38
introduce a rebuttable presumption that revenue is not an
appropriate basis for amortisation of an intangible asset. This
presumption can only be rebutted in the following two limited
circumstances:

a) when the intangible asset is expressed as a measure
of revenue; or

b) when it can be demonstrated that revenue and
consumption of the economic benefits of the
intangible asset are highly correlated.

The amendments apply prospectively for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2016. Currently, the
Group uses the straight-line method for depreciation and
amortisation for its property, plant and equipment, and
intangible assets respectively. The Directors believe that
the straight-line method is the most appropriate method
to reflect the consumption of economic benefits inherent
in the respective assets and accordingly, the Directors do
not anticipate that the application of these amendments to
HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 will have a material impact on the
Group’s consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBE|RHE

For the year ended 31 March 2015 # % 2015 % 3 A 31 HiFFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 41 Agriculture:
Bearer Plants

The amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 41 define a bearer
plant and require biological assets that meet the definition
of a bearer plant to be accounted for as property, plant and
equipment in accordance with HKAS 16, instead of HKAS
41. The produce growing on bearer plants continues to be
accounted for in accordance with HKAS 41.

The Directors do not anticipate that the application of these
amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 41 will have a material
impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements as
the Group is not engaged in agricultural activities.

Amendments to HKAS 19 Defined Benefit Plans:
Employee Contributions

The amendments to HKAS 19 clarify how an entity should
account for contributions made by employees or third
parties to defined benefit plans, based on whether those
contributions are dependent on the number of years of
service provided by the employee.

For contributions that are independent of the number
of years of service, the entity may either recognise the
contributions as a reduction in the service cost in the period
in which the related service is rendered, or to attribute them
to the employees’ periods of service using the projected unit
credit method; whereas for contributions that are dependent
on the number of years of service, the entity is required to
attribute them to the employees’ periods of service.

The Directors do not anticipate that the application of these
amendments to HKAS 19 will have a significant impact
on the Group’s consolidated financial statements as the
Group’s does not have any defined benefit plans.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2015 # % 2015 F 3 A 31 HiFFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

Amendments to HKAS 27 Equity Method in
Separate Financial Statements

The amendments allow an entity to account for investments
in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates in its separate
financial statements

o At cost;

° In accordance with HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments
(or HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement for entities that have not yet adopted
HKFRS 9); or

o Using the equity method as described in HKAS 28
Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures.

The accounting option must be applied by category of
investments.

The amendments also clarify that when a parent ceases to
be an investment entity, or becomes an investment entity, it
shall account for the change from the date when the change
in status occurred.

In addition to the amendments to HKAS 27, there are
consequential amendments to HKAS 28 to avoid a potential
conflict with HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements
and to HKFRS 1 First time Adoption of Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards.

The Directors do not anticipate that the application of these
amendments to HKAS 27 will have a material impact on the
Group’s consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBE|RHE

For the year ended 31 March 2015 # % 2015 % 3 A 31 HiFFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 Sale or
Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture

Amendments to HKAS 28:

. The requirements on gains and losses resulting from
transactions between an entity and its associate or
joint venture have been amended to relate only to
assets that do not constitute a business.

o A new requirement has been introduced that gains or
losses from downstream transactions involving assets
that constitute a business between an entity and its
associate or joint venture must be recognised in full in
the investor’s financial statements.

° A requirement has been added that an entity needs to
consider whether assets that are sold or contributed
in separate transactions constitute a business and
should be accounted for as a single transaction.

Amendments to HKFRS 10:

o An exception from the general requirement of full gain
or loss recognition has been introduced into HKFRS
10 for the loss control of a subsidiary that does not
contain a business in a transaction with an associate
or a joint venture that is accounted for using the
equity method.

o New guidance has been introduced requiring that
gains or losses resulting from those transactions
are recognised in the parent’s profit or loss only to
the extent of the unrelated investors’ interests in
that associate or joint venture. Similarly, gains and
losses resulting from the remeasurement at fair value
of investments retained in any former subsidiary
that has become an associate or a joint venture
that is accounted for using the equity method are
recognised in the former parent’s profit or loss only to
the extent of the unrelated investors’ interests in the
new associate or joint venture.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2015 # % 2015 F 3 A 31 HiFFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 Sale or
Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture (Continued)

The Directors do not anticipate that the application of these
amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 will have a material
impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle

The Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle
include a number of amendments to various HKFRSs, which
are summarised below.

The amendments to HKFRS 2 (i) change the definitions
of ‘vesting condition’ and ‘market condition’; and (ii)
add definitions for ‘performance condition’ and ‘service
condition” which were previously included within the
definition of ‘vesting condition’. The amendments to
HKFRS 2 are effective for share-based payment transactions
for which the grant date is on or after 1 July 2014.

The amendments to HKFRS 3 clarify that contingent
consideration that is classified as an asset or a liability
should be measured at fair value at each reporting date,
irrespective of whether the contingent consideration is a
financial instrument within the scope of HKFRS 9 or HKAS 39
or a non-financial asset or liability. Changes in fair value
(other than measurement period adjustments) should be
recognised in profit and loss. The amendments to HKFRS 3
are effective for business combinations for which the
acquisition date is on or after 1 July 2014.
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2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle
(Continued)

The amendments to HKFRS 8 (i) require an entity to disclose
the judgements made by management in applying the
aggregation criteria to operating segments, including a
description of the operating segments aggregated and the
economic indicators assessed in determining whether the
operating segments have ‘similar economic characteristics’;
and (ii) clarify that a reconciliation of the total of the
reportable segments’ assets to the entity’s assets should
only be provided if the segment assets are regularly provided
to the chief operating decision-maker.

The amendments to the basis for conclusions of HKFRS 13
clarify that the issue of HKFRS 13 and consequential
amendments to HKAS 39 and HKFRS 9 did not remove
the ability to measure short term receivables and payables
with no stated interest rate at their invoice amounts without
discounting, if the effect of discounting is immaterial. As
the amendments do not contain any effective date, they are
considered to be immediately effective.

The amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 remove
perceived inconsistencies in the accounting for accumulated
depreciation/amortisation when an item of property, plant
and equipment or an intangible asset is revalued. The
amended standards clarify that the gross carrying amount
is adjusted in a manner consistent with the revaluation of
the carrying amount of the asset and that accumulated
depreciation/amortisation is the difference between the
gross carrying amount and the carrying amount after taking
into account accumulated impairment losses.

Asia Resources Holdings Limited Annual Report 2015

IR EEITEEBUNE
HER([EFBUH®R
HEA ) 2ER(E

2010F 220125 AH 2 EF BB K
EERFERE(E)

BEMBREERNESK ZEFT ()R
EERMAE DR EAERIRREK
BEEEFL ZHE - BEMERL
ENBIBARREERED BEE
BB MRS B3 et b 2 & B4E
C R()BBRRE DB EEAER
I REECHRERNIHEERTE
HRRTERLERRAZBERT S
Theft

,h]ﬂ Dﬂ]; D)ﬂ*

i S

\;

HEABWHRE L F1SR 2 EmE
MZIEFTEE THEMEEMBREE
AIF1SR A AR E BT A G EAE39
SR BEBMBEREENFR BRI
BB RERA 1 E N R 2 58 H e ok

RYBBATE)REUZSHEIEL
S - R FEILEE S AL
MEAH - REAR RN AR o

BREHENFIR LB EGAE
AIFEIBRZEFTEMBF Z2ME
B REEEE B EEZ R
E/BECENREBREATEZ
AR E - RIEFTERRBRE A E
RESHEEREE - HZ2HTAH
B MBFFE EHERmAMESR
REE(EFRBRAREBER) ZE
LAl
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2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle
(Continued)

The amendments to HKAS 24 clarify that a management
entity providing key management personnel services to a
reporting entity is a related party of the reporting entity.
Consequently, the reporting entity should disclose as related
party transactions the amounts incurred for the service paid
or payable to the management entity for the provision of key
management personnel services. However, disclosure of the
components of such compensation is not required.

The Directors do not anticipate that the application of these
amendments will have a material effect on the Group’s
consolidated financial statements.

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle

The Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle
include a number of amendments to various HKFRSs, which
are summarised below.

The amendments to HKFRS 3 clarify that the standard does
not apply to the accounting for the formation of all types
of joint arrangement in the financial statements of the joint
arrangement itself.

The amendments to HKFRS 13 clarify that the scope of the
portfolio exception for measuring the fair value of a group of
financial assets and financial liabilities on a net basis includes
all contracts that are within the scope of, and accounted
for in accordance with, HKAS 39 or HKFRS 9, even if those
contracts do not meet the definitions of financial assets or
financial liabilities within HKAS 32.
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2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle
(Continued)

The amendments to HKAS 40 clarify that HKAS 40 and
HKFRS 3 are not mutually exclusive and application of
both standards may be required. Consequently, an entity
acquiring investment property must determine whether:

(@) the property meets the definition of investment
property in terms of HKAS 40; and

(b) the transaction meets the definition of a business
combination under HKFRS 3.

The Directors do not anticipate that the application of these
amendments will have a material effect on the Group’s
consolidated financial statements.

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle

The Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle
include a number of amendments to various HKFRSs, which
are summarised below.

The amendments to HKFRS 5 introduce specific guidance in
HKFRS 5 for when an entity reclassifies an asset (or disposal
group) from held for sale to held for distribution to owners
(or vice versa), or when held-for-distribution accounting is
discontinued. The amendments apply prospectively.
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2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle
(Continued)

The amendments to HKFRS 7 provide additional guidance to
clarify whether a servicing contract is continuing involvement
in a transferred asset for the purpose of the disclosures
required in relation to transferred assets and clarify that
the offsetting disclosures (introduced in the amendments
to HKFRS 7 Disclosure — Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities issued in December 2011 and effective
for periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013) are not
explicitly required for all interim periods. However, the
disclosures may need to be included in condensed interim
financial statements to comply with HKAS 34 Interim
Financial Reporting.

The amendments to HKAS 19 clarify that the high quality
corporate bonds used to estimate the discount rate for post-
employment benefits should be issued in the same currency
as the benefits to be paid. These amendments would
result in the depth of the market for high quality corporate
bonds being assessed at currency level. The amendments
apply from the beginning of the earliest comparative
period presented in the financial statements in which the
amendments are first applied. Any initial adjustment arising
should be recognised in retained earnings at the beginning of
that period.

The amendments to HKAS 34 clarify the requirements
relating to information required by HKAS 34 that is presented
elsewhere within the interim financial report but outside
the interim financial statements. The amendments require
that such information be incorporated by way of a cross
reference from the interim financial statements to the other
part of the interim financial report that is available to users on
the same terms and at the same time as the interim financial
statements.

The Directors do not anticipate that the application of these
will have a material effect on the Group’s consolidated
financial statements.

M REEITEBUNE
HER ([ EFBUH®R
HEA ) ZER (&

2012 220145 A2 EF B
HERFERE(E)

BEMEREERETHR 2ETRME
EINES| - BERBEHNERIFEE
HEEREE(EHEEREERN
TRZEFETEMS ) WEBRAEFR
HHAM M S R R E
(B 2011512 BB IR 2013 F
1RB1ARZERBZHEERZE
B REENETR(ER) BE —
B BEERMFEARZSIA) - A
i B EE sk 5 A 5 RE B HY BT RS 3R
= VBB B G RTER|E345H Hi
BFTSERE -

BR G ERNE 1R ZERIBEERE
NEMES (AR BEREERN 2R R)
ERER T XA EANER 8% %
17 %FEIeERRERERNG
ZBERREZFZTIHREERM ° %
FEFTNE RERERT <M REm
2IZFLBRAEFIGEEMR - A5l
B2 T 92 AR RN %R R
RIRE BN AHER o

R G EREMFZERTREEH
FE QT R £ 3457 2 RN HE 5
HEAHMBE D ER T R BEIHRER I
2INERZRTE - ZFETB KRB
BRI P I B BRER AR XEI AT R
HATHMBHRSEHEME D (REF
HARA 7% 2R A8 1R 2 6K B AR R 2 B
RETEHRE) -

EFEHEEAZFEI R IEHAEK
B G AR BHRRELEATE

DNERZERBRAR 20155 FH

79



80
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 # % 2015 % 3 A 31 HiFFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis except for certain financial
instruments, which are measured at fair values, as explained
in the accounting policies set out below. Historical cost is
generally based on the fair value of the consolidation given
exchange for assets.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition,
the consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities (including
special purpose entities) controlled by the Company (its
subsidiaries). Control is achieved where the Company has
the power to govern the financial and operating policies of an
entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities.

Incomes and expenses of subsidiaries acquired or disposed
of during the year are included in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income from the
effective date of acquisition and up to the effective date of
disposal, as appropriate. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2015 # % 2015 F 3 A 31 HiFFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
in line with those used by other members of the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, incomes and
expenses are eliminated on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group’s equity therein.

Business combinations

The acquisition of subsidiaries is accounted for using the
acquisition method. The cost of the acquisition is measured
as the aggregate of the fair values, at the date of exchange,
of assets given, liabilities incurred or assumed, and equity
instruments issued by the Group in exchange for control
of the acquiree, plus any costs directly attributable to the
business combination. The acquiree’s identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities that meet the relevant
conditions for recognition were generally recognised at their
fair values at the acquisition date.

Goodwill arising on acquisition is recognised as an asset and
initially measured at cost, being the excess of the cost of the
business combination over the Group’s interest in the net
fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities recognised. If, after reassessment, the Group’s
interest in the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities exceeds the cost
of the business combination, the excess is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

The non-controlling interests in the acquiree is initially
measured at the non-controlling interest’s proportionate
share of the net fair value of the assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities recognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBE|RHE

For the year ended 31 March 2015 # % 2015 % 3 A 31 HiFFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable
for goods sold in the normal course of business, net of
discounts and sales related taxes.

Revenue from sales of goods is recognised when goods are
delivered and title has passed.

Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on a time
basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at
the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that
exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts through
the expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net
carrying amount.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the
shareholder’s right to receive payment has been established
(provided that it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the Group and the amount of income can be measure
reliably).

Net gain/loss on financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss is recognised on the transaction date when the relevant
contracts are executed.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2015 # % 2015 F 3 A 31 HiFFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost less subsequent depreciation
and any identified impairment loss at the end of the reporting
period.

Construction in progress represents property, plant and
equipment in the course of construction for production or
for its own use purposes. Construction in progress is carried
at cost less any recognised impairment loss. Construction
in progress is classified to the appropriate category of
property, plant and equipment when completed and ready
for intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same
basis as other property assets, commences when the assets
are ready for their intended use.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of other
property, plant and equipment over their estimated useful
lives after considering their estimated residual values, using
the straight-line method, at the following rates per annum:

Buildings 4%

Furniture, fixtures and

20% - 25%

Leasehold improvements 20% - 50%

12'/,% — 30%
6%/3% — 30%

office equipment

Motor vehicles
Plant and machinery

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the item) is included in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income in the year in which the
item is dereognised.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Mining right

Mining right is stated at cost less accumulated amortisation
and impairment losses. The mining right is amortised using
the unit-of-production method based on the total proven and
probable mineral reserves, which is reviewed at least at each
end of the reporting period.

Impairment of mining right

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of
impairment for mining right at each reporting date. Mining
right is tested for impairment when there are indicators that
the carrying amount may not be recoverable. When value in
use calculations are undertaken, management must estimate
the expected future cash flows from the asset or cash-
generating unit and choose a suitable discount rate in order
to calculate the present values of those cash flows.

Expected useful lives of Mining Right and Mineral
Reserves

The Group’s management has determined the estimated
useful lives of its mining right based on the proven and
probable mineral reserves.

Amortisation rate is determined based on estimated proven
and probable mineral reserve quantities with reference to the
independent technical assessment report. The capitalised
costs of the mining right are amortised using the unit-of-
production method. Any change to the estimated proven and
probable mineral reserves will affect the amortisation charge
of the mining right.

Proven and probable mineral reserve estimates are updated
at regular basis taking into account production and technical
information about the mines. In addition, as prices and cost
levels change from year to year, the estimate of proven and
probable mineral reserves also changes. This change is
considered a change in estimate for accounting purposes
and is reflected on a prospective basis in relation to
amortisation rate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2015 # % 2015 F 3 A 31 HiFFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the lease term, except while
another systematic basis is more representative of the time
pattern in which economic benefit from the leased asset are
consumed. Contingent rentals a rising under operating lease
are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are
incurred.

Leasehold land use rights

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be
made reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted
for as an operating lease is presented as “prepaid lease
payment” in the consolidated statement of financial position
and is amortised over the lease term on straight-line basis.

Foreign currencies

These consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars, which is the Company’s functional and
presentation currency. Each entity in the Group determines
its own functional currency and items included in the
financial statements of each entity are measured using that
functional currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded
by the entities in the Group are initially recorded using
their respective functional currency rates prevailing at the
dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the end of
the reporting period. Differences arising on settlement or
translation of monetary items are recognised in the income
statement.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBE|RHE

For the year ended 31 March 2015 # % 2015 % 3 A 31 HiFFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary
items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the date when
the fair value was determined. The gain or loss arising on
translation of a non-monetary item measured at fair value
is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on
change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation difference on
the item whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in other
comprehensive income or profit or loss is also recognised in
other comprehensive income or profit or loss, respectively).

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries,
jointly-controlled entities and associates are currencies
other than the Hong Kong dollar. As at the end of the
reporting period, the assets and liabilities of these entities
are translated into the presentation currency of the Company
at the exchange rates prevailing at the end of the reporting
period and their income statements are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the weighted average exchange rates for the
year.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange
fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the
component of other comprehensive income relating to that
particular foreign operation is recognised in profit or loss.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated
into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates ruling at the
dates of the cash flows. Frequently recurring cash flows of
overseas subsidiaries which arise throughout the year are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average
exchange rates for the year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2015 # % 2015 F 3 A 31 HiFFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale, are capitalised
as part of the cost of those assets. Capitalisation of such
borrowing costs ceases when the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income
earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings
pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted
from the borrowing costs capitalised.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.

Retirement benefits costs

Retirement benefits scheme

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans
(state-managed retirement benefits schemes/the Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme) are charged as an expense when
employees have rendered service entitling them to the
contributions.

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
(the “MPF Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for those employees
employed under the jurisdiction of the Hong Kong
Employment Ordinance. The MPF Scheme is a defined
contribution scheme, the assets of which are held in
separate trustee administered funds.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBE|RHE

For the year ended 31 March 2015 # % 2015 % 3 A 31 HiFFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Retirement benefits costs (Continued)

Retirement benefits scheme (continued)

Under the MPF Scheme, the employer and its employees
are each required to make contributions to the scheme at
5% of the employees’ relevant income, with the employers’
contributions subject to a cap monthly relevant income of
HK$30,000 (2013: HK$25,000). The Group’s contributions
to the scheme are expensed as incurred are vested in
accordance with the scheme’s vesting scales. Where
employees leave the scheme prior to the full vesting of
the employer’s contributions, the amount of forfeited
contributions is used to reduce the contributions payable by
the Group.

Pursuant to the regulations of the relevant authorities in the
PRC, the Group participates in the relevant social retirement
benefit schemes (the “PRC Schemes”) whereby the Group
is required to contribute to the PRC Schemes to fund the
retirement benefits of the eligible employees. Contributions
made to the PRC Schemes are calculated based on certain
percentages of the applicable payroll costs as stipulated
under the requirements in the PRC. The relevant authorities
of the PRC are responsible for the entire pension obligations
payable to the retired employees. The only obligation of
the Group with respect to the PRC Schemes is to pay the
ongoing required contributions under the PRC Schemes.

The retirement benefit schemes contribution represents
gross contributions by the Group to the PRC Schemes
operated by the relevant authorities of the PRC.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2015 # % 2015 F 3 A 31 HiFFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Retirement benefits costs (Continued)

Share options scheme

The Company operates a share options scheme for the
purpose of recognition of significant contribution of and
for the provision of incentives to any directors, employees
(whether full-time or part-time), consultants, customers,
suppliers, agents, partners or advisors of or contractors
to the Group or affiliates. The fair value of share options
granted to employee is recognised as an employee cost with
a corresponding increase in a capital reserve within equity.
Where the employees have to meet vesting conditions before
becoming unconditionally entitled to the share options, the
total estimated fair value of share options is spread over the
vesting period, taking into account the probability that the
options will vest.

During the vesting period, the number of share options
that is expected to vest is reviewed. Any adjustment to the
cumulative fair value recognised in prior years is charged/
credited to the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income for the year of the review, unless the original
employee expenses qualify for recognition as an asset,
with a corresponding adjustment to the capital reserve.
On vesting date, the amount recognised as an expense
is adjusted to reflect the actual number of share options
that vest (with a corresponding adjustment to the capital
reserve) except where forfeiture is only due to not achieving
vesting conditions that relate to the market price of the
Company’s shares. The equity amount is recognised in the
capital reserve until either the option is exercised (when it
is transferred to the share premium account) or the option
expires (when it is released directly to retained profits).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBE|RHE

For the year ended 31 March 2015 # % 2015 % 3 A 31 HiFFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income because
it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable
or deductible in other years and it further excludes items
that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability
for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax base used in
the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences
and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that
it is probable that taxable profits will be available against
which deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition
(other than in a business combination) of other assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit
nor the accounting profit.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2015 # % 2015 F 3 A 31 HiFFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and
associates, except where the Group is able to control the
reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
each end of the reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will
be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset realized, based on tax rates
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of
its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax for the year

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.
Where current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial
accounting for a business combination, the tax effect is
included in the accounting for the business combination.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBE|RHE

For the year ended 31 March 2015 # % 2015 % 3 A 31 HiFFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on
initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets
acquired in a business combination is the fair value at the
date of acquisition. The useful lives of intangible assets are
assessed to be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets
with finite lives are subsequently amortised over the useful
economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there
is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired.
The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an
intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at
each financial year end.

Research and development expenditure
All research costs are charged to the income statement as
incurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new products
is capitalised and deferred only when the Group can
demonstrate the technical feasibility of completing the
intangible asset so that it will be available for use or sale,
its intention to complete and its ability to use or sell the
asset, how the asset will generate future economic benefits,
the availability of resources to complete the project and
the ability to measure reliably the expenditure during the
development. Product development expenditure which does
not meet these criteria is expensed when incurred.

Deferred development costs are stated at cost less any
impairment losses and are amortised using the straightline
basis over the commercial lives of the underlying products
not exceeding five to seven years, commencing from the
date when the products are put into commercial production.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2015 # % 2015 F 3 A 31 HiFFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets with
finite useful lives to determine whether there is any indication
that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any
such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is
estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment
loss. When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable
amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which
the asset belongs. When a reasonable and consistent basis
of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also
allocated to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise
they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating
units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis
can be identified.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible
assets not yet available for use are tested for impairment at
least annually, and whenever there is an indication that the
asset may be impaired.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is calculated using the weighted average
method. Net realisable value represents the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated
costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to
make the sale.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Provision

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is
probable that a future outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end
of the reporting period of the future expenditures expected
to be required to settle the obligation. The increase in the
discounted present value amount arising from the passage
of time is included in finance costs in the income statement.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on the
consolidated statement of financial position when a group
entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted
from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities,
as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs
directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets
or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2015 # % 2015 F 3 A 31 HiFFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified into financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”) and loans
and receivables. The classification depends on the nature
and purpose of the financial assets and is determined at
the time of initial recognition. All regular way purchases or
sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised
on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the time frame established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs
and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life
of the financial asset, or, where appropriate, a shorter period
to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt
instruments other than those financial assets classified as at
FVTPL.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets are classified as at FVTPL when the financial
asset is either held for trading or it is designated as at
FVTPL.

A financial asset is classified as held-for-trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
selling in the near future; or

o it is a part of an identified portfolio of financial
instruments that the Group manages together and
has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking;
or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as
a hedging instrument.

Financial assets at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any
gains or losses arising on remeasurement recognised in
profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss
incorporates any dividend or interest earned on the financial
asset and is included in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. At each end of the reporting period
subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables
(including trade and bills receivables, deposits and
other receivables, amount due from a non-controlling
shareholder and bank balances and cash) are measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any
impairment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2015 # % 2015 F 3 A 31 HiFFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are assessed for indicators of
impairment at each end of the reporting period. Loans and
receivables are impaired where there is objective evidence
that, as a result of one or more events that occurred after the
initial recognition, the estimated future cash flows have been
affected.

Objective evidence of impairment could include:

. significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

o default or delinquency in interest or principal
payments; or

o it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation; or

o the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss when
there is objective evidence that the asset is impaired, and
is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of the estimated future cash
flows discounted at the original effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the loans and receivables is reduced
by the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with
the exception of trade and other receivables, where the
carrying amount is reduced through the use of an allowance
account. Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance
account are recognised in profit or loss. When a receivable
is considered uncollectible, it is written off against the
allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off are credited to profit or loss.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of loans and receivables (continued)

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment losses was recognised,
the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed
through profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount
of the asset at the date the impairment is reversed does not
exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognised.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Classification as debt or equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a group
entity are classified according to the substance of the
contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions of
a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of the group entity after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the
Group are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct
issue costs.

Convertible notes

Convertible notes issued by the Company that contain both
the conversion option components are classified separately
into respective items on initial recognition. A conversion
option that will be settled by the exchange of a fixed amount
of cash or another financial asset for a fixed number of the
Company’s own equity instruments is classified as an equity
instrument.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2015 # % 2015 F 3 A 31 HiFFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (continued)
Convertible notes (continued)

On initial recognition, the fair value of the liability component
is determined using the prevailing market interest of similar
non-convertible debts. In subsequent periods, the liability
component of the convertible notes is carried at amortised
cost using the effective interest method. The equity
component, representing the option to convert the liability
component into ordinary shares of the Company, will remain
in equity until the embedded option is exercised (in which
case the balance stated in capital reserve will be transferred
to share premium). Where the option remains unexercised at
the expiry date, the balance stated in capital reserve will be
released to the retained profits. No gain or loss is recognised
in profit or loss upon conversion or expiration of the option.

For the convertible notes issued in connection to the
acquisition of assets and liabilities through acquisition of
subsidiary, the conversion option component is recognised
at fair value and included in equity, taking into account that
the counterparty must forfeit the right to received cash in
order to receive equity instrument. For other convertible
notes, the difference between the gross proceeds of the
issue of the convertible notes and the fair value assigned to
the liability component, representing the conversion option
for the holder to covert the notes into equity, is included in
equity (capital reserve).

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities (including trade payables, other
payables and accruals, amount due to a non-controlling
shareholder, short-term interest bearing borrowings and
bank borrowings) are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method.
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3.

100

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (continued)
Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest
rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
payments through the expected life of the financial liability or
where appropriate, a short period to the net carrying amount
on initial recognition.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.
If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control
the transferred asset, the Group continues to recognise
the asset to the extent of its continuing involvement and
recognises an associated liability.

If the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group
continues to recognise the financial asset and also
recognises a collateralized borrowing for the proceeds
received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration received and receivable and
the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is
recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2015 # % 2015 F 3 A 31 HiFFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Derecognition (continued)

On derecognition of a financial asset other than in its entirety,
the Group allocates the previous carrying amount of the
financial asset between the part it continues to recognise,
and the part it no longer recognises on the basis of the
relative fair values of those parts on the date of the transfer.
The difference between the carrying amount allocated to
the part that is no longer recognised and the sum of the
consideration received for the part no longer recognised
and any cumulative gain or loss allocated to it that had been
recognised in other comprehensive income is recognised
in profit or loss. A cumulative gain or loss that had been
recognised in other comprehensive income is allocated
between the part that continues to be recognised and the
part that is no longer recognised on the basis of the relative
fair values of those parts.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
they expire. The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid
and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits
held at call with banks, other short-term highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three months or
less, and bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are shown
within borrowings in current liabilities on the consolidated
statement of financial positions.
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3.

102

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Contingent liabilities and assets

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from
past events and whose existence will only be confirmed by
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
future events not wholly within the control of the Group. It
can also be a present obligation arising from past events
that is not recognised because it is not probable that outflow
of economic resources will be required or the amount
of obligation cannot be measured reliably. A contingent
liability is not recognised but is disclosed in the notes to the
consolidated financial statements. When a change in the
probability of an outflow occurs so that outflow is probable,
they will then be recognised as a provision.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past
events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
future events not wholly within the control of the Group.
A contingent asset is not recognised but is disclosed in
the notes to the consolidated financial statements when
an inflow of economic benefits is probable. When inflow is
virtually certain, an asset is recognised.

Related parties transactions

(a) A person or a close member of that person’s family is
related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or join control over the Group;

(if) has significant influence over the Group; or

(ifi) is a member of the key management personnel
of the Group or of a parent of the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2015 # % 2015 F 3 A 31 HiFFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Related parties transactions (Continued)

(o)

An entity is related to the Group if any of the following

conditions applies:

(i)

(i

(i)

(iv)

The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to
the others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of
the other entity (or an associate or joint venture
of a member of a group which the other entity
is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the third
entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the
Group or an entity related to the Group. If the
Group is itself such a plan, the sponsoring
employers are also related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a).

A person identified in (a) (i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of
a parent of the entity).

FTESFBEA)

BEALRZ (&)

(0) ﬁ?"ATﬁIJEﬂ{MﬁF AERE
AR E A R E
(i) ZERENEEER—

DNERZEREBRA R

(if)

(i)

(iv)

EEyREAF(NE
FAF - WBARARA
ZMB A AR AN
) o

_Im
it
i
Nt
|
mi

s O m B> BB

\
A

DM S

el
N
&F
LS
D o
o
35"
op
S

MEERH BRI —
THEERE -

—MERRE=TE
A%ﬁ% e
REE=NER

=%

I]ﬂlll} kma

\;
r

[::2}

i

m
e
&5

P o I
o)

M TR

DA E g EARE
ﬁ BZEBEE

AR A BB AR A
ﬂﬁzli’i@ﬂi%@
g - AR EBY
E’MEIDTE@$%@EE§

Gl L
ot FE
E‘I U Jlf

boolE >

= =

i
>1:|\|
ok
—+
(Bt

X (a) e plI A 12
%UEJZQ/ R -

RE@OTENALHE
BREAFENNEZ
?%%(EJZE%EEEZ!P
ANEEEEREKE -

2015F F 3R

103



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBE|RHE

For the year ended 31 March 2015 # % 2015 % 3 A 31 HiFFE

3.

104

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Close family members of an individual are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity.

A transaction is considered to be a related party transaction
when there is a transfer of resources or obligations between
parties.

Discontinued operations

A discontinued operation is a component of the Group’s
business, the operations and cash flows of which can be
clearly distinguished from the rest of the Group and which
represents a separate major line of business or geographical
area of operations, or is part of a single co-ordinated plan to
dispose of a separate major line of business or geographical
area of operations, or is a subsidiary acquired exclusively
with a view to resale.

Classification as a discontinued operation occurs upon
disposal or when the operation meets the criteria to be
classified as held for sale, if earlier. It also occurs when the
operation is abandoned.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2015 # % 2015 F 3 A 31 HiFFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Discontinued operations (Continued)

When operation is classified as discontinued, a single
amount is presented on the face of the profit or loss, which
comprises:

- the post-tax profit or loss of the discontinued
operation; and

- the post-tax gain or loss recognised on the
measurement to fair value less costs to sell, or on
the disposal, of the assets or disposal group(s)
constituting the discontinued operation.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the consolidated financial statements, are
identified from the financial information provided regularly
to the Group’s most senior executive management for the
purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing the
performance of, the Group’s various lines of business and
geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated
for financial reporting purposes unless the segments have
similar economic characteristics and are similar economic
characteristics and are similar in respect of the nature of
products and services, the nature of production processes,
the type of class of customers, the methods used to
distribute the products or provide the services, and the
nature of the regulatory environment. Operating segments
which are not individually material may be aggregated if they
share a majority of these criteria.
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3.

106

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified
as held for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered
principally through a sale transaction rather than through
continuing use. This condition is regarded as met only
when the sale is highly probable and the non-current asset
(or disposal group) is available for immediate sale in its
present condition. Management must be committed to the
sale, which should be expected to qualify for recognition
as a completed sale within one year from the date of
classification.

When the Group is committed to a sale plan involving loss of
control of a subsidiary, all of the assets and liabilities of that
subsidiary are classified as held for sale when the criteria
described above are met, regardless of whether the Group
will retain a non-controlling interest in its former subsidiary
after the sale.

Non-current assets (and disposal groups) classified as held
for sale are measured at the lower of their previous carrying
amount and fair value less costs to sell.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2015 # % 2015 F 3 A 31 HiFFE

4.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies,
which are described in note 3, management is required to
make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. The estimates and underlying
assumptions are based on historical experience and other
factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if
the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The followings are the key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at
the end of the reporting period, that have a significant risk
of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

Note 3 describes that depreciation is provided to write off the
cost of property, plant and equipment over their estimated
useful lives, using straight-line method. The estimation
of useful lives of the depreciable assets is based on the
experience of the Group, and useful lives are reviewed
at each end of the reporting period based on changes in
circumstances.
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4.

108

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Impairment of property, plant and equipment

In accordance with HKAS 16, the Group estimates the useful
lives of property, plant and equipment in order to determine
the amount of depreciation expenses to be recorded. The
useful lives are estimated at the time the asset is acquired
based on historical experience, the expected usage, wear
and tear of the assets, as well as technical obsolescence
arising from changes in the market demands or service
output of the assets. The Group also performs annual
reviews on whether the assumptions made on useful lives
continued to be valid. The Group tests annually whether
the assets have suffered any impairment. The recoverable
amount of an asset or a cash generating unit is determined
based on value-in—use calculations which require the use of
assumptions and estimates.

Income tax

The Group is subject to income taxes in Hong Kong and
the PRC. Significant judgment is required in determining the
provision for income taxes. There are many transactions
and calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is
uncertain during the ordinary course of business. The Group
recognises liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues based
on estimates of whether additional taxes will be due. Where
amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will
impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the
period in which such determination is made.

Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated
costs of completion and selling expenses. These estimates
are based on the current market condition and the historical
experience and selling goods of similar nature. It could
change significant as a result of change in market condition.
Management will reassess the estimations at the end of the
reporting period.
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4.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Estimate of recoverable amounts of assets

The Group tests annually whether the assets have suffered
any impairment. The recoverable amount of an asset or
a cash generating unit is determined based on value-in—
use calculations which require the use of assumptions and
estimates.

Impairment of trade and other receivables

When there is objective evidence of impairment loss, the
Group takes into consideration the estimation of future cash
flows. The amount of the impairment loss is measured as
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding
future credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted
at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e.
the effective interest rate computed at initial recognition).
Where the actual future cash flows are less than expected, a
material impairment loss may arise. The Group’s maximum
exposure to financial loss due to failure to discharge an
obligation by the debtors is the carrying amount of trade and
other receivables as stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

Impairment of intangible assets

Determine whether intangible assets are impaired requires
estimation of the value in use, The value in use calculation
requires the entity to estimate the future cash flows expected
to arise form the cash—generating unit and a suitable
discount rate in order to calculate the present value.

The carrying amount of intangible asset at the end of
the reporting period was approximately HK$32,727,000
(2014: approximately HK$221,785,000) and impairment
loss approximately HK$168,342,000 (2014: approximately
HK$275,644,000) was recognised during the year.
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4.

110

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Measurement of convertible notes

On the date of issue of convertible notes, the fair value
is determined using a discount rate determined by an
independent professional valuer to the Group with reference
to market information; and this amount is carried as a long
term liability at fair value at the end of the reporting period in
accordance with the accounting policy stated above.

Valuation of share options

The Binominal Option Pricing Model and Black—Scholes
Option Pricing Model were applied to estimate the fair value
of share options granted by the Company and certain of its
subsidiaries. These pricing models require the input of highly
subjective assumptions, including the volatility of share price.
The changes in input assumptions can materially affect the
fair value estimate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2015 # % 2015 F 3 A 31 HiFFE

5.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

5A.

Capital risk management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities
in the Group will be able to continue as a going
concern while maximising the return to stakeholders
through the optimisation of the debt and equity
balance. The Group’s overall strategy remains
unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt,
which includes bank borrowings disclosed in note
16 (2014: included bank borrowings and short-term
interest bearing borrowings) and equity attributable
to owners of the Company, comprising issued share
capital and reserves.

The directors of the Company review the capital
structure regularly. As part of this review, the
directors consider the cost of capital and the risks
associates with each class of capital. Based on
recommendations of the directors, the Group will
balance its overall capital structure through new
shares issues, as well as the issue of new debt or the
redemption of existing debt.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MR R MY R

For the year ended 31 March 2015 # % 2015 % 3 A 31 HiFFE

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 5. BIBIARE)
(CONTINUED)
5A. Capital risk management (Continued) 5A. EBEXRBREE(E)
The gearing ratio at the end of the reporting period RBERRBELE=RNOT :

was as follows:

2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHExT THT
(Restated)
(&=75))
Total debts * wER 60,929 63,460
Shareholders’ equity AR R fE 1,080,938 821,320
Gearing ratio BRL=E 5.64% 7.73%
# Total debts comprises bank borrowings as detailed in note # RIEBBRIERITEE - FBER
16 to the consolidated financial statements. A MEME6 ©
5B. Categories of financial instruments 5B. BT EEHR
The Group REEHE
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHT
Financial assets HHEE
Financial assets at fair value I8z ATFEARZ
through profit or loss B EE 5,820 16,327
Loans and receivables ER R EWGRIE
(including cash and (BREREeEES
cash equivalents) ZEW) 390,059 456,372
Financial liabilities HEEaE
Amortised cost B SH AR A 460,961 90,412
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2015 # % 2015 F 3 A 31 HiFFE

5.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 5. BIBIARE)
(CONTINUED)
5B. Categories of financial instruments 5B. BT AERI(&)
(Continued)
The Company /NN |
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000
THT FHT
Financial assets BB EE
Loans and receivables B W RIR
(including cash and (BPiERERRS
cash equivalents) ZEY) 1,277,506 536,512
Financial liabilities HHaE
Amortised cost 35 Pk A 614,423 25,781
5C. Financial risk management objectives and 5C. HKEREBREEEERBE

policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include trade
and bill receivables, prepayments, deposits and other
receivables, financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss, amount due from non-controlling
interest, bank balances and cash, trade and other
payables, borrowings amount due to non-controlling
shareholder and convertible notes. Details of these
financial instruments are disclosed in respective
notes. The risks associated with these financial
instruments and the policies on how to mitigate these
risks are set out below. The management manages
and monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate
measures are implemented on a timely and effective
manner.
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5.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

5C.

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Market risk

Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk refers to the risk that movement
in foreign currency exchange rate which will affect
the Group’s financial results and its cash flows. The
Group’s operations are mainly in the PRC other
than Hong Kong, and the sales and purchases
transactions are conducted using RMB, as such the
foreign currency risk is minimal. The Group currently
has not entered into any contracts to hedge its foreign
currency risk. However, the management monitors
foreign currency exposure and will consider hedging
significant foreign currency exposure should the need
arise.

Interest rate risk

The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest
rate risk in relation to variable-rate bank borrowings
(note 16) and bank deposits (see note 27 for details).
It is the Group’s policy to keep its borrowings at
floating rate of interests so as to minimise the fair
value interest rate risk. The Group currently does not
have an interest rate hedging policy. However, the
management monitors interest rate exposure and
will consider restructure the Group’s credit facilities
should the need arise.

The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk is mainly
concentrated on the fluctuation of RMB Benchmark
Lending Rates (“RBLR”) arising from the Group’s
RMB denominated borrowings.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2015 # % 2015 F 3 A 31 HiFFE

5.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

5C.

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Market risk (continued)

Interest rate risk — Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined
based on the exposure to interest rates for variable—
rate bank borrowings and bank deposits at the end
of the reporting period. The analysis is prepared
assuming bank balances and the amount of liability
outstanding at the end of the reporting period were
held/outstanding for the whole year. A 50 basis point
increase or decrease is used when reporting interest
rate risk internally to key management personnel
and represents management’s assessment of the
reasonably possible change in interest rates.

If interest rates had been 50 basis points higher/
lower and all other variables were held constant, the
Group’s profit for the year ended 31 March 2015
would increase/decrease by HK$305,000 (2014:
increase/decrease by HK$302,000). This is mainly
attributable to the Group’s exposure to interest rates
on its bank borrowings, short-term interest bearing
loan and bank deposits.
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5.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

5C.

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk

As at 31 March 2015, the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk which will cause a financial
loss to the Group due to failure to discharge an
obligation by the counterparties is the carrying
amount of the respective recognised financial assets
as stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management
has credit approvals and other monitoring procedures
to ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover
overdue debts. In addition, the Group reviews
the recoverable amount of each individual trade
debt at each end of the reporting period to ensure
that adequate impairment losses are made for
irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the directors of
the Company consider that the Group’s credit risk is
reduced.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2015 # % 2015 F 3 A 31 HiFFE

5.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

5C.

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk (continued)

In relation to trade receivables, the Group’s
concentration of credit risk by geographical locations
is primarily in PRC. Other than that, the Group does
not have any other significant concentration of credit
risk as trade receivables consist of a large number of
customers.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because
majority of the counterparties are either banks of high
credit quality in Hong Kong or state—owned banks in
the PRC.

Liquidity risk

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management
rests with the Board of Directors, which has built an
appropriate liquidity risk management framework
to meet the Group’s short, medium and long-term
funding and liquidity management requirements. The
Group manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate
reserves, banking facilities and reserve borrowing
facilities, by continuously monitoring forecast and
actual cash flows and matching the maturity profiles
of financial assets and liabilities.

As at 31 March 2015, the Group has short and
medium term bank loan facilities of approximately
HK$60,929,000 (31 March 2014: approximately
HK$60,438,000).
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 # % 2015 % 3 A 31 HiFFE

5.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

5C.

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

Liquidity table

The following tables detail the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its non—derivative financial
liabilities. The tables have been drawn up based on
the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities
based on the earliest date on which the Group can be
required to pay.

Specifically, bank loans with a repayment on
demand clause are included in the earliest time band
regardless of the probability of the banks choosing to
exercise their rights within one year after the reporting
date. The maturity analysis for other non—derivative
financial liabilities is prepared based on the scheduled
repayment dates.

The tables include both interest and principal cash
flows. To the extent that interest flows are floating
rate, the undiscounted amount is derived from
interest rate curves at the end of the reporting period.

In addition, the following tables detail the Group’s
expected maturity for its non—derivative financial
assets. The tables have been drawn up based on the
undiscounted contractual cash flows of the financial
assets including interest that will be earned on those
assets. The inclusion of information on these non-
derivative financial assets is necessary in order to
understand the Group’s liquidity risk management as
the liquidity is managed on a net asset and liability
basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2015 # % 2015 F 3 A 31 HiFFE

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

5C.

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

Liquidity table (continued)

The amounts included below for variable interest rate
instruments for both non-derivative financial assets
and liabilities are subject to change if changes in
variable interest rates different to those estimates of
interest rates determined at the end of the reporting
period.

Moreover, the following tables detail the Group’s
liquidity analysis for its derivative financial
instruments. The tables have been drawn up based
on the undiscounted contractual net cash inflows
and outflows on derivative instruments that settle
on a net basis, and the undiscounted gross inflows
and outflows on those derivatives that require gross
settlement. When amount payable or receivable is not
fixed, the amount disclosed has been determined by
reference to the projected interest rates as illustrated
by the yield curves at the end of the reporting period.
The liquidity analyses for the Group’s derivative
financial instruments are prepared based on the
contractual maturities as the management considers
that the contractual maturities are essential for an
understanding of the timing of the cash flows of these
derivatives, which have been entered into for hedging
purposes.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A MR R MY R

For the year ended 31 March 2015 # % 2015 % 3 A 31 HiFFE

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 5. MZEITA(E)
(CONTINUED)
5C. Financial risk management objectives and 5C. HiIHEREEEFEREEK
policies (Continued) (#&)
Liquidity risk (continued) TEI R B (48 )
The Group AEE
Weighted Total
average carrying
effective Total amount
interest Within Over undiscounted at year
rate 1year 1-2years  2-5years 5years  cash flows ended
il A% ABRA EX
ERZ 18 1228 0%5E  SENL  EHEHE  LBEE
%  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000
TiEn T#n TR T#n THR TiEn
As at 31 March 2015 20155
3A31A
Non-derivative financial assets 374 B EE
Trade and bills receivables 2o ENET R ENEE - 45,347 - - - 45,347 45,347
Other recivables &R - 7217 - - - 7217 7017
Financial assets at fair value ~ SERRATEAR
through profit or loss LUBEE - 5,820 - - - 5,820 5,820
Bank balances and cash RITERRHS 167 337,495 - - - 337495 337495
395,879 - - - 395879 395,879
Non-derivative financial HTEREEE
liabilities
Trade payables BARMER - 59,946 - - - 59,946 59,946
Other payables and acoruals  EA (B RIEER - 137 - - - M7 171,337
Amount due to non-controling  [ER3E i 58
interest - 389 - - - 389 389
Convertiole notes ARER 12 - 264,609 - - 264699 229,289
281,672 264,699 - - 496,371 460,961
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A MR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2015 # % 2015 % 3 A 31 HiFFZ

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 5. BMIBEIA(E)
(CONTINUED)
5C. Financial risk management objectives and 5C. HBRKMEEBAZERBEER
policies (Continued) (&)
Liquidity risk (continued) TETEE B (4E)
Liquidity table (continued) TEENE S (42 )

Weighted Total
average carrying
effective Total amount
interest Within Over undiscounted at year

rate Tyear  1-2years  2-Hyear 5years  cash flows ended

T RERE X
BRI 16/ 1508 0B5F SENE Reng  BRE[E

%  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
Thr ThET Thr TR T Thr
As at 31 March 2014 20145
3R31H
Non-derivative financial assets 3EfT4BEEE
Trade and bills receivables  EHEUEH RELTE - 8179 - - - 81798 31,793
Other receivables EEREN - 246 - - - BM6 28146
Amount due from a non- e T e
controlling shareholder = 59 = = = 5% 596
Financial assets at fairvalue ~ REHRATEAE
through profit or loss IHBEE - 16,327 - - - 16,327 16,327
Bank balances and cash jichET )i 1.35 400,837 - - - 400837 400,837
472,609 £ 2 - 472699 472699
Trade payables BARNER - 13,660 - = = 13,660 13,660
Other payables and acoruals bR RS ER - 8,048 - - - 8,048 8,048
Amount due to non-controling  FET3E iz 508
interest = 407 = = = 407 407
Bank Borrowings RAEE 660 60830 - - - 60830 60438
Short-term interest bearing Bzt SEE
borrowings 8.04 3,265 - - - 3,265 3,022
Convertible notes mhREE 5 - 7,388 - - 7,388 4,837
8210 738 - - BB 90412
TMERERBERAT 20155 FRH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBRRME
For the year ended 31 March 2015 # % 2015 % 3 A 31 HiFFE

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

5C. Financial risk management objectives and

5. BIHTA(E)

5C. HKEMEEBBEREE

policies (Continued) (&)
Liquidity risk (continued) TEMERE(E)
Liquidity table (continued) BN (&)
The Company b N |
Weighted Total
average carrying
effective Total  amount
interest Within Over undiscounted at year
rate 1year 1-2year  2-5year 5year cash flows ended
mEFH AER EX
R 15/ 1228 2B5F  5ENL HRGHE AKEM
% HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HKS'000  HK$'000
Tér TEx TEx  TExR  TER  TEn
As at 31 March 2015 R2015%
3A31H
Non-derivative financial 474 BKEE
assets
Amount due from subsidiaries JEMH B A BIZUR - 1,068,017 - - - 1,068,017 1,068,017
Bank balancesend cash  H{TERKEE 299 209,489 - - - 209489 209,489
1,277,506 - - - 1,277,506 1,277,506
Non-derivative financial ~ ¥{7T4BKAERE
liabilities
Amount due to subsiclaries  FEfSHIBAFIE - 36,285 - - - 325 36,23
Other payables and accruals  Eftt B
R - 348,899 - - - 348899 348,899
Convertible notes ABRRER 12 - 264,699 - - 264,699 229,289
385,134 264,699 - - 649,833 614423
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2015 # % 2015 % 3 A 31 HiFFZ

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 5. MBIAE)
(CONTINUED)
5C. Financial risk management objectives and 5C. HBRKMEEBAZERBEER
policies (Continued) (&)
Liquidity risk (continued) TETEE B (4E)
Liquidity table (continued) TEENE S (42 )

Weighted Total
average carrying
effective Total amount
interest Within Over undiscounted at year

rate Tyear  1-2years  2-Hyear 5years  cash flows ended
ik 352! RER £X

ERIE ¥R 1EF 0E6F GFNE BBGRE  AREE
%  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS0O0  HK§'000  HKS'00
Thn TR TR TR @ TAT TR

As at 31 March 2014 20145
3A318
Non-derivative financial assets 3474 B BEE
Deposit and other receivables &4 REMERE - 113 - - = 113 113
Amount due from a subsidliaries ERNIBA a8 - 405266 - - - 405266 405266
Bank balances and cash Gk - 131,133 - - - 131,133 131,133
536,512 - - - 536,512 536,512
Non-derivative financial HithHas
liabilities
Amount due to subsidiaries  ESHIBAAZE - 17,354 - - - 17,354 17,354
Other payables and acoruals —~ EA BB R E R - 3,590 - - - 3,590 3,590
Convertible notes AR 5 - 7,383 - - 7,383 4,837
20,944 7,388 - - 28,327 25,781
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5.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

5C.

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Other price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk through
its investment in listed equity securities. The
management manages this exposure by maintaining
a portfolio of investments with different risk and
return profiles. The Group’s equity price risk is mainly
concentrated on equity securities quoted on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. In addition,
the management monitors the price risk and will
consider hedging the risk exposure should the need
arise.

Other price risk — Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined
based on the exposure to equity price risk at the
reporting date.

If equity prices had been 10% higher/lower,
the Group’s profit for the year ended 31 March
2015 would increase/decrease by approximately
HK$582,000 (2014: increase/decrease by
approximately HK$1,633,000). This is mainly due
to the changes in fair value of held-for-trading
investments.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2015 # % 2015 F 3 A 31 HiFFE

5.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

5D.

Fair value

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities
are determined as follows:

o the fair value of financial assets with standard
terms and conditions and traded on active
liquid markets are determined with reference
to quoted market bid prices; and

o the fair value of other financial assets
and financial liabilities are determined in
accordance with generally accepted pricing
models based on discounted cash flow
analysis using prices or rates from observable
current market transactions as input.

Fair value measurements recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position

The following table provides an analysis of financial
instruments that are measured subsequent to initial
recognition at fair value, grouped into Level 1 to
3 based on the degree to which the fair value is
observable:

Level 1: quoted prices in active markets for the
same instrument (i.e., without modification
or repackaging);

Level 2: quoted prices in active markets for similar
assets or liabilities or other valuation
techniques for which all significant inputs
are based on observable market data; and

Level 3: valuation techniques for which any
significant input are not based on
observable market data.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE M RRME
For the year ended 31 March 2015 # % 2015 % 3 A 31 HiFFE

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 5.
(CONTINUED)

5D. Fair value (Continued)

Fair value measurements recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position
(continued)

The following table show an analysis of financial
instruments recorded at fair value by the fair value

BT A(E)

NP EGR)

REEM BRI RAERZZ 2

FlEat 2 (&)

TRETIERFED RS FTE
DERAFEREZEMIAS

hierarchy: #r
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
B gt BE= ABE
HK$’000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$’000
FHAT FHET FHET FHET
As at 31 March 2015 20155
3HA31H
Financial asset at fair KEZIE A FEAR
through profit or loss 2B EE 5,820 - - 5,820
Convertible notes EEES - - 229,289 229,289
As at 31 March 2014 20144
3H31H
Financial asset at fair KB ANTFEAR
through profit or loss TG EE 16,327 = = 16,327
Convertible notes AR EE - - 4,837 4,837

For reconciliation of fair value of convertible notes,
please refer to note 35.

There were no transfers between Level 1 and 2 in the
both years.

There were no transfers into or out of Level 3 in the
both years.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B mRME

For the year ended 31 March 2015 # % 2015 F 3 A 31 HiFFE

6.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group’s operating segments are identification the
basis of internal reports which provides information about
components of the Group. These information are reported
to and received by the chief operating decision maker
(“CODM?”) for the purpose of resource allocation and
performance assessment.

The Group has the following continuing operating segments
during the year. These segments are managed separately.
No operating segments have been aggregated to for the
following reportable segments.

(1) For iron ore exploration and exploitation operations,
the CODM regularly reviews the performance
of the iron ore operation in Indonesia. These
operations have been aggregated into a single
operating segment and named “Iron ore exploration,
exploitation and trading operations”.

2) For securities investment operations, the CODM
regularly reviews the performance of the securities
investment operations. These operations have been
aggregated into a single operating segment and
named “Securities investment”.

(3) For property sales operations, during the current
year, the Company has acquired a subsidiary with
operating the property sale business in the PRC. This
operation has been classified into a single operating
segment and name: “Property sales”.

The Group was involved in following segment which was
discontinued during the year ended 31 March 2015.

For manufacturing and sale of pharmaceutical products
operations, the CODM regularly reviews the performance
of the sales revenue from pharmaceutical products.
These operations have been aggregated into a single
operating segment and named “Manufacturing and sales of
pharmaceutical products”.

7RER
AEELESRRREREBASER
MOERZABRAREERD - %F
EREE2RTIELERRE([EE
LEARAREDUHEERN  UoEE
R EHERE -

=T

pa

ER - REBEETHRELES
B RESENEARNEE « BiEH
BEEmE T AR ESEEAAE

o

(1) HEBEHREARZENS -
RLEERRETHESHRE
HELECRE - WELED
RRTAE—R2ESHAGH
ATHEDE  FARRESE
&l -

2 BEFREXBME  TBE
ERRETHRIBFRER
BORE - REXBHE AR
AR EFREIZE-—RED

-

@) MUEHEEXBME H RAF
B ARAERE KNP EH
REMEHEXEBZHMBE R
Ao WRXKEDBEAE—K
BORABEDMEHE] -

KEBTH R TIBEREZ20159F3
AS1H - FEHMKR I EEE D8 o

REEMBEEREREENS F TEE
BARARETHESEMHERAZR
B WELECAHRE—LENE
Wi [EERHEESER]
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MR R MY R

For the year ended 31 March 2015 # % 2015 % 3 A 31 HiFFE

6.

SEGMENT INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

Segment revenues and result

6. ZTEERE)

DEBARERE

AT RAAEBIZA HMED B WAR
B2 DM

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and
results by reportable segments:

For the year ended 31 March HZE3HASIHILLEE

128

Continuing Operations
REGEEY
[ron ore exploration, Securities
exploitation investment Property Sales Unallocated Consolidation
HRER  BE FERE NEHE AR &8
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
(& E51) (&Z51) EE) (iE=5) e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HKS'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS$000  HK$'000
Tén TEr THrn TEr TEx  TEr  THn T TEr  TER
Sales to external customers [IAMIREHE - 17028 (3840) 1,161 - - 280 - (3,560) 18,189
Total revenue B - 1708 (3%40) 1,16 - - - (3560) 18,189
Segment results HBsE 6409 5442 (10965 (248  (8509) - - - (BgT) 2958
Other revenue EHA - - 410 651 - - 3,876 2,267 4,086 2918
Other gaing At - - - - - - - 8012 - 8012
Gain on bargain purchase  ZEWENE - - - - 93,087 - - - 93,087 -
Provision for impaiment ~ EFAEHE
loss on intangible Bk
assels (168,34 (275,644 - - - - - - (168349 (7564
FairValug changeson ~ REHIRATENR
fnancial assets atfar 2 BHEEL
value through profit or loss  AT(EEE - - (703) (653) - - - - (703) (653
Farvaluechangeson  W#KEE7
convertile notes ATESH - - - - - - - 7919 - 7919
Central administraion ~ HRAHAA
costs - - - - - - (T1544) (103899 (77,544) (103:899)
Gain on disposal of HERBL RN
subsidiaries - - - - - - 2,186 - 2,186 -
Finance costs AERE - = - = - - (36,779 (6592 (36,779) (659
Loss before taxation RHAER - - - - - - - - (209,686) (349,981)
Taxation fiE - (61) - - - - (368) (53) (368) (114
Loss for the year TEEER - - - - - - - - (210,054)  (350,099)

Asia Resources Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2015 # % 2015 F 3 A 31 HiFFE

6.

SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. DEEBE)
(CONTINUED)
Segment revenues and result (Continued) TEIRAREE(E)
Revenue reported above represents revenue generated from LA B3 2 WATR R BN R P 2 1
external customers. There were no inter—-segment sales A o FRAW D FEME 2 HE ©
during the year.
Segment results represent the loss suffered by each DHEEBESBOEMEX 2 EE -
segment without allocation of other revenue, other gain, BERDBEEMBA - EMlas - =i
other expense, fair value change on financial assets at fair MY  KEREATFEARZYBHE
value through profit or loss, fair value change on convertible EXATEES REREBRECAF
notes, central administration costs, gain on bargain BEEE) - PRITHAAN  HmERER
purchase, finance costs and taxation. This is the measure o MEKARTIE o I REZEE
reported to the CODM for the purpose of resource allocation ERREERIEE  BEETER
and assessment of segment performance. S KD EFRIFT -
The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets by U TEAEEEERAIRESEE D
reportable segments: 2
Discontinued
Continuing Operations Operations
RECEEY BALLER
Iron ore exploration, Manufacturing and
exploitation and Securities sales of pharmaceutical
trading operations investment Property Sales products Consolidation
HIEER  BER
EH%E R#ERE NEHE LER#EER &e
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS$000  HK$'000
Tén Thn TEx TEr TR TExr  TEn  TEr  FEn  TEn
ASSETS BE
Segment assets DEEE 46,858 239081 34,288 45151 1,196,686 - 82569 126946 1,360,401 410,178
Unallocated corporate AORCEEAE
assets 302,880 597,499
1,663,281 1,007,677
LIABILITIES &
Segment liablties HEBE (129  (127) (23) (24)  (240,490) - (66,143) (79,994 (306,785)  (80,145)
Unallocated comporate ~~ AAEAEEE
febiies (267125 (10381)
(573,910)  (90,526)
EMNERERBERAT  2015FF5HR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBE|RHE

For the year ended 31 March 2015 # % 2015 % 3 A 31 HiFFE

6.

130

SEGMENT INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

Segment revenues and result (Continued)

For the purposes of assessing segment performance and
allocating resources between segments, the directors of
the company monitor the results, assets and liabilities
attributable to each reportable segment on the following
basis:

All assets are allocated to reportable segments other than
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss and
unallocated corporate assets (mainly include property, plant
and equipment, bank balances and cash that are used by the
investment holding company and other receivables that are
receivable by the investment holding companies).

All liabilities are allocated to reportable segments other than
convertible notes, deferred tax liabilities and unallocated
corporate liabilities (mainly include other payables and
accruals borne by the investment holding companies).

Asia Resources Holdings Limited Annual Report 2015
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2015 # % 2015 4 3 A 31 HIFFZ

6.

SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. TEERE
(CONTINUED)
Other segment information BHuoEER
Discontinued
Continuing Operations Operations
i e BRLRE
Iron ore exploration, Manufacturing and
exploitation and Securities sales of pharmaceutical
trading operations investment Property Sales products Unallocation Consolidation
HEER mRREZEE 25K NREE SERBEER R g
2015 214 215 2014 2015 2014 2015 014 2015 2014 2015 014
HKS'000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKSO000  HKS000  HKSO00  HKS000  HKSO00  HKS000  HKS0O0  HKS000  HKSO000
fdn  TEn T TR TR B TER A T TEn TR Tin
Addions to property, plant and equipment %1%  BERZE 1,567 3,095 197 186 1,078 - 1,626 11,382 489 2073 4957 16,736
Depreciation of property, plant and 0 ERRARRE
equipment 1512 1,080 5 108 348 = 18,324 14105 3,035 2475 18,217 17763
Amortisaton o intangile assets EYEREE 016 78905 - - - - - - - - M 7896
Amortisafion of prepeid ease payment  BRAEFEEH - - - - - - 119 119 - - 119 119
Reversalof impaiment oss recognised i~ ZBEUERED HEBERE
respect of trade receivable - - - - - - 3,756 3,106 - - 3,756 3,706
Reversel of impaiment loss recognisedn -~ EfBUE BT HEERED
respect of other receivable - - - - - - - - - 2012 - 23012
Provison for mpaiment loss on BoRNER RERERE
rade recelvables - - - - - - 2,199 2,635 - - 2,199 2,63
Provison for mpaitment loss on EREE RERERE
infangible assets 168,342 216644 - - - - - - - - 168342 2564

DNERZERBRAR 20155 FH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE M RRME
For the year ended 31 March 2015 # % 2015 % 3 A 31 HiFFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

Geographical information

The Group operates in four principal geographical areas —
the PRC, Hong Kong, Mongolia and Indonesia.

The Group’s revenue from external customers and
information about its non-current assets by geographical
location are detailed below:

THRER (&)

HEE R

AEEENEErEmERLE —FE -
B FRAKRHE -

AEBERBINBEEZWAREBE
ERBEAECGRINBAERIS) 2 &R
SR

Revenue from

external customers Non-current assets
RE PR F RS FERBEE
2015 2014 2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHEIT FHET FHTT
(Restated)
(E3)
The PRC =e)E 280 - 401,128 111,928
Hong Kong B (3,840) 1,161 - 135,011
Mongolia = - - - 248
Indonesia ENE - 17,028 39,380 231,086
(3,560) 18,189 440,508 478,273
Information about major customers FEEFEHR

No information about major customers is presented as no
single customer contributed over 10% of the total revenue of
the Group during the years ended 31 March 2015 and 2014.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2015 # % 2015 F 3 A 31 HiFFE

7. REVENUE 7. WA
Revenue, which is stated net of value added tax and other WA THRELZ 20154 201443 A 31
sales taxes and returns, represents amounts invoiced BIEFERERFHEEHDHNREE
to customers for sales of iron ore sand, and securities MEEMEER M RER 2SR
investment during the years ended 31 March 2015 and MBERESH -
2014.
An analysis of the Group's turnover for the year is as follows: AREBNRANFEZEEEOWTAT ¢
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHExT THT
(Restated)
(&E7)
Continuing operations BEKEER
Sales of iron ore sand HEE - 17,028
Securities investment, net BHEE - B8
Proceeds on sales SHE TS RIE 50,115 48,403
Less: Cost of sales T SHE KA (53,955) (47,242)
(3,840) 1,161
Other Hih 280 -
(3,560) 18,189
8. OTHER REVENUE 8. Hftlt A
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHExT THT
Continuing operations BEREERL
Interest income on bank deposits RITHERF EHA 1,364 1,323
Dividend income form financial assets &EZIZAFEARZ
at fair value though profit or loss B 75 & 2 2 B BURA 410 651
Sundry and other operating income I8 [z H b & & g A 2,512 944
4,286 2,918

THERERERAT 20155FH% 133
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MR R MY R

For the year ended 31 March 2015 # % 2015 % 3 A 31 HiFFE

9. OTHER GAINS 9. Hfttlkz
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHIT
(Restated)
(5&&E7)
Continuing operations BESEER
Reversal of impairment loss LA A FEMER IR 2
recognised in respect of other VERIEN =L e
receivables - 23,012
Fair value change on convertible notes AJ #1224 ~ A T (& & &)
(Note) (HiaE) - 7,919
- 30,931
Note: et
Included in fair value change on convertible notes amount of HK$Nil (2014: HRREZ A TEEHBERERAHRRER
HK$ 7,919,000) was the realised gain upon the conversion of convertible B2 BETAIT(20144F : 7,919,000/87C) 2
notes. B IS o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2015 # % 2015 F 3 A 31 HiFFE

10.

11.

FINANCE COSTS 10. A& A
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
(Restated)
(&E5))
Continuing operations BEKSEXER
Interest paid for convertible notes R ER S N, - 2,926
Imputed interest on convertible notes  AJ# AR Z 15 & 51| 5 36,779 3,666
36,779 6,592
LOSS BEFORE TAXATION 1. BRBIAIESE
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT T
(Restated)
(#£E7)
The Group’s loss from continuing ZAEBWNFESEEKER
operations is carried at after TSRAMBR (5t A) THIE1E
charging/(crediting): BmE:
Directors’ remuneration (note 12) BEME (MiE12) 25,150 2,775
Other staff costs H 8 TR 3,747 5,161
Share-based payment expenses AR% 1D 2 B 2 6,448 -
Other staff’s retirement benefits HAth 8 T 2 R RAEFIET B 5K
scheme contributions 186 205
Total salaries N aRE 35,531 8,141
Depreciation of property, Y - BB REEITE
plant and equipment 4,953 3,659
Amortisation of intangible assets AT A A B 20,716 78,905
Total depreciation and amortisation — #7& &4 42%58 25,669 82,564
Auditors’ remuneration A Gl
— audit services — ZE R 980 500
— non-audit services — IEZHPRTE 560 130
1,540 630
Minimum lease payments under KEROT 2 HERS K
operating leases 2,628 1,915
Cost of inventory recognised RERZ ZFERA
as an expense 61 7,430
Fair value change on financial assets &EZFIZAFEARZHBKE
at fair value through profit or loss EZ RV EES 703 653
Exchange loss, net b 5 E1E  JF R 72 872
Reversal at impairment loss on PERENSEtEdE
— trade receivables — B SRR (3,756) (3,706)
— other receivables — H b fE W AR 3K - (23,012)
EMNERERERAT  2015FF3R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MR R MY R

For the year ended 31 March 2015 # % 2015 % 3 A 31 HiFFE

12. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS 12. EEME
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the directors BN ENEMEESZMES T

were as follows:

Retirement
Salaries and henefits scheme
Directors' fegs other benefits Sharg options contributions Total
£ FERALER i UL i ]

2015 Pt 2015 2014 16 01 2015 0t 2015 Pl
HKSO00  HKS000  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKS'000  HKSO00  HKS000  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSO00
fan AT TAR TEn TR TR TR TEn TR TER

Executive directors: #iES.
. Huang Yilin (Chaimnan) (note ) BRI (2R ) - - k! - - : - . n _
Mr. Chim Kim Lun, Ricky rote EHEREH) - - w0 B - 1 5 66 136
M, Wang Sh rote i TR W) - - 5 - - - - - 5 -
Mr.Sun Sz ote ) Fasrsan) 5 - - - - - - - 5 =
Mr.Cheung Kal Kvvong ot ) el ) 0 ) i - 38 - 15 I 4
r. Yeung Yiu Bong, Anthony (note v~ BER &4 (i) 0 10 %7 - - 13 5 45y 45
Hr.Lin Chengdong WHREE 3 i % - W = . - i
Mr, L Janling rotg v ERRRE(N i) 3 i % - - - - i
Wr. Chan St Yin,Keith rote v KRt (i) 7 - - - - - 3 - 78 -
. Mo Tsz Yok (rote ) ATERE ) 6 - - - - - 3 = 5 =
1515 0 1H8 130 1938 - 9 L/ A
Non-executive director HITES.
Hr. Tong Leung Sang (ote FRERE) 1% 152 - - 151 - - - 53 15
Independent non-executve directors:  BUFHAEES :
M. Lum Pak Sum (ote WER (K0 190 15 - - 41 - - - 561 15
Mr. Znang Xain i 156 152 - - 451 - - - 607 152
M. Kook Hong Yee, Jesse PERRE 1% 152 - - 41 - - - 607 152
. Ho Cnun Kt Gregory (rofei) A2 i) 0 - - - - - - - 0 -
i 15 - B K - - -8 15
A 140 1M 10 204 - ) 5 BE 2
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBRRME
For the year ended 31 March 2015 # % 2015 F 3 A 31 HiFFE

12. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

Notes:

(i) Mr. Huang Yillin was appointed on 23 January 2015.
(if) Mr. Chim Kim Lun, Ricky was resigned on 11 December 2014.

(iif) Mr. Wang Shi was appointed on 11 December 2014 and was
resigned on 23 January 2015.

(iv) Mr. Sun Sizhi was appointed on 11 December 2014 and was
resigned on 23 January 2015.

V) Mr. Cheung Kai Kwong was resigned on 20 January 2015.

=

Vi) Mr. Yeung Yiu Bong, Anthony was resigned on 20 January 2015.

(

(

(vii) Mr. Lu Jianling was resigned on 23 January 2015.

(viii) Mr. Chan Shi Yin, Keith was appointed on 23 January 2015.
(ix) Mr. Mo Tsz Yuk was appointed on 30 January 2015.

(X) Mr. Tong Leung Sang was resigned on 4 February 2015.

(xi) Mr. Lum Pak Sum was resigned on 1 February 2015.

(ii) Mr. Ho Chun Kit, Gregory was appointed on 9 February 2015.

During the years ended 31 March 2015 and 2014, no
remunerations were paid by the Group to the directors as
an inducement to join, or upon joining the Group, or as
compensation for loss of office. None of the directors has
waived or agreed to waive any emoluments during the years
ended 31 March 2015 and 2014.

12. EEM € (&)

BRI LR N2015%F1 A23AER(T »
ERIELERR2014F12 811 BEHE ©
TARELEER2014F12 811 HERE
K2015%F 1 A23 B BHE °
AZBEEAEN2014F12 11 B EER
ERA2015% 1 A23 A BT »
REOLALEER201551 208 BHET ©
IR FEER2015%F1 20 BHE ©
ERBRENEN201561 A23HEHT ©
BREFE LA D R2015F 1 A23HEERAE -
RTEERAEEN20151 A30RER(T -
B R ERER2015F2 B4R BHT -
MIEZR LR ER20155F2 A1 BEHT °
AR AR R2015F2 AORBR T -

REZE20154% K2014F3 A31H IEF
B AEBBESNTESHEER
HEEMAZRMARERE 2 855k
BEBR (8 o MELZE 20154 K 201443
A31BLFE  HEEFEREXRE
N -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE M RRME
For the year ended 31 March 2015 # % 2015 % 3 A 31 HiFFE

13. EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS
Continuing operations

(a) Five highest paid individuals
The aggregate emoluments of the five highest paid
individuals for the year included 5 (2014: 3) executive
directors of the Company, whose emoluments are
included in note 12 above.

13. EEME

(&) HERBHAL

REERERERFATZHE
BEEBIEARAFSHE (20145 -
3E)VHITES - AMESFEH
X BzE12

2015 2014

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET TET

Salaries and other benefits 4 R EH G F - 1,784
Retirement benefits scheme RORBFIET B R

contributions - 30

- 1,814

Their emoluments were all within HK$1,000,000.

During both years ended 31 March 2015 and 2014,
no emoluments were paid by the Group to the five
highest paid individuals as an inducement to join or
upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of
office.

(b) Senior management of the Group
The emoluments of the non-Directors senior
management included in abovementioned five highest
paid individuals of the Group are within the following
bands:

(b)

% % 2 Bl £ 19 #£1,000,0007%8
TCLAR ©

RELZE2015%F K 20143 A
1HIEMEFEE @ NEE &
YR TFTREEREHALTMEE
BEEMATRINARE B
2 B BB E o

rEEzEREZE
ARBFREFEHRREERE
(R EXRABRSFALIZ
e BIA TR -

Number of individuals

A
2015 2014
HK$Nil-1,000,000 Z£2%1,000,000/% 7T 2 3
During both years ended 31 March 2015 and 2014, REE2015F & 2014F 3 A

no emoluments were paid by the Group to the senior
management as an inducement to join or upon joining
the Group or as compensation for loss of office.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBRRME
For the year ended 31 March 2015 # % 2015 F 3 A 31 HiFFE

14. TAXATION

Continuing operations

14. $iE

HEREERE

2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTER FAT
(Restated)
(&E5))

Current tax RV AT 18
- Hong Kong profit tax —EBFEH 368 114
- PRC corporate income tax — B EMEH - -
— Indonesia corporate income tax —ENJEZEFTIEH - -
— Mongolia corporate income tax —RaEMREHR - -
Tax charge HIEMAX 368 114

Hong Kong profit tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5%
(2014: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profit arising in
Hong Kong during the year.

Subsidiaries in Indonesia are subjected to corporate income
tax at 25% for the years ended 31 March 2015 and 2014.

Subsidiary in Mongolia is subjected to corporate income tax
at 10% for the years ended 31 March 2015 and 2014.

Subsidiaries in the PRC are subjected to the PRC Enterprise
Income Tax at 25% for the years ended 31 March 2015 and
2014.

No provision for Indonesia corporate income tax, Mongolia
corporate income tax and the PRC Enterprise Income Tax
has been made in the consolidated financial statements
respectively as the Group incurred taxation losses in
Indonesia, Mongolia and the PRC for the years ended 31
March 2015 and 2014.

In accordance to the tax assessment Inland Revenue
Department of tax losses of approximately HK$64,187,000
can be carried forward to offset the future taxable profits.
No deferred tax asset has been recognised due to the
unpredictability of the future profit stream.

BEENESHEERAFEERBE
EZEETERR R 2 E16.5%
(20144 : 16.5% ) &g -

HZE2015%F 20143 A31 A IFF
&+ ENFE Z B A BIZB IR 25% 85 1
HEATSH ©

HZE2015%F 20143 A31H IFF
& S ZHB A AR 10%E NG
TSR ©

HZE2015%F K2014E3A31H IFF
& B Z B A FIER25 % &
B EFTER o

H E20154% K2014F3A31 B L&
E - ARAEERIE » d KFE
BFEFHIEEE - W RRERE B %R
KAGENEREMEH « ShhEA
SRR RPBECEAMSRIREE -

RIER T B IAEE - 464,187,000
ST R TE R 18 0] A5 EE DA B R A Y
FRIE A o R B &SRR a]
TERIE - WEREREERIBAE °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R

BB WK E

For the year ended 31 March 2015 # % 2015 % 3 A 31 HiFFE

140

14

15.

. TAXATION (CONTINUED) 14. Bi1E(H)
The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the loss RNEE 7B EEEBELE
before taxation per consolidated statement of profit or loss b2 T W 2= 3R 2 BR B AT &S 1R T BR a0
and other comprehensive income as follows: T
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000
F&ET FHIT
(Restated)
(&&E7)
Loss before taxation (from continuing & %% Bl E 18 (3K B 15 4&
operations) TR 209,686 349,981
Tax at the applicable income tax rate & A FT{S B fi R 518 2 B8 27,315 58,604
Tax effect of expenses not deductible FEHHIEM = N EHT L 2
for tax purposes MIEE (25,922) (43,706)
Tax effect of income not taxable for  FAFLIEM = BERFUA ZFi
tax purposes Hy & 23,271 5,427
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised R 7 #i 18 &8 2 B8
= (24,296) (20,211)
Tax charge for the year NEEBIBRE 368 114

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

On 9 April 2015, the Company entered into the Sales and
Purchase Agreement (the “Sales and Purchase Agreement”)
that manufacturing and sales of pharmaceutical products
operations were discontinued following the disposal of
Billion Source Investments Limited (“Billion Source”), a
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, and
its subsidiaries (collectively known as the “Billion Source
Group”), which carried out all of the Group’s manufacturing
and sale of pharmaceutical product operations.
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MN2015F 4898 » "RQ AL
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Source Investments Limited(
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2015 # % 2015 F 3 A 31 HiFFE

15. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS 15. R IEEK(E)

(CONTINUED)

The major classes of assets and liabilities of Billion Source
Group classified as assets held for sale and liabilities directly
associated with assets classified as held for sale as at 31
March 2015 was detailed in Note 16.

For the year ended 31 March 2015, the results and cash
flows of the Billion Source Group are treated as discontinued
operations. The comparative consolidated statement of
profit or loss and related notes have been represented as
if the operation discontinued during the year have been
discontinued at the beginning of the comparative period.

Analysis of loss for the year from discontinued
operations

The comparative loss and cash flows from discontinued
operations have been re-presented to include those
operations classified as discontinued in the current year.

7201543 A31H - Billion Sourcets
BrzoBEARELEEERENEA
BIEHEEEERMAE ABZEE
HREERBE  FFRENRHE6 -

HZ2015943 A31 B L4 Z - Billion
SourcelE B 7 2ENIREREWHR A
BRIEFET - bR ASEER LA
MEEEMZ27 - MOFARE LR
B EBE R EABVIR IEEE o

HREACKRUEEXEBCFEBEZ
2
REERIERBZUREBIAERR
EEEHRIIRAFREROBRER
IERA -

2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHEIT
(Restated)
(& E3)
Revenue WA 54,744 96,324
Cost of sales SHE RN (52,535) (86,859)
Gross profit ES| 2,209 9,465
Other revenue H A WA 10 652
Other gains Hfth Wz 3,765 3,706
Distribution and selling expenses DEMEEER (7,460) (12,055)
Administrative expenses THAX (29,750) (15,759)
Finance costs BhE A A (4,022) (4,975)
Loss before taxation FRELRIEE (35,248) (18,966)
Taxation F518 - _
Loss for the year from discontinued — ZN4E[E 3 A B 4% 1 274
operations ZEia (35,248) (18,966)
Loss for the year from discontinued FE{LARFEERBE SR IE%£T
operations attributable to: 28
Owners of the Company ZIN/NEIET SN (85,248) (18,966)
TNERERERAT 2015558 141
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A MR R MY R

For the year ended 31 March 2015 # % 2015 % 3 A 31 HiFFE

15. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS 15. B IEERK(
(CONTINUED)
Analysis of loss for the year from discontinued HREERLEXBZFEBERZ
operations (Continued) D (&)
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000
F&T TFET

The Group’s loss from discontinued
operations is carried at after
charging/(crediting):

Staff costs

Staff’s retirement benefits scheme
contributions

Total salaries

Depreciation of property, plant
and equipment

Amortisation of prepaid lease
payments

Total depreciation and amortisation

Cost of inventory recognised as
an expense

Cash flows from discontinued
operations:
Net cash generated from
operating activities
Net cash used in investing activities
Net cash used in financing activities

Net cash decrease in cash and
cash equivalents

Effect of foreign exchange rate
exchanges

Net cash outflow

AEBENERIEEBEERIIN
Mk GEA) T IS HEER

R
8 Ty Zx 8,184 9,426
BT ZRIREFIET 85K
3,799 3,685
e b 11,983 13,111
ME - BERRETE
13,324 14,104
TEAH R & R TE 8
119 119
WrE B 13,443 14,223
BREBAST Z2FEK A
50,910 78,904
RECDKRIEEL 2
HERE -
R ELIN S R
8,268 13,109
WEEBFTAESFE (1,792) (16,682)
A EETARE FEE (7,049) (23,242)
BeEMRESEDRS
FRR (573) (26,815)
SNPENE R B &
355 1,839
R R FE (218) (24,976)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A MR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2015 # % 2015 % 3 A 31 HiFFZ

16. ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD
FOR SALE/LIABILITIES DIRECTLY
ASSOCIATED WITH ASSETS
CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE

16. 2 EARFEHEEE

B2 73

EEMEBzEE

The Group
rEE
2015 2014
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
Hat FTER FHET
Property, plant and equipment ME - BB K& E 18
(note i) (Hrati) 52,237 -
Prepaid lease payments (note i)  TEFEERIE (M 5Ei) 20 3,911 -
Inventories FE 20 2,355 -
Trade and bills receivables EHRBEARERERE 24 17,476 —
Other receivables, deposits and ~ H i EUREET - 128 & 25
prepayment TE T FRIE 3,592 -
Tax recoverable AT EF IR 586 -
Bank balances and cash RITHB RS 27 2,412 -
Assets classified as held for sale B AZFIEHEEE 82,569 -
Trade payables B S TR 28 3,094 -
Other payables and accruals HiESERERARETER 29 2,120 =
Bank borrowings (note i, ii, iii) SRITEE (BT~ i ~ i) 60,929 -
Liabilities directly associated with  E5 48 BiF{EHEEE
assets classified as held for sale  HEMRBEZEE 66,143 -
Notes: Kt -

(i) As at 31 March 2015, the bank borrowings were secured by the land
use right, building and machinery of approximately HK$3,911,000,
HK$22,765,000 and HK$12,940,000 respectively.

(i) The contractual floating interest rate in respect of bank borrowings at

31 March 2015 was 6.60%.

(i) As at 31 March 2015, the bank borrowings amounting to
approximately HK$60,929,000 were denominated in RMB.

)

M2015463A318 « BITEEIUD H
493,911,000/ 7T ~ 22,765,000/ 7T K.
12,940,000 c 2 T E R #E - EF
R ER{EHEAR o

M201543 8318 « RITEEZEYD
T B)FI R 56.60% °

R201543 A31H © 460,929,000/
THRITERETIAA R HE °

EMNERERERAT  2015FF3R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A MR R MY R

For the year ended 31 March 2015 # % 2015 % 3 A 31 HiFFE

17. LOSS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE 17. ZXFEEXLATHES AE

TO OWNERS OF THE COMPANY
FOR THE YEAR

From continuing and discontinued operations

The calculation of the basic loss per share attributable to the
owners of the Company is based on the
following data:

HERER

REFBESEEBERORIERK

AR RFA A FREARETYIR
BUAT BB

2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHTT
Loss &8
Loss for the year from continuing AKRBEE ANEEREE
operations for the year attributable REFELEEKESR
to the owners of the Company (121,904) (188,102)
Loss for the year from discontinued KREEBANBLAREER
operations attributable REBRIEXEBERE
to the owners of the Company (35,248) (18,966)
(157,152) (207,068)
2015 2014
000 Shares 000 Shares
TR Fhg
Number of shares Az 2 B
Weighted average number of shares REFTEEREREF 2
for the purpose of basic earnings AR5 INREF 35 B (M1 57)
per share (note) 1,862,618 198,963

Note:

The basic and diluted loss per share from continuing and discontinued
operations are the same for the years ended 31 March 2015 and 2014, as the
effect of the share options and convertible notes would be anti—dilutive and
were not included in the calculation of diluted loss per share.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2015 # % 2015 F 3 A 31 HiFFE

17.

LOSS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE 17. "FEEXARIEE AE
TO OWNERS OF THE COMPANY LHERER(E)
FOR THE YEAR (CONTINUED)
From continuing operations REFESEER
The calculation of the basic loss per share from continuing RATHAEAELEREHERSLER
operations attributable to the owners of the ZEREREBHERATEERET
Company is based on the following data: HE
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTHERT FHET
Loss for the year from continuing RARER AE
operations attributable to the REZRBFELE
owners of the Company ¥%EE (121,904) (188,102)

The basic and diluted loss per share from continuing
operations are the same for the years ended 31 March 2015
and 2014, as the effect of the share options and convertible
notes would be anti—-dilutive and were not included in the
calculation of diluted loss per share.

From discontinued operation

Basic loss per share from discontinued operations is
HK$0.018 per share (2014 (restated): HK$0.09 per share),
based on the loss for the year from discontinued operations
attributable to the owners of the Company of approximately
HK$35,248,000 (2014: HK$18,966,000). The denominators
used are the same as those detailed above for both basic
and diluted earnings per share.

The basic and diluted loss per share from discontinued
operations are the same for the years ended 31 March 2015
and 2014, as the effect of the share options and convertible
notes would be anti—-dilutive and were not included in the
calculation of diluted loss per share.

HRERERTREERSAREE
tEREETREEEREEER 25
b B E E 2015 K 20144E3 A
SIBLEFEZRERBELEEB T
MREAR R EEE AR o

RECKILER

REERIEEBCEBERELRER
AT IR0.018F L (2014 F (KL &E
A) : BR0.09EB L) ERAR
ABEEAEEERLEEB FE
&5 18 # 35,248,000 7% JT (2014 4F -
18,966,000/8 7T ) ° FTA o &} 8 £ 3¢
AT ESREAREERFE
EI

HRERER TR ERSAREE
ERBETBEEEREEEE 25
b B E E 2015 K 20144E3 A
J1BLFEZREEKRIEES TR
BEARREEEIEAR -

DNERZERBRAR 20155 FH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBRRME
For the year ended 31 March 2015 # % 2015 % 3 A 31 HiFFE

18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 18

Furniture,
fixtures
and office Leasehold Motor Plantand  Construction
Buildings equipment  improvements vehicles machinery  in progress Total
$E FAR HENE HER
Br  BOERE 2 e K8 fRIR 4z
HK§'000 HKS000 HK§000 HK§'000 HK$ 000 HK§'000 HK§'000
Thn Thn Thn Thn Thn Thn Thn
Cost A
At 1 April 2013 R013E4A1R 85,062 8,709 1,681 5145 76,658 2 177,280
Acquisiton of subsidiary WENBAR - - - - - - -
Additions ) 4,061 2,629 2474 - 1312 - 16,736
Disposals ik - (1) - - - - (516)
Transfer from Gonstruction n progress EORRTR - - - - % (25) -
Reclassified from investment properties — KRENEENHE 40877 - - - - - 40877
Exchange adjustments ENRE 1,764 474 (154 17 (453 - 1648
At 31 March 2014 and 1 April 2014 H014EIRSAR
N14E4R1H 131,964 11,296 4,001 5,162 83,602 - 236,026
Acquisttion of subsidiary (note 36) WENELA Hits) - 5 - 1,063 - - 1118
Additions #A 7 1,38 199 653 2,101 - 4,957
Disposs te (2 222 (156) 1959) (17414 - 0970)
Disposal of subsidiares HENBAR - 1) - - - - gl
Reclassifed to assets classifed ENDRENRARE
s held to sle (note) HEBE(HH) (91,376) (9419 - (3998 (58,256) - (163,049)
Exchange adjustments ErEx 90 60 (139 y (854) - 8
At 31 March 2015 015538318 41,335 825 3,905 1968 9,119 - b7.812
Accumulated depreciation and impaiment 23T ERHE
At 1 Apri 2013 R013E4A1A 39,266 6,844 1,165 3,033 49,286 - 99,604
Charge for the year ERg 6,560 1,348 21 1148 8,481 - 17,163
Eiminated on disposals HER - (453 - - - - [859)
Exchange adjustments EfEE 630 182 29 14 706 - 1,503
At 31 March 2014 and 1 April 2014 H014EIA3IER
14F4R1R 46,481 7,921 1347 4195 HBAT3 = 1847
Acquisiton of subsidlary WENBAR - - - 218 - - 218
Charge for the year ERg 7,156 1462 580 681 8,398 - 18217
Biminated on disposal of subsidiaries ~ HENBAAKHH - (187) - - - - (137)
Eiminated on cisposals iHERH (14 (1,710) (62 (907) (13,803 = (16,696)
Reclassifed to assets classffed ENNRENRARE
as held to sl note) hERRMHL) (48.897) (7 410) - (3.445) (51,060 - (110812
Exchange adjustments EiaE 40 133 (50) 30 173 - 686
At 31 March 2015 H015%53R31A 4,926 259 181 m 2,181 - 9,953
Carrying amounts Eif
At 31 March 2015 H2015E3531A 36,409 566 2,090 1,1% 759 - 47,859
At 31 March 2014 R2014E3R31R 85,483 3,375 2,654 9%7 2,129 - 117,608

146 Asia Resources Holdings Limited Annual Report 2015



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A MR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2015 # % 2015 F 3 A 31 HiFFE

18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND

EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED)

18. ¥% - MEKRE (&)

The Company AAF
Furniture Leasehold
and fixture improvement Total
ERREE HEWEEE e
HK’000 HK’000 HK’000
FHR FHR FHx
Cost AR AR
At 1 April 2013 R2013F4 A1H 4,027 86 4,113
Additions b7 12 = 12
At 31 March 2014 and R20144F
1 April 2014 3H31H K
2014%F4 A1H 4,039 86 4,125
Disposal HE (12) = (12)
At 31 March 2015 R20154F
3H31H 4,027 86 4,113
Accumulated ZItiInE
depreciation
At 1 April 2013 R2013F4 A1 H 4,027 86 4,113
Charge for the year FRZ W 1 = 1
At 31 March 2014 and R20144
1 April 2014 3H31H K
2014F4H1H 4,028 86 4,114
Charge for the year FRZH 2 - 2
Eliminated on disposals 5 R £ Q) - 3)
At 31 March 2015 R20154
3H31H 4,027 86 4,113
Carrying amount REE
At 31 March 2015 R20154
3H31H = = -
At 31 March 2014 R20144
3H31H 11 = 11
Note: HaE -

As at 31 March 2015, property, plant and equipment with a carrying amount of
approximately HK$52,237,000 have been reclassified to assets classified as
held for sale (for details, please refer to note 16).

K2015643 A31H + AR 452,237,00058 7T
ZWE  BERSEHEEENDBEDERFE

& B2 (B R

DNERZEREBRA R

[ S

GEGES

BAFzE16) ©

2015F F 3R
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19. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

For the year ended 31 March 2015 # % 2015 % 3 A 31 HiFFE

19. WEWE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MR R MY R

HK$’000
FHET
Cost: A
At 1 April 2013 R2013F4 81 H 41,131
Transfer to property, plant and equipment ~ EZE¥% - HE & E G (41,131)
Exchange adjustment BE 5, =
At 31 March 2014, 1 April 2014 and 20143 H318 + 2014F4F1H
31 March 2015 K2015%F3H31H =
Accumulated depreciation and ZFMERRE :
impairment:
At 1 April 2013 201354 H1H 254
Eliminate on transfer to property, HEYE B &R EREE
plant and equipment (254)

Exchange adjustment

At 31 March 2014, 1 April 2014 and
31 March 2015

Carrying amount:
At 31 March 2015

At 31 March 2014

Asia Resources Holdings Limited Annual Report 2015
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A MR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2015 # % 2015 % 3 A 31 HiFFZ

for sale (for details, please refer to note 16).

As at 31 March 2015, land use rights having a carrying amount of
approximately HK$3,911,000 have been reclassified to asset classified as held

M20155F3A318 + BREE 493,911,000 7T 2 1 b {5 F
BESFTOBRESBEARELEEE(BRAFERFE2HN
#£16) °

DNERZEREBRA R

20. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS 20. EHEMRE
The Group’s prepaid lease payments comprise: AEBEZENHEERERRE :
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHExT THT
Leasehold land outside Hong Kong: & LASNZ FAE b
Medium term lease R HAFH 49 - 3,999
Analysed for reporting purposes as:  RIEERE DT
Current portion BEAER - 119
Non—current portion FERNERER - 3,880
- 3,999
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHExT FHT
Cost AR AN
At the beginning of the year REA] 5,183 5,100
Reclassified to assets classifies EHNBENER
as held to sale (note) BEREEE (W) (5,225) -
Exchange adjustment ME 5, 8 B 42 83
- 5,183
Accumulated depreciation ZETIE
At the beginning of the year REL 1,184 1,048
Charge for the year FRZH 119 119
Reclassified to assets classifies ENOBENESR
as held for sale (note) BIEHEEEWZE) (1,314) =
Exchange adjustment RIS 11 17
At the end of the year RER - 1,184
Net book value BREDFE - 3,999
Note: Hiat -

2015F F 3R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBE|RHE

For the year ended 31 March 2015 # % 2015 % 3 A 31 HiFFE

21. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

21. B EE

Exclusive
right
BREF
HK$’000
FHT
Cost A
At 1 April 2013, 31 March 2014, R2013F4H18 » 201463H318 »
1 April 2014 and 31 April 2015 20144818 k20154 H31H 576,334
Accumulated amortisation At EHE R R E
and impairment
At 1 April 2013 R2013%F4 /818
Charge for the year FATH 78,905
Impairment loss recognised BRERBEEE 275,644
At 31 March 2014 and 1 April 2014 R2014F3A31H K2014%F4H1H 354,549
Charge for the year FAZH 20,716
Impairment loss recognised EHERREEE 168,342
At 31 March 2015 201563 H31H 543,607
Carrying amounts IRMEE
At 31 March 2015 7201563831 H 32,727
At 31 March 2014 201463 H31H 221,785

Notes:

Exclusive right represents the Deed of Statement and Power of Attorney dated
12 September 2009 and made between PT. Indo Modern Mining Sejahtera
(“Indo”), the holder of the operation license in the mining are located in
Lumajang, East Java, Indonesia, and PT. Dampar Golden International (“PT.
Dampar”), pursuant to which, Indo grants exclusive rights and authorities to
PT. Dampar to manage and arrange all activities in the mining area on behalf
of Indo.

Exclusive right is amortised on a straight-line basis over its estimated useful
economic life. The useful economic life of the exclusive rights was estimated
with reference to the validity of the operation license held by Indo. The
operation license was valid for ten years from 21 July 2010 and the holder was
entitled to apply for renewal for two times with a 10-year term each.
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BREFFEPT. Indo Modern Mining Sejahtera
(M'ndo ) (RALRENE R TEE A % SRR 2
LA F 258 A) BPT. Dampar Golden
International ([ PT. Dampar |) 7200949 A 12
BRI 2 BRAZAREEE @ it © Indo[PT.
DampariX i B R R N AR KIndoBE &
RHRBEEITZFAEE °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A MR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2015 # % 2015 F 3 A 31 HiFFE

21. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED)

Notes: (Continued)

Amortisation was provided for the years ended 31 March 2015 and 2014, the
capitalised cost of the exclusive right was amortised over the remaining period
of the licence as from 1 April 2014 to 20 July 2020.

During the year ended 31 March 2014, the Ministerial Regulation No. 1/2014
promulgated by the Indonesian Government with effect from 1 January 2014.
According to the regulation, the Indonesian government stopped the export
of unprocessed mineral products with a view to encouraging the upgrading
of minerals through processing and refining before such minerals can be
exported. To mitigate this negative effect, the Company entered into a
purchase agreement to purchase equipment for the purpose of refining the
iron sand to sponge iron of higher than 75% Fe employing the direct reduction
method. For the details, please refer to the Company’s announcements dated
24 January 2014 and 2 May 2014 respectively.

The Group is required to assess any indication of impairment of the end
of each reporting period. The Group has completed its annual impairment
test for the exclusive right, due to the mining operation was affected by the
regulation mentioned as above, amount of approximately HK$168,342,000
impairment loss was recognised for the year ended 31 March 2015 (2014:
approximately HK$275,644,000), as the recoverable amount is calculated to
be lower than its carrying amount. The recoverable amount of the exclusive
right was determined based on a value in use calculation which uses five
years cashflow projection, and a discount rate of 19.90% per annum (2014:
20.04% per annum) Cash flows beyond five year period had been extrapolated
using a steady 3.67% per annum growth rate (2014: 3.73%). As at 31
March 2015, the recoverable amount of the exclusive right of approximately
HK$32,727,000 (2014: approximately HK$221,785,000) is referenced to
valuation report issued by Peak Vision Appraisals Limited, independent
qualified valuers, which the exclusive right has been measured based on the
value in use calculation.

21.

BEEE(H
HeE - (%)

HZE2015F F2014F3A31A L FEEEH#
i - BREN 2 BRI AE SRR E2014F 4
A1BZE2020F 7208 2 4 T HARIfE L 2 8H -

REZE2014F3A31 B ILFEHM - DEKAF
B IBFIR B 1/20145% - B20145F1 818
HEAER - BBZAG > BEBMFELER DKM
THRER  #ZASEREMEEH L DS
BMIRERALEE - ARELEETE -
ARARIFI L BEHEUBEREUNEAEEE
REEBEDIRRAEESEBETS%IA L2 EE
# o BRFE  B2HAAR AR A2014
F1H248 %201455 A28 2 2 ff ©

AEEEREREARTEEMAERR - &
SEETKEBREFNZEERENR - BN
PRIESE TS S B a8 B F22 - #49168,342,000
BIREBIBEEREZ2015F3A31ALLFE
TR (20144 : #9275,644,000/87T) * R AT
B¢ BIREREREENSE - BRER 2T
e EIREEREETE(EFARAEERES
FRIER) R B F19.90% 86 R K (2014F : FF
20.04%) METE - AFHHENIIZEESHAT
F3.67%IBTEHE KK (20144 : 3.73%) H#H -
201563 A31 R + BRER Z rJREI&FEL
32,727,000 7T (2014 4F : #9221,785,000 %
TT) SR E BN A B S GEEMRETEERA
RIBEZEERSTE  MBREMNBBRIERE
AEBEAETETUGE -

DNERZERBRAR 20155 FH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBE|RHE

For the year ended 31 March 2015 # % 2015 % 3 A 31 HiFFE

22.

23.

INVENTORIES 22. F&
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHEIT
Raw materials A} 16 3,513
Packaging materials and consumables &2 %% & 557 & - 785
Finished goods 2UR% Oh 3,761 15,712
3,777 20,010

As at 31 March 2015, inventories of approximately
HK$2,355,000 have been reclassified to assets classified as
held for sale (for details, please refer to note 16).

During the year ended 31 March 2015, the Group has not
written off obsolete finished goods (2014: Nil).

PROPERTY UNDER DEVELOPMENT

MR20154F3 A31H + 42,355,000/ 7T 2 1F
BEEEF O RES AR ELHEEE(SH
5B HME16) °

HZE2015F3A31H ILFE - ANEE W EHM
SRR R (201445 - &) »

23. EERFYHE

2015 2014

HK$’000 HK$’000

FH&x FHET

Property under development BERPYE 733,257 =

Property under development related to the residential
property construction held for sale located in Beibu District,
Jinshitan, Jinzhou New District, Dalian, the PRC.

As at 31 March 2015, the balance included land use rights
of approximately HK$219,546,000. Upon completion of the
construction, the land use rights would be transferred to
property held for sale.

The Group’s property under development at their book

BN EAESIMNHERS A LA
ERFELEZEENEERABE
LR ES

MN2015F3 8318 ' BN
219,546,000/ 7C 2 T {EAKE - +
HWERAEGRETEERERELE
7

AEBEERTOEBEAKREFEDNT

values are analysed as follows: AT
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHExT FET
Located in the PRC, held on: FEAREFS
Leases of between 10 to 50 years 102505 &) 733,257 =
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A MR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2015 # % 2015 F 3 A 31 HiFFE

24. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES

24. B ZEWERF

%% ERERE

2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHxT FHET
Trade receivables 5 R 45,347 41,730
Less: accumulated impairment B BEHRUE - (16,418)
45,347 25,312

Bills receivables discounted/ MBREZ IR,
endorsed with recourse EERWEE - 6,481
45,347 31,793

Payment terms with customers are mainly on credit. Invoices
are normally settled within 90 days to 180 days of issuance,
except for certain well established customers. The following
is an ageing analysis of trade receivables, net of impairment
losses, and bills receivable discounted/endorsed with
recourse at the end of the reporting period:

BEEXZREEHAK -BRETER
REFZEPIN  —REEEFEFLE
Z90HZE180H ALEEHE - RIRE
KRB S EUEER (kKRR EEE
BIRMBREZE BSERKE
BZBRESITAT

2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FHT
0 to 90 days 0Z90H 44,400 23,331
91 to 180 days 91% 180H 947 4,317
181 to 365 days 181£365H - 3,526
1 to 2 years 1226 - 619
45,347 31,793

Before accepting any new customer, the Group assesses REMERFEFR - AEE 2T

the potential customer’s credit quality and defines credit
limits by customer. Limits and credit quality attributed to
customers are reviewed periodically. At 31 March 2015,
100% (2014: 51%) of the trade receivables are neither past
due nor impaired, and are assessed to be of satisfactory
credit quality with reference to the past track records.

Included in the Group’s trade receivable balance are
debtors with aggregate carrying amount of HK$Nil (2014:
HK$4,145,000) which are past due at the reporting date for
which the Group has not provided for impairment loss. The
amounts are mainly comprised amounts due from certain
well established customers, which the Group normally grants
an extension to them. The Group does not hold any collateral

over theses balances.

EREZEEEE  TERERFZE
ERE - REEALTZREREEER
=2 F ks o R20156%3A31H -
5 EWEEF100% (20144 : 51% )
WARBERINARE - WIREFELER
B EAEEREZEEER -

NEEE 5 RERERR S B FEAART
EBEAZTH (20144 : 4145000,%
J0) B ERE A HIE i HA K AR 5= [ i

RIEHRE B BB 2 FEUBR K © %
ERRIBEEREETARTFEE
EP(AEE—RELERREFZEE
H1) 2 508 - AR B B\ 2 T AR
Fr A EE R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MR R MY R

For the year ended 31 March 2015 # % 2015 4 3 A 31 HIFFZ

24. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 24.
(CONTINUED)

Ageing of trade receivables which are past due but

BZRUIRR K EWER
% (&)
BAME R E 2 H 5 KRR

not impaired

AR

2015 2014

HK$’000 HK$'000

FTET FET

181 to 365 days 1812365H - 3,526
1 to 2 years 1224 - 619
- 4,145

Movement in the provision for impairment loss

ME S EYRTRER ZREBR

recognised in respect of trade receivables BiEST
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Balance at beginning of the year REH) 2 &k 16,418 17,208
Impairment losses recognised on TE SRR RERZ
trade receivables B E R 2,199 2,635
Impairment losses reversed BB R D (3,756) (3,706)
Reclassified to assets classified ENMOBEES B ARIE
as held for sale HEEE (14,984) -
Exchange adjustments PE i, 8 = 123 281
Balance at end of the year RERZ 8 - 16,418
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2015 # % 2015 F 3 A 31 HiFFE

24. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 24, BESEWERR R EWE

(CONTINUED)

Movement in the provision for impairment loss
recognised in respect of trade receivables
(Continued)

In determining the recoverability of a trade receivable, the
Group considers any change in credit quality of the trade
receivables from the date credit was initially granted up to
the end of the reporting period. Included in the allowance for
doubtful debts are all individually impaired trade receivables
which have either been placed under liquidation or in severe
financial difficulties. The Group does not hold any collateral
over these balances.

During the year ended 31 March 2015, the Group has
recovered trade receivables of approximately HK$3,756,000
(2014: approximately HK$3,706,000) which has be impaired
in previous years.

Ageing of impaired trade receivables

& (&)

ME S EWRARER ZRESSE
RE2H(HE)

RETE B 5 R WARF 2 R UL E 1R -
AEERERBVIETEEERR
AEREHRANE S REARKZER
EEEREY REBHBEEENE
BERXBEESUBREMBEERD
BEE SRR - AEBEIL B Z
FHEBFAEMERR -

REZE2015F3A31BLEFERN - K
SEEKRERBEFEERECE
5 FEWAR 5% 493,756,000 7T (2014
& : #93,706,000/87C) °

EREE Z BRRRRER

2015 2014

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FABT

1 to 2 years 15224 - 16,418
Transfer of financial assets ERUKEE

As at 31 March 2015, the Group’s bills receivables of HK$Nil
(2014: approximately HK$6,481,000) has been transferred
to unrelated suppliers with recourse.

As at 31 March 2015, trade receivables of approximately
HK$12,711,000 and the bills receivables of approximately
HK$4,765,000 have been reclassified to assets classified as
held for sale respectively (for details, please refer to note 16).

M2015F3A31H * AEBEXNTET
(20144 : 496,481,000/8 7T ) Z 38
EEENEREEE THERE 2 H®

R2015F3A318 + 55 5l%912,711,000
P TT 2 B 5 FE MR 5 K 494,765,000
TN EREENDEESEAR
EREEE (B ER20ME16)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBRRME
For the year ended 31 March 2015 # % 2015 % 3 A 31 HiFFE

25. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND

25. EMNRIE  HEREAM

OTHER RECEIVABLES

JE KRR X

The Group The Company
rEE ¥ /NG|
2015 2014 2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FaxT FAET FTERT FAET
Deposit for acquisition equity WAL 2154
interest (note i) (B1a%i) 132,013 = - =
Deposit for acquisition of WiE — R B A A
subsidiary (note i) 2R (K 10,155 135,000 - -
Deposit for acquisition of W BT
investment properties B (K7 atii)
(note iii) 192,832 - - -
Deposit for acquisition of WEERTEEEZ
fixed assets (note iv) B (Hativ) 24,922 = - -
Amount receivable on e —EBE QT
disposal of an associate 2 FEMRER SR - 23,012 - -
Deposit paid BEfiES 912 442 - 100
Prepayments (note vi) TR RIA (A vi) 7,291 12,617 707 543
Other receivables (note v, vi) E b FEULBE X
(Kiatv,vi) 6,305 4,407 - 13
Prepaid lease payment FE R E R TE
(note vi) (Hazvi) - 119 - -
14,508 59,336 707 656
Less: impairment recognised i : B RIE - (76) - -
14,508 59,260 707 656
Notes: Mtet -

(i) During the year ended 31 March 2015, the Group has entered into
a sale and purchase agreement to acquire 15% equity interest of
Shenzhen Zhaosheng Anye Investment Development Company
Limited. The Group has paid approximately HK$132,013,000 deposit
to the vendor at the sign date of the acquisition agreement. For the
details, please refer to the announcement dated 9 February 2015.

(if) During the year ended 31 March 2015, the Group has entered into
a sale and purchase agreement to acquire 100% equity interest of
Guangzhou Shi An Ye Investment Development Company Limited.
The Group has paid approximately HK$10,155,000 deposit to the
vendor at the sign date of acquisition agreement. For the details,

please refer to the announcement dated 17 March 2015.
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(i)
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REZE20156E3831HILEE @ A%
EERKERNBELXRERES
RARI15%RIET L BB R - A5
BEEREZEWEHEBRARED XN
% $#9132,013,000/ 7T - BEAF 1SR
2B A2015F 290 2 Aff -

REZ2015F3A31ALLEFE &A%
EERKRBENMEZEREERAR
RAZ RHRETLE B - A&
EERXEREHEAHAE SN
%€ #910,155,00078 7T - B EF B H
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2015 # % 2015 4 3 A 31 HIFFZ

25. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS
AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(CONTINUED)

Notes: (Continued)

26.

(i)

(iv)

(vi)

During the year ended 31 March 2015, the Group has entered into
sale and purchase agreements to acquire investment properties in
the PRC. The amount represents the deposit paid to the vendors for
acquisition of investment properties.

The amount represents the deposit paid for acquisition of fixed
assets in the PRC.

As at 31 March 2015, other receivables were mainly comprised of
other tax recoverable in the PRC of approximately HK$ 1,545,000 and
cash advanced to staff of approximately HK$4,684,000.

As at 31 March 2015, other receivables deposits and prepayment
of approximately HK$3,592,000 have been reclassified to assets
classified as held for sale (for details, please refer to note 16).

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

25. FEARIE  RERHM

PR AR X (4]

Kz - (&)

(i)

(iv)

(vi)

2l +=2
A8

REZ2015F3A31ALLEFE &%
EERKRBRREZRENETVE
EhE o  meBAKBREMEMR
BAHYH2iReE -

% BB U A P B [ R A E 1T 32
Nz -

M201543A31 8 » HibEIRERRE
T EFERR P B 491,545,000 7T 2 E A
A Uz [B] 7 T8 K2 494,684,000 T AT F
BIZH% -

M201543A31 8 » HibEWERR -
& RIENFKIEL3,592,0008 LE E
OB ESEARIELEZEE(EH
FIEAE2ENE6) ©

SR A FEARZ

MBEE

2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHERT FHIT
Equity securities listed in Hong Kong R & -7 2 IRAZE >
at quoted bid price IRIRE 5,820 16,327
Fair value are determined with reference to quoted market NEEDIEEMSRESETE
bid price.
TNERERERAE 2015 F3R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBE|RHE

For the year ended 31 March 2015 # % 2015 % 3 A 31 HiFFE

27.

158

BANK BALANCES AND CASH 27.

As at 31 March 2015, the market rate on short-term
bank deposits of approximately HK$4,154,000 (2014:
approximately HK$121,163,000), with average maturity of
less than three months (2014: three months) range from
0.92% to 2.99% (2014: from 0.92% to 1.75%) per annum

Cash and cash equivalents were denominated in the
following currencies:

RITERRAS

R2015F3 8318 » FHEERERE A
3ME A LA (20144 : 3fE A ) 2 52 HR
1T1F 75 494,154,00078 7T (20144F : 4
121,163,000/ 7T ) 2 T 4% 5 I = 1 F
0.92%2%2.99% (20144 : 7F0.92%
E1.75%) °

RekReFEMATIERE :

The Group The Company
rEH PN

2015 2014 2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHIT FET FHET
RMB AR 51,629 137,902 4,154 4,079
HK$ BIT 285,734 260,521 205,335 127,054
Others Eoh 132 2,414 - =
337,495 400,837 209,489 131,133

The remittance of cash and cash equivalents denominated
in RMB out of the PRC is subject to the foreign exchange
control restrictions imposed by the government of the PRC.

As at 31 March 2015, bank balances and cash of
approximately HK$2,412,000 have been reclassified to
assets classified as held for sale (for details, please refer to
note 16).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A MR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2015 # % 2015 % 3 A 31 HiFFZ

28. TRADE PAYABLES 28. BESENERR
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000
FEBT FHET
Trade payables B SRR 59,946 13,660

The following is an ageing analysis of trade payables at the

RBERRZEZRNBRIFRE DN

end of the reporting period: wm
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FAT
0 to 90 days 0 £90H 59,784 8,500
91 to 180 days 91£180H 5 3,165
181 to 265 days 1812265H 1 340
Over 365 days H#Bi1@365H 156 1,655
59,946 18,660

The average credit period on purchases is 3 months (2014: 3
months).

As at 31 March 2015, trade payables of approximately
HK$3,094,000 have been reclassified to liabilities directly
associated with assets classified as held for sale (for details,
please refer to note 16).

BETHEEHASMEA (20144 : 3

@A) -

MR2015%F3A31H ' BSENERFRL
3,094,000 TEEHM N EEHED A
ARELECZEEERHBCBRE
(B 153 20M5E16)

DNERZEREBRA R

2015F F 3
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A MR R MY R

For the year ended 31 March 2015 # % 2015 % 3 A 31 HiFFE

29. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 29. HEENRA KR ESTE

A
The Group The Company
REE N
2015 2014 2015 2014
HK’000 HK’000 HK’000 HK’000
Tz  TEx FEx TEx
Value-added tax payable JE (< (E B X - 840 - -
Deposit received B iE & 36,801 = - =
Land value added tax payable  FE{ + 32 (E 97,187 = - -
Accruals EEtEMA 1,530 1,440 - 801
Other payables BT BR 5K 409 5,768 313,489 2,789
Accrued interest on AR ER 2
convertible notes EET A& 35,410 - 35,410 -
171,337 8,048 348,899 3,590
As at 31 March 2015, other payables and accruals of R2015FE3A31H + HitENEEF &
approximately HK$2,120,000 have been reclassified to FEEtE B 492,120,000/ L2 E# 2
liabilities directly associated with assets classified as held for e EABIELELSETEZRSA
sale (for details, please refer to note 16). T aB(EEHBESE2ENE16) o
AMOUNT DUE FROM/(TO) ANON-  30. fEl ~(FEf) — & 34

30.

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER

The amount due from a non-controlling shareholder is

interest free, unsecured and recoverable on demand.

The amount due to a non-controlling shareholder is interest

free, unsecured and repayable on demand.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBRRME
For the year ended 31 March 2015 # % 2015 % 3 A 31 HiFFZ

31. AMOUNT DUE FROM/(TO)
SUBSIDIARIES

P (FEAS) B A B

IE

Amount due from subsidiaries FE UK Bt B A B FRIE
The Company
PN

2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHETT
Due from subsidiaries FEUS BT B A B A 1,962,685 1,299,934
Less: Impairment loss recognised B BEERBEBE (894,668) (894,668)
1,068,017 405,266

The amounts due from/(to) subsidiaries are interest free,
unsecured and recoverable/(repayable) on demand.
Impairment loss provided for amounts due from subsidiaries
are due to the subsidiaries are in prolonged net liabilities
position. These loss impacts on the estimated future cash
flows of the amounts due from subsidiaries.

Y (BB RARZRETR
B EEAREEREKE, (E
&) o SLIEMH B A R Z SRIARHRR
EBEBRDRRZENBRRRARN
FRENE - ZFBHIRFHEE BN
BRAZFEZEAARESRER

=
2 o

EMNERERERAT  2015FF3R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A MR R MY R

For the year ended 31 March 2015 # % 2015 % 3 A 31 HiFFE

32. BANK BORROWINGS 32. RITBE
2015 2014
HK$°000 HK$'000
FExT FHIT
Bank borrowings RITEE
- secured — B - 60,438
The borrowings are repayable EEZERBPOT ¢
as follows:
Within one year 1FAR - 60,438
In the second year RE2FENRN - -
- 60,438
Less: Amount due for settlement B g1 218 B REIER
within 12 months (shown #EH 2B (2TRN
under current liabilities) MEIBEEN) - (60,438)
Amount due for settlement after #1218 A 12 B B3 45
12 months 2% - -
Bank borrowings at: ETAEEZRITEE -
— floating interest rates —FE)F - 60,438
As at 31 March 2015, secured bank borrowings having a R2016 43 A31H » REE A

carrying amount of approximately HK$60,929,000 have
been reclassified to liabilities directly associated with assets
classified as held for sale (for details, please refer to note 16).

60,929,000 T BB ARITEER
ENoEEEEREESBEARBIELHES
EflEnaE(EEFERELHNE
16) °

33. SHORT-TERM INTEREST BEARING 33. EHi:tE{EE
BORROWING S
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FHEIT
Unsecured interest bearing loan EIEHT B ER
— repayable within one year — A1 FAERER - 3,022

The contractual floating interest rates in respect of short-term
interest bearing borrowing were within the following ranges:

RHR R EREZAKEBNERENUT
#HE :

2015 2014

Short-term interest bearing loan EHFEER

Asia Resources Holdings Limited Annual Report 2015
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A MR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2015 # % 2015 F 3 A 31 HiFFE

34. SHARE CAPITAL 34. A
Number of
ordinary
shares Amount
TEREE +E
HK$’000
FHT
Authorized: VETE ¢
Ordinary share of HK$0.05 each, FIRME{EO0.058 T 2 TimAk
At 1 April 2013 MR2013F4 /818 10,000,000,000 500,000
Capital reorganisation (Note a) EAEHR(Hiata) (8,000,000,000) =
Ordinary share of HK$0.25 each, &% E{H0.25/8 T2 &A%
At 31 March 2014 and 1 April R2014%F3 318 &
2014 2014F4H1H 2,000,000,000 500,000
Increase authorised HINSETE @A (A aEb)
ordinary shares (Note b) 8,000,000,000 2,000,000
At 31 March 2015 M2015%3 A31H 10,000,000,000 2,500,000
Issued and fully paid: BEEITREE
Ordinary share of HK$0.05 each, &M E{E0.05/4 T 2 & EA
At 1 April 2013 R2013F4 81 H 3,878,745,758 193,937
Conversion of convertible notes i n AR =i 2,429,591,794 391,398
Capital reorganisation [ A E 48 (4,760,395,928) (198,349)
Issue of shares BTG 30,772,661 7,693
Ordinary share of HK$0.25 each, SRR E(E0.25/ T 2 L iEA%
At 31 March 2014, and MR2014F3A31H &
1 April 2014 2014%F4A1H 1,5678,714,285 394,679
Conversion of convertible notes B AT AR Z R (Y atc)
(Note c) 1,194,975,715 298,744
Issue of ordinary shares upon RS RETT(E B 3T AR
exercise of share options (Note d)  (H5Ed) 5,700,000 1,425
At 31 March 2015 M20154F3 A31H 2,779,390,000 694,848
EMNERERERAT  2015FF3R



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBE|RHE

For the year ended 31 March 2015 # % 2015 % 3 A 31 HiFFE

164

34. SHARE CAPITAL (CONTINUED)

Notes:

(@)

Pursuant to a special resolution passed at a special general
meeting held on 31 May 2013, the Company effected the capital
reorganisation (“Capital Reorganisation”) which became effective
on 3 June 2013 and involved (i) the consolidation of every twenty-
five issued and unissued shares with a par value of HK$0.05 each
into one consolidated share; (i) the reduction of issued share capital
whereby the par value of each issued consolidated shares will be
reduced from HK$1.25 to HK$0.25 by cancelling the paid-up capital
to the extent of HK$1.00 on each of the consolidated shares to a
reduced share of HK$0.25 each; (iii) transfer of the credit arising from
the capital reduction to the capital reserve of the Company; (iv) the
sub-division of each unissued consolidated share into five reduced
shares of HK$0.25 each.

On 25 September 2014, the Company increased the authorised
share capital from HK$500,000,000 (divided into 2,000,000,000
shares) to HK$2,500,000,000 (divided into 10,000,000,000 shares)
by the creation of an additional 8,000,000,000 shares, which will rank
pari passu with all existing shares.

On 25 June 2014, 10 June 2014, 13 June 2014, 20 June 2014,
27 June 2014, 11 July 2014, 17 July 2014, 29 August 2014,
16 September 2014 and 10 August 2014, the holders of the
convertible notes converted convertible notes of HK$12,852,250,
HK$4,550,000, HK$4,999,750, HK$1,750,000, HK$3,500,000,
HK$250,000,000, HK$ 4,550,000, HK$525,000, HK$875,000,
HK$2,498,000 and HK$10,500,000 respectively into 36,720,715,
13,000,000, 14,285,000, 50,000,000, 10,000,000, 7,142,857,
13,000,000 15,000,000, 25,000,000, 7,137,143 and 30,000,000
ordinary shares at a conversion price of HK$0.35.

On 27 January 2015, 6 February 2015, 17 February 2015 and
2 March 2015, the holders of the convertible notes converted
convertible notes of HK$53,200,000, HK$164,802,200,
HK$106,400,000 and HK$45,600,000 respectively into
140,000,000, 433,690,000, 280,000,000 and 120,000,000 ordinary
shares at a conversion price of HK$0.38.

During the year ended 31 March 2015, the Company issued and
allotted an aggregate of 5,700,000 shares at a weighted average
exercise price HK$0.352 per share. For more details, please refer to
Note 37.
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34. BRA(4E)

Mkt -

(@)

RIER 20134531 AR 1T 2 BT HF
AAE LBBZ —BREIRER - &N
NEETRAEME([IRASZHE]) - B
AEHER2013F6A3HER » 5
K() #5258 SR E0.057 T 2 B 8
TRRETROEHA—IRE HIRD
(NEIREBEITIRA - TS BT TR
B HIRG 2B RRA1.00BTESTK
HIR A% 19 0.2578 7T © B EREETA
BER D Z 1B B 1.2578 TTEIR £ 0.25
FETT (i) 15 AR A B Rl BT E AE 2 3 AR o 43
ERRBZRAGEE (VB BRARET
AR R4 A5 EAREE0.257 7T
ZHIRAR

MR2014 9 A 25H - "R AEB
# % 8,000,000,000 % % 4p A% 15
# % & B AN B 500,000,000 # JT
( % /& 2,000,000,000 & B 13 ) 1%
&= 2,500,000,000 B T ( D B
10,000,000,000/% B 17 ) + % E# A& 1D
1 ERIR A RN ES 7 = A REER o

M2014%F6 H258 ~ 201446 108
201446 A413H 201446 A20H -
201456 4278 ~ 20147 A118 ~
201447 A17H 201448 A 29H -
20144 9A16 A &2014F8A 108 -
AR EERFAE ARERE035E T
7 5l # 12,852,250 % 7T~ 4,550,000
P IT 4,999,750 7T+ 1,750,000 7%
7T ~ 3,500,000 % 7t * 250,000,000
7 7T 4,550,000 %8 7T+ 525,000 &
JT * 875,000 7 JT 2,498,000 7 JT
% 10,500,000 # 7T 2 A # % 5 4%
# & 36,720,715 A& - 13,000,000
B 14,285,000 % 50,000,000
fi& - 10,000,000 f% - 7,142,857 f% -
13,000,000 B -~ 15,000,000 F&
25,000,000 A% 7,137,143 B K&
30,000,0000% & 3@ P& o

R201541H278 201552 H68 -
201592 4178 %201543H28 » A
BREBRFE AREIREB0.38B TS
B1#553,200,0007 7T + 164,802,200/
JL ~ 106,400,000 7 7T & 45,600,000
7 T 2 AT AR 3R R #4275 140,000,000
A% - 433,690,000f% - 280,000,000 %
%2120,000,0000% & i@ A% -

HZE2015F3A31BILFE * KRR
ZINAEFHTEESR0.3528 LI 1T
K BR g4 $£5,700,0000 88 15 © #E—
B MM EST -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2015 # % 2015 F 3 A 31 HiFFE

35.

CONVERTIBLE NOTES

On 24 October 2013 and 15 November 2013, the Company
issued convertible notes due on 24 October 2015 with a
principal amount of HK$155,500,000 and HK$350,000,000,
which is interest free and 5% coupon rate per annum
respectively (“Old CN”). The convertible notes were issued
for raising equity capital for the future development. The
convertible notes are designated as fair value on initial
recognition, and are convertible into fully paid ordinary
shares with a par value of HK$0.25 each of the Company at
an initial conversion price of HK$0.35. The effective interest
rate are ranging from 14.25% to 15.78%. The Company
will redeem the convertible notes if the notes have not been
converted on maturity date. During the year ended 31 March
2015, all the convertible notes were converted into ordinary
shares.

On 15 October 2014, 22 October 2014 and 29 October
2014, the Company issued convertible notes due on 15
October 2016, 22 October 2016 and 29 October 2016 with a
principal amount of HK$190,000,000, HK$190,000,000 and
HK$228,000,000, which is intercomprising 12% coupon rate
per annum respectively (“New CN”). The convertible notes
were issued for potential future investments, including real
estate projects and the general working capital of the Group.
The convertible notes are designated as fair value on initial
recognition and are convertible into fully paid ordinary shares
with a par value of HK$0.25 each of the Company at an initial
conversion price of HK$0.38. The effective interest rate are
ranging from 14.29% to 14.64%. The Company will redeem
the convertible notes if the notes have not been converted
on maturity date. The principal amount of convertible notes
outstanding was approximately HK$237,998,000 as at
31 March 2015. The convertible notes recognised in the
statement of financial position were calculation as follows:

35. IARER

R 2013 4F 10 A 24 H K 2013 £F 11
A158 ' RRARBEETAEEAR
155,500,000 78 7T & 350,000,000 /&
JTCH2015410 A 24 B B # 2 7] # A%
2B DHNRERERBFSEESR
(TEMT]MRER]) - BITAUBMKRE
BEEARREREERA - ATRKR
ZBTRFHERERER A FEA
IR+ WAM#20.358 o 2 F) e i (B 8
BMAARRRBREEO.25% T 2 #
BEBR - BEREMENFR14.25%
£15.78% ° AN A & HE | 0] # jR =
B AIRAZSERREAERER
o HZE2015F3A31HIEFER

FTERREREE LB ATER -

R2014%F10A15H + 2014410 A
228 &2014F10A29H + "R RS
BB 17 78 € ®8 4 190,000,000/ 7T
190,000,000 /% 7T & 228,000,000 /&
7T WHR2016FE10A158 ~ 20164
10H22H K& 2016F10 H29 H 2| #f 2
ZHEARAEFF12% 2 A B KZE
(TR ER]) - AIRKRERD
HEEEHEEEEAZETRRER
BRAEE—REEESMET o A
B ZEE TRV S REREIEE AR T
BARR - WAZ0.38 B L 2 #lH i
REEBRABARNQRFREELSHE
TZBREBR - BEMEN TR
14.29% % 14.64% o A AR HE R A]
BRER  AIRAZEEZRNIH
BARE L o P2015E3H31H » 4
RITEZAIBBRERCASEN R
237,998,000/ 7T ° 7B 75 ik L 3k A
R ABRES DETERT ¢
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE M RRME
For the year ended 31 March 2015 # % 2015 % 3 A 31 HiFFE

35. CONVERTIBLE NOTES (CONTINUED)

35. AR ERE(E

Old CN New CN Total
ETERREE HURREE st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHIT FHET
Equity component e 47
At 1 April 2013 K2013F4 H1H - - -
Recognition of equity component #R A AR =4 2
of convertible notes i Fasitv) 506,288 - 506,288
Converted into shares during F N AR
the year (458,050) - (458,050)
At 31 March and 1 April 2014  A2014%3H31H &
4H1H 48,238 — 48,238
Issue of convertible notes BT IR R - 18,091 18,091
Converted into shares FRER ARG
during the year (48,238) (10,882) (59,120)
At 31 March 2015 7201563831 H - 7,209 7,209
Liability component =R
At 1 April 2013 R2013%F4 A1H 230,569 — 230,569
Issue of convertible notes BATA R ZIR 26,535 - 26,535
Converted into shares during F N SR
the year (250,939) - (250,939)
Interest charged FBEMAX 6,591 = 6,591
Fair value changes N EEE) (7,919 = (7,919
At 31 March and 1 April 2014 201453 H31H &
4/1H 4,837 = 4,837
Issue of convertible notes BT IR =R - 581,657 581,657
Converted into shares FRER ARG
during the year (10,004) (357,884) (367,888)
Imputed interest expense HENEX
charged 6,371 30,408 36,779
Interest paid EfHE (1,204) (24,892) (26,096)
At 31 March 2015 7201543831 H - 229,289 229,289

The fair value of the convertible notes issued has been
arrived on the basis of a valuation carried out on the date
of issue by Peak Vision Appraisal Limited, independent
professional valuers not connect with the Group. As
at 31 March 2015, the fair value of the New CN were
approximately of HK$43,945,000
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2015 # % 2015 % 3 A 31 HiFFZ

36. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES 36. ELEBIEAME
The Group KEHE
The components of deferred tax liabilities recognised on REZE2015F3A31BLEFER * R
the consolidated statement of financial position and the SAUMBRAERERAEERIEAGE
movements during the year 31 March 2015 are as follows: R ER D KRBT -

Fair value
adjustments

arising from
acquisition of
subsidiaries
g BpEE RN
EXZ A ATE
HK$’000
FHET
Deferred tax arising from: THEEREEMELERE :
At 1 April 2014 R2014F4H1H -
Charged to the consolidated statement of RiFE E2ERERT kR
comprehensive income 46,324
At 31 March 2015 A2015%3H31H 46,324
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Net deferred tax liabilities in the WiRe B RRRERA
consolidated statement of financial ~ EEFRIIB A & FHE
position 46,324 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2015 # % 2015 % 3 A 31 HiFFE

37.

SHARE OPTIONS

The Company’s share options scheme adopted on 14
January 2002 (the “2002 Share Option Scheme”) for the
purposes of recognition of significant contribution of and
for the provision of incentives to any directors, employees
(whether full-time or part-time), consultants, customers,
suppliers, agents, partners or advisors of or contractors to
the Group or affiliates (“Eligible Persons”). On 12 July 2011,
the Company had granted 140,500,000 share options to
directors, employees and other affiliates under the 2002
Share Option Scheme.

The 2002 Share Option Scheme has been terminated on 9
August 2011 and a new share option scheme (the “2011
Share Option Scheme”) was adopted by the Company on 9
August 2011.

The 2011 Share Option Scheme is adopted for the same
purpose of the 2002 Share Option Scheme.

Under the terms of the 2011 Share Option Scheme, the
Board of Directors of the Company may for a notional
consideration of HK$1 grant option to the Eligible Persons to
subscribe for shares in the Company at a price no less than
the higher of (i) the closing price of the Company’s shares as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the
date of offer of the option (which must be a business day); (ii)
the average closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five business
days immediately preceding the date of offer of the option.
Options granted under the 2011 Share Option Scheme
must be taken up within 28 business days from the date on
which the offer is made by returning a written acceptance
of the offer signed by the Eligible Persons together with the
payment of HK$1 per option (the “Acceptance Conditions”).
Options granted and accepted may be exercised at any time
for 10 years commencing on the date on which an option
is accepted in accordance with the Acceptance Conditions
under the 2011 Share Option Scheme (the “Option Period”).
Options granted under the Scheme will be exercisable in
the Option Period notwithstanding that the scheme period
of the 2011 Share Option Scheme does not prescribe any
minimum period for which an option must be held before it
can be exercised and has not specified that the exercise of
an option is subject to any performance target.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2015 # % 2015 F 3 A 31 HiFFE

37.

SHARE OPTIONS (CONTINUED)

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all options to be granted under the 2011 Share
Option Scheme cannot exceed 10% (the “Limit”) of the
issued share capital of the Company at the date of adoption
of the 2011 Share Option Scheme, excluding any options
lapsed in accordance with the terms of the 2011 Share
Option Scheme and any other share option schemes.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be
exercised under the Scheme and any other share option
schemes of the Company shall not, in aggregate, exceed
30% of the total number of shares in issue from the time to
time. Option will not be granted to any Eligible Persons if
the exercise in full of all options, including any unexercised
options and shares already issued under all previous option
granted, would in the 12-month period up to and including
the date of such further grant enable that relevant Eligible
Person to have shares exceeding 1% of the issued shares of
the Company for the time being unless separate approval by
the shareholders in general meeting is obtained.

37.

BRE(R)

RIR20 FHE R ERT BRI 2 B
AR TER A HIT 2RO EE &
Z A BB AR B FR 492011 F BE A
HEETEIE BB ETRAZ10%( T8
FER B 2011 F R AR AT 8 AT W H A
BB RAERT 81 2 G RB R B2 A BB AR
#)([ERD) -

WRIFET 8 M AR AHE A E AL fE AR AT
R ZMBRARITRE 2 BRETEE
TERBR TETZERNEE - K24
ATBBBTRERTROEREZ
30% ° WREERBEZE-FTET
ZBEZ12{A AEM 2 E T2 A
Pt (B IR AR 1 R AT {2 2 B A AR
BREBERD ZBREMETZR
MERERAEBALTHEARAE
Rz BEITIRDBE1% - AIBRER
TERTERAEGEBAL  BRIFER
BRRAE EBSRRAITHE - RIS
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R

CRE R E

For the year ended 31 March 2015 # % 2015 % 3 A 31 HiFFE

37.

SHARE OPTIONS (CONTINUED)
2002 Share Option Scheme

As at 31 March 2015, the number of shares in respect of
which share options remained outstanding under 2002
Share Option Scheme was 3,500,000, representing 0.126%
of the shares of the Company in issue at the reporting date.

During the year under review, the details and movements in
the share options granted under 2002 Share Option Scheme

37. MIE (&)
20024 fE p fE 5T 8
MR201553 A31H - 20024 B I
STEIB T M AITE 2 BRES R 2
A% 15 8 B 4&3,500,000% 154 RQ &
RERE B EE 3175 20.126% °

REBFEA - RIE2002F 5B ik #
AEIE R B FRERES N

are as follows: T
Number of share options
Ehege
Reclassffication
Adjusted  Outstanding ~ of categories Granted  Exercised Lapsed  Cancelled  Outstanding
exercise price at1 Apri during during during during during ~ at 31 March
Date of grant ~ Exercisable period per share 2014 the year the year the year the year the year 2015
Ho014E 20158
Shifag 4R1R ERER 3A%1A
RERE  fRH RE  HAGR HENAR  WEARE  RERGR  WEAKN  REREE  HAGR
(Note j (Note i)
(et (Histi)
HKS
BT
Category 1: Director 12 July 2011 12 July 2011 - 1776 2620000 (2,200,000) - - - - 420,000
Bhl- g2 NHETERR 1y 2021
A1F7R128E
01574118
Category 2: 12uly 2011 12 July 2011 - 1775 880000 2,200,000 - - - - 3,080,000
Employees NNETA128 11 July 2021
8- 8 DNETA1AE
01574118
Category 3: Other ~~ 12July 2011 12 July 2011 - 1775 80,000 - - - (80,000) - -
affllates NUETA12E 11 July 2021
8= RtREAL DNETA2AE
NNETA11A
Total for al categories 3,580,000 = = = (80,000) - 3,500,000
B
Weighted average
exercise price (HKS) 1775 1775 - - 1775 - 1775
METSRECET)
Notes: Htat
i) The closing price of the Company’s shares quoted on the Stock (i) AR RPN H B BB R FTFTiR 2

Exchange on the date of grant was HK$0.071 (adjusted to HK$1.775
upon capital reorganization became effective on 3 June 2013).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBRRME
For the year ended 31 March 2015 # % 2015 F 3 A 31 HiFFE

37. SHARE OPTIONS (CONTINUED)

2002 Share Option Scheme (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(i) Each of Mr. Chim Kim Lun, Ricky, Mr. Cheung Kai Kwong and Mr.
Yeung Yiu Bong, Anthony resigned as a director of the Company
on 11 December 2014, 20 January 2015 and 20 January 2015
respectively, but they remained as director of certain subsidiaries of
the Group during the year. Therefore, their respective outstanding

options have been reclassified under “Employees” category.

The fair value of the share options granted during the year ended 31 March
2011 were priced using the Trinomial model. The inputs into the model share

37.

BRE(R)

20024 8 i #E =T &8l ()
Wizt - ()

(ii) ERIEELE  RECEERGRBELE
2 RIR2014F12 A118 ~ 201551 A
208 K 201541 A20 H BT AR A&
= BERFABEREEETHE AR
ZE=Z o Bt - H¥ B mARITEERE
BEHMHEZE [ES 185 -

REBE2011FI3ABI AL FEREBRIEZA
FEDER=AXHEEEEAEE - ZEX

option type. IEAEEE 2B AE -
2002 Share
Option Scheme
2002F BB RE=H &
Grant date share price R BER(E HK$0.071;8 7T
Exercise price 1TEE HK$0.0717 7T
Adjusted exercisable price after Capital Reorganisation RIAREL % 2 & FRITEE HK$1.775/%8 7T
Expected volatility TE R 18 78.743%
Expected option life e HARE AR i 4 2 10 years&
Dividend yield & 8% 0%
Risk-free interest rate 4 3 B A1 == 2.796%

2011 Share Option Scheme

On 26 August 2014, 15,500,000 share options were granted
to directors and employees under 2011 Share Option
Scheme at an exercisable price of HK$0.352 per share.

On 25 September 2014, an ordinary resolution was duly
passed by the shareholders at a special general meeting of
the Company, approving, inter alia, to refresh the scheme
mandate limit under the 2011 Share Option Scheme of the
Company adopted on 9 August 2011. The refreshed scheme

limit as at 25 September 2014 was 176,286,285.

On 3 October 2014, 59,000,000 share options were granted
to directors and employees under 2011 Share Option

Scheme at an exercisable price of HK$0.52 per share.

2011 FIERFESTE

20148 268 » AR REE2011
FRERETEIRTFEESR0.352%
ToIAE F K (&8 B 5 H115,500,00017 i
fi i o

MN201459H25H » —HE @RGSR
MRARRZBRRERIA® EEFR
B UHE(EFREE)EHAR
AIMR2011E8 A9 R 2201148
IRESTEIB T 258 RERE - B
2014F9R 258 v EEMATEIRE A
176,286,285 °

MN2014510 838 » &NA F1E#HE2011
FREREREIRITEEER0.528 T
M= = K& B 1% 159,000,00017 8 A%
7 o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CRE R E

For the year ended 31 March 2015 # % 2015 % 3 A 31 HiFFE

37.

2011 Share Option Scheme (Continued)

As at 31 March 2015, the number of shares in respect of
which share options remained outstanding under 2011
Share Option Scheme was 68,800,000, representing 2.48%
of the Shares of the Company in issue at the reporting date.

During the year ended 31 March 2015, the details and
movements in the share options granted under 2011 Share
Option Scheme are as follows:

SHARE OPTIONS (CONTINUED) 37.

ERE(R)
20114} B 31 ) ()

R20154F3 8318 + FiRE20114F8E
fRRERT B B M ARITE 2 BARE 2
A% 17 £ B £68,800,0000% * {H4A &
RS BEIE BTk %D 22.48% °

HE20156F3A31BIEFE - B
2011 BB IR EIE R 2 IERiE 2
HIEREEINT ¢

Number of share options

BRRRS

Reclassiication
Qutstanding Granted  of categories  Exercised Lapsed  Cancelled ~ Outstanding

Exercise price at 1 Apri during during during during during ~at 31 March
Date of grant ~ Exercisable period ner share 2014 the year the year the year the year the year 2015
o0 Root5E
4F1R ERER 3A%A
RiRS i3 ERTEE HAGR  MEARE  MENAE  RERGR  MEARR  REREE  HAGR
(Note)
(&)
HKS
T
Category 1: Directors 26 August 2014 26 August 2014 - 25 August 2024 0352 - 12200000 (74000000 (3,600,000} - - 1,200,000
B g N14EBRME  2014F8ABAZNMERRLE
3 October 2014 3 October 2014- 2 Qctober 2024 0520 - 45000000 (25,000,000} - - - 20000000
DUEIOAE  MEI0ASAENUEI0AR
Category 2 Employees 26 August 2014 26 August 2014 - 25 August 2024 0362 - 330000 7400000 (2,100,000 - - 8600000
) W14E8AA  2014FBA6RZAUERRA
3 October 2014 3 October 2014 - 2 Qctober 2024 0520 - 14000000 25,000,000 = = - 3,000000
DUEIASE  NMEI0AIAZNUEAE
Totalor l categories - 74500000 (5,700,000 - - 68,800,000
RN
Weighted average
1610188 price (HKS) = 0478 0478 (.32 = = 0488
ETSARECET)

Note:  Each of Mr. Chim Kim Lun, Ricky, Mr. Cheung Kai Kwong and Mr.
Yeung Yiu Bong, Anthony resigned as a director of the Company
on 11 December 2014, 20 January 2015 and 20 January 2015
respectively, but they remained as director of certain subsidiaries of
the Group during the year. Therefore, their respective outstanding
options have been reclassified under “Employees” category.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2015 # % 2015 F 3 A 31 HiFFE

37. SHARE OPTIONS (CONTINUED)

38.

The fair value of the share options granted during the year
ended 31 March 2015 were pricing using the Trinomial
model. The inputs into the model were as follow:

37.

BRE(R)

REZE2015FE3A31 B IFEERTHE
iz N EERA=ZEAEEE
BAEE  ZBX 2@ ABLT :

2011 Share Option Scheme

Granted on
2011 FERE &R
26 August 3 October
2014 2014
R201445F R2014%F
8H26H 10H3H

Grant date share price % B EARR (B
Exercise price TEE
Expected volatility B HP R g
Expected option life TEHARE IR e FE HB
Dividend yield Bg B =
Risk-free interest rate 42 [ i 1) =R

ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

During the year, the Group acquired 100% of the
share capital of Utmost Creation Holdings Limited and
its subsidiaries (“Target group”) at a consideration of
approximately HK$450 millions. The Target group is
engaging in real estate development and sale. The
acquisition has been completed on 13 June 2014. Please
refer to the announcement and circular dated 11 March
2014 and 26 May 2014, 11 June 2014 and 16 June 2014
respectively.

38.

HK$0.345%7C  HK$0.52/8 7T
HK$0.352/87c  HK$0.52/8 7T

71.09% 71.741%
10 10
0% 0%
1.919% 1.969%
g NG

FA - ANEE AR E4450,000,000
P B R AR AR A TR A A R EL T /B
AR([BREE]) 2100% K7 - B
BEEEREEMEZERRHEE - %K
O 2014F6 138 %MK ° 52 H
HEIH Bl A2014F3 A11H &20144F
50268 * 201446 A11H &20144F
6 A16 8 2 A KK o
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 # % 2015 % 3 A 31 HiFFE

38. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES
(CONTINUED)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBE|RHE

38. WIBMIE 2R ()

Carrying amount

of Target
group’s Fair value of
identifiable net Target group’s
assets before Fair value identifiable
combination adjustment net assets
EHAIEEEE EEEEZ
ZABREE NEE ABREE
FEZKREE AR FEZAYE
HK’000 HK’000 HK’000
TERT FERT FER
Property, plant and equipment ¥ - = M & E 900 - 900
Properties under development 2% fh 42 316,139 282,485 598,624
Prepayment, deposits and BNRIE - e REAE
other receivables U BR =X 114,155 - 114,155
Bank balances and cash RITEBRRIRE 2,426 = 2,426
Accruals and other FERTE B R EA (29,507) - (29,507)
Land value added tax + it (E T (97,187) (97,187)
Deferred tax liabilities ELEHBEAE (46,324) (46,324)
404,113 138,974 543,087
Total consideration KRBz (450,000)
Gain on bargain purchase & (B WU e 93,087
Net cash outflow from the Wi 2 B em T
acquisition
Cash consideration paid 2NEERE (450,000)
Bank balances and cash FTEESRITER I 2
acquired 2,426
(447,574)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2015 # % 2015 F 3 A 31 HiFFE

38. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES
(CONTINUED)

39.

(a)

(b)

Bargain purchase on the acquisition

A valuation report received upon completion of the
acquisition indicated that the fair value of properties
under development of the Target group at the date of
acquisition was approximately of HK$598,624,000,
which was approximately of HK$282,485,000 greater
than the original carrying amount.

The valuation of properties under development was
increased by approximately of HK$282,485,000 and
land value added tax and deferred tax liabilities was
increased by approximately of HK$97,187,000 and
HK$46,324,000 at the date of acquisition respectively.
There was a corresponding gain on bargain purchase
of approximately HK$93,087,000 as a result of the fair
value of Target group’s identifiable net assets exceeds
the fair value of the consideration transferred.

Impact of acquisition on the result of the
Target Group

Included in the loss for the year of approximately
HK$9,102,000 (gain on bargain purchase excluded)
attributable to the Group by the Target Group. Had
these business combinations been effected at 1
April 2014, the loss for the year from continuing
operations would have been HK$216,720,000. The
directors of the Group considered these “pro-forma”
numbers to represent an approximate measure of
the performance of the performance of the combined
group on an annualized basis and to provide a
reference point for comparison in future periods.

GAIN ON DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

On 25 March 2015, the Group has entered into a conditional
sale and purchase agreement with the purchaser Mr. Tan
Shaliang, an independent third party in respect of the
sale of 100% share equity of Infinite Nature Limited and
its subsidiaries (“Disposal group”) at a consideration of
HK$1,000,000. The Disposal group is majority engaging in
iron mining business in Mongolia. (For details, please refer

to the announcement dated 25 March 2015). The disposal

of the Mongolia iron mining business was subsequently
completed on 31 March 2015.

38.

39.

W BB 2 = (4])

() WESEZZEWE

AU B 52 AR 18 I B 2 5 1B 3]
SER RKEAE - BE
SR ERPMERTED
73598,624,00058 7T+ HA 4
282,485,000/8 LB R A& 2 BR
HEAZ -

KRB - BRPYE S
B 18 N %47282,485,0005% JT &
THIEER REERTBEESD
A1 4% Hn #997,187,000 7 7T &
46,324,000 7T - BIZEE 2
AHANEEFECATFERR
EEEREAFEEEZHE
BB W4 593,087,000
BIT °

(b) WEYEEEmEE Y
-

BEEBEEFALREEEGAR
FEE18%9,102,0007%8 7T (1~
BREEEWEBRE) - MER
B R2014F 4 A1 8 E
BIAFERABESCEERE
1B 49 5216,720,0007 7T ° A
SEESRAEREHBZ 8T
REEHEREEZRFCELERT
EZBHNEE - WAl{ERER
REAFE LR 2 B E LR -

&M B 2 Rz W

MR2015F3 250 + AEEEB 7
FE=7 B HEY R SER H Enfinite
Nature Limited X B AR ([ HE
ARl MMM ERE] LB KRG
BE W& K& 741,000,000% T °
HEMAREZEREH I EEEER
(FEH2HMBE B A201563H25H
ZAME) o HERHIEEEBEER
20153 31 H =R °
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 # % 2015 % 3 A 31 HiFFE

39. GAIN ON DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES 39. HEME Q7 2 W=

(CONTINUED) (#&)
The net assets of subsidiaries at the date of disposal were as NEESZBEHE WBARZEEF
follows: BT
HK$’000
FHEIT
Net assets disposed of: EHEEETHE :
Consideration received BURE 1,000
Property, plant and equipment ME - BEREE (140)
Trade and other receivables B 5 N E b e U AR 3R (100)
Bank balances and cash RITEHREE S (11)
Trade and other payables 5 e A~ BR TN B b E S BR 3R 1,437
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEHBA Rz K 2,186
Satisfied by: BTHNFAZMN
Cash H& 1,000
Net cash inflow from disposal: HEZBEZBERAFE
Cash consideration REeERE 1,000
Bank balances and cash disposed BHRERITEHEES (11)
989

For the period from 1 April 2014 to the date of disposal, the
above subsidiaries were engages in iron mining business
in Mongolia. The revenue contributed by the subsidiaries
were approximately HK$Nil and loss of approximately
HK$1,109,000 has recognised in the Group’s loss for the
year ended 31 March 2015.

40. RESERVES

Details of the movements of the Group’s reserves are set out
in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on page
58.

Details of the movements of the Company’s reserves are set
out in note 46 to the consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 # % 2015 % 3 A 31 HiFFZ

41. OPERATING LEASE 41, BEBRNEE
COMMITMENTS
The Group as lessee AEBEREBAA
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FAT
Within one year 1FE AR 5,645 1,841
In the second to fifth years inclusive ~ RE2EFE5E(BIEEREME) 3,624 1,656
9,269 3,497
A lease is negotiated for remaining 3 year and rentals are HMOBERHKRTIF MAEHRZHE
fixed throughout the lease term. BEE o
42. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 42, BEAREIE
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had the REEHR - AEB A T 5 E AR
following capital commitments: i
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTER FAT
Contracted but not provided for EEESEE S
acquisition of equity interest Uit s A e 33,003 -
acquisition of subsidiaries U B BT B8 R &) 2,539 315,000
acquisition of investment properties W& Y% 168,916 -
acquisition of fixed assets WHEEEEE 6,199 =
210,657 315,000
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43. RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES 43.

44.

The Group’s qualifying employees in Hong Kong participate
in the Mandatory Provident Fund (the “MPF”) in Hong Kong.
The assets of the MPF are held separately from those of
the Group in funds under the control of trustee. The Group
and each of the employees make monthly mandatory
contributions to the MPF scheme.

The employees of the PRC subsidiaries are members of the
state-managed retirement benefits scheme operated by
the PRC government. The PRC subsidiaries are required
to contribute a certain percentage of their payroll to the
retirement benefits scheme to fund the benefits. The only
obligation of the Group with respect to the retirement
benefits scheme is to make the required contributions under
the scheme.

The total expense recognised in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income of approximately HK$186,000
(2014: approximately HK$206,000 (restated)) represents
contributions payable to these plans by the Group at rates
specified in the rules of the plans.

MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS

Transactions between the Company and its subsidiaries,
which are related parties of the Company, have been
eliminated on consolidation and are not disclosed in this
note. Save as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated
financial statements, details of transactions between the
Group and other related parties are disclosed below.

Compensation of key management personnel

The remuneration of key management personnel during the
year was as follows:

44.

RIREFEE

AEERNEEZAERREEBLEER
ZatEATEE([BES]) - #ES
ZEERASEZEENRTA © B
XEARH2EEERE - ARERE
B E ARbIERTRESE -

BB RF) 2 B BT BB R AL
ZBRERRARBAEIKE - HE
/B8 X B ZR AR AR R 5 8B G ¥
EETAD L ZHK - UEREER
ZEE o AEBELRNE TS 2 M
—BRERRAEIELAAFERK

RETHRERANERZ BHRSZ AL
186,00078 7T (20144 : £9206,000/%5
TL(AREES)) - AK B T 24 R
EE 2L RESZERTE 2 HR -

EEEEALRE

AREEENMBAR(RETHIARA
REABATDIHZRZEREEEE
i AU EBRAMERE - BRER
AMBHRRAMEESHAREEN - X
SEEEMEEATHZ RS FER
BT e

FTEEEAB ZHMN
ETREEABRNFAZHIAOT

2015 2014

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET FAT

Short-term benefits 2 BRAE A 5,700 3,907
Retirement benefit scheme RIREFIFT S 90 75
Share-based payment expenses ARR (D S B 2 25,203 -
30,993 3,982
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A MR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2015 # % 2015 F 3 A 31 HiFFE

45. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the Company’s subsidiaries, all of which are wholly
and partially owned by the Company, at 31 March 2015 are

TEMBAE

M2015FE3H31H * AR Al ZHBA
AIEHRARNREZE LI ES - H&F

as follows: BT
Proportion
Place of Nominal value ownership
incorporation or of issued and interest and voting
establishment/ fully paid share/ right held by
Name of subsidiary operation registered capital the Company Principal activity
EMALRAYL, ERTRARZ APRFEZ
WEARER g BROEE SMES FERRRARRERLA FEEH
Directly  Indirectly
B B
Asia Financial Holdings Hong Kong HK$10,000 = 100% Dormant
(Hong Kong) Limited (note b) &% 10,0007 7T ERET
TNEREE(FE)BRAR
(Hiztb)
Land Ace Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - 100% Gold trading
BERAERAF BB 187 HE2EH
Man Lee Management Hong Kong HK$2 = 100% Management services
Limited and securities
trading
ENEREARAR 0 28T ERRENEFES
PT. Dampar Golden Indonesia US$250,000 - 55% Refine and sell iron
International sand exploited
Elfe 250,000 7T RREHEEE AR
PT. Dampar Golden British Virgin Islands US$100 = 55% Trading of iron sand
International Limited
RERIES 100%7T HYES

DNERZEREBRA R

2015F F 3R
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45. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

180

Place of
incorporation or

Nominal value
of issued and

Proportion
ownership
interest and voting

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBE|RHE

45. FEMB AT (&)

establishment/ fully paid share/ right held by
Name of subsidiary operation registered capital the Company Principal activity
TEMRALRAKL, ERITRAR b UNGIESE = a
WEARARE Pk ROEE SMES FERERRREELA TEEH
Directly  Indirectly
B B3
Senco Investment Limited Hong Kong HK$1 = 100% Management services
BREBEEFR AT 0 18T BRI
TMEEERCRI) PRC RMB20,000,000 - 100%  Investment holding
BB AE (note a and b) 15 AR#20,000,0007T KA
(Hiitakp)
trERIRERAT PRC RMB100,000 - 100%  Dormant
(note a and ¢)(fifizake) ARH100,0007T EREK
ERHEEER(FIDER  PRC RMBS5,000,000 - 100%  Investment holding
‘N (note a and b) H ARE5,000,0007T REER
(Hiitakp)
REEIREHERDA PRC HK205,000,000 = 100%  Property development
(note a and ¢)(ffitakc)  HE 205,000,000 7T NFEER
MMAEZERERERAR  PRC RMB2,000,000 = 100%  Coffee shop
(note a and b)(fifzta®p)  F AR#2,000,0007T s
mMeRESHERAA PRC RMB15,000,000A & = 100%  Children Playground
(note a)(fifzta) F #15,000,0007T TEFES
EREBEHCE) PRC RMB3,000,000 - 100%  Investment holding
BBAF (note a) (Hfzta) AE#3,000,0007C BB
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2015 # % 2015 F 3 A 31 HiFFE

45. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 45. S EM B A E (&)

Proportion

Place of Nominal value ownership

incorporation or of issued and interest and voting

establishment/ fully paid share/ right held by
Name of subsidiary operation registered capital the Company Principal activity
TEMRALRAKL, ERTRAR b UNGIESE = a
WEARARE RSk RAEE/ IMER FMEERZRREELH TEEE
Directly  Indirectly
B &

WETAEEEMNERXER  PRC US$2,000,000 - 100%  Dormant
ARA7 (note a) H 2,000,000% 7% BEEK
(fizta)

REGEFACRY) PRC RMB3,000,000 = 100%  Property investment
BRAA note a) (Mita) AR#3,000,0007C MERE

FIEE R EERE PRC RMB1,000,000 - 100% Dormant
BB AT (note a and b) I AE#1,000,0007T BmER
(Hiztakb)

A BEXERAR PRC RMB1,000,000 - 100%  Dormant
‘Nl (note a and b) F AR#1,000,0007T BExi
(Hiitakb)

ATERBEXERER  PRC RMB1,000,000 - 100%  Dormant
/A7) (note a and b) FE AR#1,000,0007C BEEK
(Hiztako)

RREREXEREAR PRC RMB1,000,000 - 100%  Dormant
‘N (note a and b) I AE#1,000,0007T BmER
(Hiitakb)

MY Ea#E R AR PRC RMB55,350,000 = 100%  Manufacture and sales
(Siping Ju Neng Medicine of pharmaceutical
Industry Co., Ltd.) (note a) Products

MFERERERAA HE AR #55,350,0007T HERHEEm
(Hiita)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 # % 2015 % 3 A 31 HiFFE

45. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

Notes:

The subsidiary was an indirectly wholly foreign owner enterprises

established in the PRC.

The subsidiary was incorporated during the reporting period.

The subsidiary was acquired during the reporting period.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities outstanding
at the end of the year, or at any time during the year.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Group, which in
the opinion of the directors, principally affected the result or
assets of the Group. To give the details of other subsidiaries
would, in the opinion of the directors result in particulars of

excessive lengths.

(a)

Details of non-wholly owned subsidiary that

have material non-controlling interests

Proportion of

45.

TEMBAE (&)

ik -

@  ZHBARARTERLZEENE
BELE -

o) EHBAARNERE R -
©  EMBAFNEE R -

RERIFREMMERE - BRI
BEAREEZEBES

EERRLERIMZAKEZHBR
AUAEBE XELEERERY
E -EEARFINHMMBRRIZH
BFEEREANITE

(a) HERERFEREZRZIF
2ENBARFE

ownership
interests
and voting
Incorporation rights held by
registration non-controlling Loss allocated to Accumulated
Name of Company and operation interests  non-controlling interests ~ non-controlling interests
FERESR
REZHRE
AL - ERERR
RAEEMH BERCE Y REELS FEREREIREBR R FERES
2015 2014 2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’'000
TR THT FET FHET
PT. Dampar Golden  Indonesia
International gIfe
(Indonesia) 45% 87,088 162,103 8,682 94,976

Summarised financial information in respect of each
of the Group’s subsidiary that has material non-

controlling interests is set out below. The summarized

financial information below represents amounts

before intragroup eliminations.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBRRME
For the year ended 31 March 2015 # % 2015 % 3 A 31 HiFFZ

45. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 45.

(@) Details of non-wholly owned subsidiary
that have material non-controlling interests
(Continued)

PT. Damper Golden International (Indonesia)

TEMEARR)
(a) WMEEAKEREREZH
HHIE A DR ()

PT. Dampar Golden
International(Indonesia)

2015 2014

HK$’000 HK$’000

FER FAT

(Restated)

(=E51)

Non-current assets EMENEE 39,380 230,846

Current assets mEEE 5,014 6,320

Current liabilities nRBBE 25,100 26,108

Non-current liabilities ERBAE - -
Equity attributable to owners R RS AE(GHEZ

of the Company 10,612 116,082

Non-controlling interests AR 8,682 94,976

EMNERERERAT  2015FF3R

183



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MR R MY R

For the year ended 31 March 2015 # % 2015 % 3 A 31 HiFFE

(@)

45. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 45. X EK{EB 2 5 (&)
Details of non-wholly owned subsidiary (@) HEEAFERERZIKE
that have material non-controlling interests 2EMBARFEE)
(continued)

PT. Damper Golden International (Indonesia) PT. Dampar Golden
(continued) International (Indonesia)
(#&)
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHExT FHT
(Restated)
(&&E5)
Revenue U gs - 8,085
Expenses X (193,531) (368,315)
Loss for the year REEBRE (193,531) (360,230)
Loss attributable to owners KRB ANEMLEER
of the Company (106,443) (198,127)
Loss attributable to non- SEYERR A 25 FE (R 518
controlling interests (87,088) (162,103)
Loss for the year REEBE (193,531) (360,230)
Total comprehensive loss KAREE ABLEE
attributable to owners Es 188
of the Company (105,470) (197,536)
Total comprehensive R EREREE
loss attributable to iRk
non-controlling interests (86,294) (161,620)
Total comprehensive loss AEFEEEHBERR
for the year (191,764) (359,156)
Dividend paid to BRI E
non-controlling interests - -
Net cash (outflow)/inflow REEEEBKZ
operating activities Be(RH)MAFE (1,382) 3,076
Net cash outflow from REKREEE 2
investing activities RE ML F5E (65) (3,094)
Net cash inflow from financing KB RLE /&S~
activities RERANFHEE - -
Net cash outflow We L5 (1,447) (18)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2015 # % 2015 F 3 A 31 HiFFE

46. SUMMARISED STATEMENT 46.
OF FINANCIAL POSITION
INFORMATION OF THE COMPANY

Summarised statement of financial position information of

RARZHMBIRRKRE

ARRRHERR 2 BRI T E R

]

the Company at the end of the reporting period includes: HEAT :
2015 2014
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
kz3 FET TET
Non-Current Assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - BEREE 18 - 11
Deposit for acquisition of Wi —EH B AR 2
a subsidiary b - 135,000
Interests in subsidiaries RSB R A 2R 45 106,500 106,500
Current Assets REBEE
Prepayments, deposits and AR - e REAM
other receivables e U BR 3R 24 707 656
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEUSBT B A B I8 31 1,068,017 405,266
Bank balances and cash RITERRE S 27 209,489 131,133
1,384,713 778,566
Non-Current Liabilities FRBAE
Convertible notes Al AR = 1 85 (229,289) (4,837)
Current Liabilities REEE
Amount due to subsidiaries FETHT B A Rl I8 31 (36,235) (17,354)
Other payables and accruals H i FEA BRI
FEFT & A 29 (348,899) (3,590)
Net assets EEZEE 770,290 752,785
2015 2014
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
k=3 F&T TFET
Share capital A% 7R 34 694,848 394,679
Reserves EE 75,442 358,106
Total equity R iRsa 770,290 752,785

KRB RAEEZ2EBEEN A
395,639,000 /& T ( 2014 &F : &4
215,944,000/ 7T) °

Loss of the Company for current year amounted to
approximately HK$395,639,000 (2014: approximately
HK$215,944,000).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MR R MY R

For the year ended 31 March 2015 # % 2015 % 3 A 31 HiFFE

46. SUMMARISED STATEMENT 46. X RB 2 HBARRKE
OF FINANCIAL POSITION AREGE)
INFORMATION OF THE COMPANY
(CONTINUED)

Convertible Share-base
Share Share notes Capital ~ payment  Exchange  General Accumulated
capital  premium  reverse  reseve  reServe  reserve  reserve losses Total
THRZ ik

Bx  ROER  BGE  BABE  xeBE  ENGE  -RER  Z0ER 4%
HKS000  HKS000  HKBOOD  HKG0OD  HKSOOO  HKS00  HKS000  HK§000  HK$O000
Tér TR TR TR TR TEr  TRn  TEn TEn

At 1 April 2013 1013E4A1R 193,937 738,312 - - 7,601 2 180030 (920525 199,382
Loss for the year TFEER - - - - - - - (1594 (215944
Other comprehensive expenses ~ AEFEHATR

for the year = = = = = = = = =
Totel comprefiensive expenses ~ AFERERLES

for the year - - - - - - - (215944 (215944
Capital Reorganisation RAE4 (198,350) - - 198,350 - - - - -
Conversion of convertblenote — THREEERARR

into shares 391,399 311,46 (458,060) - - - - - 45%
Recognition of equity component BT ARZE 7

of convertible notes ERTH - - 506289 - - - - - 506289
Issue of shares S0 768 10770 - - - - - - 18463
Lapse of share options EREL - - - - (1,680) - - 1,680 -
At 31 March 2014 and R2014E3A31AR

1 April 2014 N14E4R1R 394,679 1,060,328 48239 198,350 5,921 a 180,080 (1,134,789 792,785
Loss for the year TEEER - - - - - - - (305,639 (395,639)
Other comprehensive expenses  AEEEMAERE

for the year = = = = = = = = =
Total comprehensive expenses  AEBAERMAE

for theyear - - - - - - - (B (19569
Recognition of convertblenote BT EKEEERERD

nto shares - - 18,091 - - - - - 18,091
Conversion of convertblenote RS EERAR(

Into shares 28,740 125833 (69,120) - - - - - 30T
Lapse of share option BERH - - - - (116) - - 116 -
Eouty setted share-based transactions hEZEZ M

RERZRS - - - -0 - - - U
Issue ordinary shares upon exercise  EREEAERZERR

of share options 1,425 2,076 - - (1,495) - - - 2,006

At 31 March 2015 R15E3A31R 694,648 1,188,287 7,210 198,350 31,900 2 180,00 (1530312 770,290
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2015 # % 2015 F 3 A 31 HiFFE

47.

48.

49.

DIVIDENDS

The directors did not recommend the payment of any
dividend for the year ended 31 March 2015 (2014: Nil).

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As announced on 25 March 2015, on 25 February 2015
over 150 employees of Siping Ju Neng Medicine filed
two claims against Siping Ju Neng Medicine Industry Co.
Ltd. (a subsidiary engaged in manufacture and sale of
pharmaceutical products) in the Arbitration Court of the
Siping City Labour Human Resources Disputes Arbitration
Commission respectively (“Arbitration Claims”) for wages
and benefit compensation in the sum totaling approximately
of RMB26,400,000. As at 31 March 2015, the outcome
of the Arbitration Claims is uncertain. Save for Siping Ju
Neng Medicine Industry Co. Ltd., the Group did not have
any significant contingent liabilities at as 31 March 2015.
Subsequently, the pharmaceutical business was disposed
on 12 June 2015.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

(@) Very Substantial Disposal

On 9 April 2015, the Group has entered into a
conditional sale and purchase agreement with
the purchaser Mr. Pan Guohua** (FE#E % 4), an
independent third party in respect of the sale 100%
equity share of Billion Source Investments Limited
(which has two subsidiaries company, Silver Epoch
Investments Limited and Value Brilliant Investments
Limited, investment holding companies, and one
indirect wholly owned subsidiary, Siping Ju Neng
Medicine Industry Co, Ltd.** (HFEREZEFR
A A]), a company engaged in manufacturing and
sale of pharmaceutical products in the PRC) at
a consideration of RMB30,000,000. (For details,
please refer to the announcements dated 15 April
2015, 16 April 2015 and 12 June 2015, and the
circular dated on 18 May 2015). The disposal of the
PRC pharmaceutical business was subsequently
completed on 12 June 2015 and the consideration
as determined on that date at approximately
HK$37,902,000.

47.

48.

49.

Hﬁ /%\

BETEZRMNEE2015F3H31H
IEFEZEMEE(20145F : £) -

HARE

201593 A25HFr A - 722015
F2H25H + HBiB150% M0 B e %
¥EEDHREFEMEIAEFEZH
MHEEZE R MAIH N FER
BEERAR(RELEERBEEER
ZHMBRAR) ZAEAEENARY
26,400,000t 2 T & K EFMEE 2
RE([HERE]) - K201543 A 31
B (fEREZEREKRET - BRI
TERRBEERR QRN - B2015F3
A31H ' AEBWEEMERKAE
B o BEmEBKEEER2015F6H12
HHE -

HEHEEER
(@ FEERHEEE
MR2015F4 A998 » K& H

% 4 3t H & Billion Source
Investments Limited ( X 7 &
M 5 M B A & Silver Epoch
Investments Limited & Value
Brilliant Investments Limited
(BRKEEERRARA)  k—
HREE2EMNBARMNFEERE
BEARAF(EFERNFELE
EHEENEEED))NEH
P ERTIBEGRGEESR D
# + REAAR30,000,000
7o (FIBEAE2H B R2015
F4H15H ~ 2015564 A16H
K 2015F6 A12H 2 A i &
HE§ /2015465 H18H 2@
BR) o HY R B B BESE TS 1R
R201566 A128 %R + (B
% BEE A #%137,902,0007%
IE o

DNERZERBRAR 20155 FH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 # % 2015 % 3 A 31 HiFFE

49. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS (CONTINUED)
(b) Acquisition of properties in the PRC

(i)

On 15 April 2015. Shenzhen Shi Hong Yong
Run Industrial Company Limited** (&334
XEEEZEEARAR), and indirect wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company entered
into an acquisition agreement with Guangzhou
Shi Zhong Zhan Investment Development
Company Limited** (BMMHRBIKEERE
R R]), an independent third party. Pursuant
to the Agreement, the subsidiary agreed to
purchase the properties, with a gross floor
of approximately 8,562.52 square meters,
comprises a portion of two floor-store in Jinma
Waterfront Square** (& 57K % &) located at
Donghu Lakeside, Zengjiang Street, Zengcheng
City, Guangzhou Shi, Guangdong Province,
the PRC for the initial consideration of RMB
130,150,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$162,668,000). (For details, please refer to
the announcement dated 15 April 2015).

On 5 June 2015, in addition to the
announcement dated 15 April 2015 Shenzhen
Shi Hong Yong Run Industrial Company
Limited** (RIS KBEEEZERBRQF),
an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company has entered into second acquisition
agreement with Guangzhou Shi Zhong
Zhan Investment Development Company
Limited** (BMTHEREZERAR DA,
an independent third party. Pursuant to the
Agreement, the subsidiary has agreed to
purchase the Property, with a gross floor
of approximately 4,200 square meters,
comprises a portion of two four storey in
Jinma Waterfront Square** (£ 5 /KEE
%) located at Donghu Lakeside, Zengjiang
Street, Zengchang City, Guangzhou Shi,
Guangdong Province, the PRC for the initial
consideration of RMB75,598,740 (equivalent
to approximately HK$94,498,425). (For details,
please refer to the announcement dated 5
June 2015).
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(b)

(0

R2015F4 158 + &
NREEEENB A A
B EEXEERE
RAREBIE=TE
NI RIEEERER
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RiEZ = WBAF
RAEREAZETEY
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¥ HBURPEERZE
JE N T A 3 T 3T T R
HEE - BAEEKE
ESZmERAEZY
¥ AR - TR E
A AR #130,150,0007T
(18E M #7162,668,000
BI) o (FBH2HE
Hl 520154 A158 2
NI

R2015F6 A58 @ B
HEIA2015F4 A 15H
/N R /N I3
= &M B A AEIIGA
XEEXERBMR AR
BBV E=HEMTP
RIEEERBR ARG
MEZHKERZ R
Bz WEARR
EBEMEEEEY
54,200 5 KB Z Y
¥ BAURFEERE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2015 # % 2015 F 3 A 31 HiFFE

49. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS (CONTINUED)

(b) Acquisition of properties in the PRC
(Continued)

(i

On 15 May 2015, in addition to the 2014
Acquisition Agreement, Shengyi Information
Consulting (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd.** ( & Z£ &
BE#Z#AOFRY) AR A A, an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company has
entered into the 2015 Acquisition Agreement
with ISH Yanbao Logistics (Shenzhen) Co.
Ltd.* (R &S HER YR ORI BR R A,
an independent third party. Pursuant to the
2015 Acquisition Agreement, the subsidiary
of the Company has granted to purchase the
Property with the gross area of approximately
5,400 square meters, comprises of 30 units
of Kingma Information Logistics Park** (& 5
B WRE) which is situated at depot No. 2,
3rd Road and Shenyan Road Intersect, Inner
Logistics Park, Yantian Bonded Area, Yantian
District, Shenzhen City, the PRC for the initial
consideration of RMB65,107,800 (equivalent
to approximately HK$81,384,750). (For details
please refer to the announcement dated 15
May 2015).

(c) Grant of share options

On 20 April 2015, the Group has granted a total of
117,000,000 share options to the eligible participants
at the exercise price HK$0.395 per share.

ok

The English translations of the Chinese names or words in this

section, where indicated, are included for identification purpose
only, and should not be regarded as the English translation of such
Chinese names or words.

49.

FERRBER)
U 8 3 154 = 40 90 3 (40K

(b)

(c)

DNERZEREBRA R

(i)

R2015F5 8158 » B
2014F BN - A
NEIFEEEENE QA
REEBFHACRINE
PR BB 58 = H AR
AfEEERYRCFI)
BRARFIM2015F Uk
B8 1 % o IBIBE20154F
B tes - AR RIKE
REBRPTREARE
65,107,800 7T (18 & %
#781,384,7507% 7T ) BE
BZME(EEBBELY
5,400 F 75 K © B
FEREIImEREER
R R DR AN =555
B 7R B B 32 BB R — SR
BreEABMREZ
S0AEMIAAMR) o (FEIE
B2E A A2015%5
B158 Z ) °

MR2015F4 208 » K&EE
BITHEESRRK%H0.395 %
TREER2EERTEE £
117,000,00017 & RS 4 -

2015F F 3R
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190

(d)

(e)

(f)

49. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS (CONTINUED)

Placing of new shares

On 6 May 2015, the Company has entered into the
Placing Agreement with the Placing Agent. According
to the Placing Agreement, the Company agreed to
place up to 340,000,000 shares of HK$0.42 per share
to Independent Placees, The aggregate nominal value
of the maximum number of Placing Share made the
Placing will be HK$85,000,000. (For details, please
refer to the announcements dated 6 May 2015 and 22
May 2015). The Placing was subsequently completed
on 22 May 2015).

Share subscription

On 19 May 2015, the Company entered into the
share Subscription Agreement, which the Company
has conditionally agreed to allot and issue a total
of 1,330,000,000 Subscription Shares at the
Subscription Price of HK$0.36 per share. (For details,
please refer to the announcement dated 22 May
2015).

Placing of Convertible Bonds

On 21 May 2015, the Company entered into the
Convertible Bonds Placing Agreement with the
Placing Agent. According to the Place Agreement,
the Placing Agent has conditionally agreed to place
the Convertible Bonds with a principal amount of up
to HK$ 432,000,000 to Independent Placees. The
Convertible Bonds will convert into 600,000,000
ordinary shares at convertible price of HK$0.72 per
share. (For details, please refer to the announcement
dated 22 May 2015).
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mERREEE)

(d)

(e)

(f)

B & %7 IR 12

MR2015F5H6H @ ANAF)HE
RRERELEE W ° BRIE
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7 ° (¥ 152 B B A2015
F5A6H K2015F5 8228 2
N) o BRE BIEFER 2015
F5H22H5%K °

B0 REE

R2015F5 A19H » KA RIE]
YRR ERE - B AR
AEBREREEREETR
f% 70.86/8 LR 3% R 31T 6
1,330,000,000 % R B AZ 15 °
(FBH2H A AB2015F5
R22B 2 ) o

BEETRRES

R2015F5H21H @ AR A
B RRERIE AT RE
A Sz o REBESH
O REREBEAEKHERE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2015 # % 2015 % 3 A 31 HiFFZ

50.

51.

52.

NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS

On 26 August 2014 and 3 October 2014, the Group had
granted 15,500,000 and 59,000,000 share options to
certain directors and employees of the Group. During the
year ended 31 March 2015, the share-based payments
of approximately HK$27,590,000 were charged to the
consolidated income statement. For more details, please
refer to Note 37.

COMPARATIVE

Certain comparative amounts have been reclassified to
conform with the current year’s presentation.

AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE
OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements were approved and
authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 26 June
2015.
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

MBRE

Year ended 31 March
HE3HABALEE

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000
FAT FHBIT FHT FAT FHR
(Restated)
(&=7)
Results 4
Revenue A 157,929 113,586 111,957 18,189 (3,560)
Loss before tax KRR (45,269)  (155,374)  (199,320)  (349,981)  (209,686)
Tax charge BIEX M = (202) = (114) (368)
Loss for the year from AEEHELE
continuing operations EY it (45,269)  (155,576)  (199,320)  (350,095)  (210,054)
Loss for the year from REFERIEER
discontinued operations Z 18 - - - (18,966) (35,248)
Loss for the year AEEER (45,269)  (155,576)  (199,320)  (369,061)  (245,302)
Attributable to: FEAE -
Equity holders of the Company AR BIEREE A (45,061)  (154,276)  (197,967)  (207,068) (157,152
Minority interests DERR R R (208) (1,300) (1,353)  (161,993) (88,150)
(45,269)  (155,576)  (199,320)  (369,061)  (245,302)
As at 31 March
M3A31H
2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000
FHT FHIT FHT FHIT FER
Assets and liabilities EENEE
Total assets BEBE 1,267,800 998,681 849,351 1,007,677 1,663,281
Total liabilities BfEEE (421,917)  (282,855)  (331,766) (90,526)  (573,910)
Shareholders’ funds BERES 586,842 458,085 261,022 821,320 1,089,371
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